-
C L S T
LI -
pmaany " _'l L‘Lf 11
o nmn --u-'uuDH.U.H".

] nine - e I
W | |f~""’!1-nn.-.__,

LR AR id
gannn B

Annual Report

T o0
o -

Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited
MEBELXRBRAA

(Formerly known as Junefield Department Store Group Limited Ai#& B S5 B AR A R])
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability 7 & & & k2 2 BR A F)

(Stock Code &3 1X35E : 758)



B &%

CONTENTS
2
4
8
16
ographical Details d‘r@ﬁctors and Senior Management
EEEWmE 20
eport of the Dlrectorg
-.}ﬁ@&%ﬁﬁi : 33
Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B EERRE Y
Corporate Governance Report
B AZBA R E 64
Independent Auditors’ Report
BABRR 72
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
merEkER 73
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
fra B &R 74
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RAEERDE 76
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meEREemER 78
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
fra SR M 80
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
KREMEZFE 207
Particulars of Investment Properties
HFEERIMEZFHRS 207
Particulars of Completed Properties for Sale
T FHBEHE 208
Five Year Financial Summary

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2018 % oEBR A XA R LS



o 7 &
CORPORATE INFORMATION

u‘,
EES BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HITES Executive Directors
HEEE(FE) Mr. FU Kwan (Chairman)
(R=ZF—NEFNA—HZE) (appointed on 1 August 2018)
RIELAE Mr. ZHANG Jian
(R=ZF-—NFNA—HZ) (appointed on 1 August 2018)
RMLELE Mr. ZHANG Bishu
(R—ZF—NENA—HZF) (appointed on 1 August 2018)
Bzt Ms. LIU Jing
(R-_ZF—NFNA—HZF) (appointed on 1 August 2018)
PR BB S A Mr. CHAN Yeuk
(R=ZF-—NFNA—HZ) (appointed on 1 August 2018)
BARALE Mr. ZHOU Jianren
FEMEE Mr. ZHOU Chu Jian He
(R=ZFE—NENHA=-+=HEFF) (resigned on 22 August 2018)
wEREE Mr. ZHANG Min
(R=—ZF—-NFENAZ+=-HFF) (resigned on 22 August 2018)
MBEAT R & Mr. XIANG Xianhong
(R=—F—NEFENA=+=HEFHT) (resigned on 22 August 2018)
BRENEE Mr. LEI Shuguang
(R=ZFE—NENHA=-+=HEFF) (resigned on 22 August 2018)
FHITES Non-Executive Director
Jorge Edgar Jose MUNIZ ZICHES % 4 Mr. Jorge Edgar Jose MUNIZ ZICHES
(R=—F—-NENAZ+=HEHF) (resigned on 22 August 2018)
BYFHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
MEREE Mr. LAM Man Sum, Albert
BHTEE Mr. CAO Kuangyu
REELE Mr. CHEUNG Ka Wai
EREES AUDIT COMMITTEE
MEREE (EE) Mr. LAM Man Sum, Albert (Chairman)
T A Mr. CAO Kuangyu
REELE Mr. CHEUNG Ka Wai
FMEES REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
REELEE(EFE) Mr. CHEUNG Ka Wai (Chairman)
WEREE Mr. LAM Man Sum, Albert
BEHTEE Mr. CAO Kuangyu

> MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B A XA R DA ANNUAL REPORT 2018 % #



REEESE

BEEE (FE)
(R-ZF—-NENA—HZ)

RELA
(R-FE—-—NENA—HZE)

N

BHFEE

REELA

BEREME A
(R=ZF—NEFENA—HET)

RIBFERTE
TERDBFERTE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building, 69 Pitts Bay Road
Pembroke HMO08, Bermuda

EEROBFEERLTE
HEZBERAREAQ A

BB E2FRNEBER1835%

&R 22

AfMER

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

MNEERETRIEERLE

&5

A

&L 1Ti82625%
RIEAE151E
DAAWE

=& A
EEETMELAERAA
HEDEAT

BB

IR

ETEH115

BHES
HERTITRESE

R 424X 5%

758

4 3k

http://macrolinkcapital.etnet.com.hk

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & %

AAEEH
~ CORPORATE INFORMATION
v

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. FU Kwan (Chairman)
(appointed on 1 August 2018)

Mr. ZHANG Jian
(appointed on 1 August 2018)

Mr. LAM Man Sum, Albert

Mr. CAO Kuangyu

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Wai

Mr. ZHOU Chu Jian He
(resigned on 1 August 2018)

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Principal Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building, 69 Pitts Bay Road
Pembroke HM08, Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

15/F., COFCO Tower
262 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. NG Kwok Choi

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

31/F., Gloucester Tower

The Landmark

11 Pedder Street

Central

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
758

WEBSITE

http://macrolinkcapital.etnet.com.hk

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oEBR A XA R LS



4

FEWRE =
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

BAIIR -

AABRERFEBRERXERABD(ARRA]) IE
B R (REIAKEDEES([EFE)) K
AREAKEBE_Z-/\FT-_A=1T—HL
ZEBOBEERE

BHE-T—-N\F+-_A=+—HILEE K&£BZ
BEIEL A184,704,0008 0 BT —+FHME
HAfH 236,275,000/ ST A @ £ 7+409.18% ° &= —
E-NF+_A=Z+—BHIEFE  KRRHEEARE
HEAEENA111,784,0008 T BT —+F
18 FE HARS 2 44,895,000/ JT 16 11148.99% : A A 7]
HEHEANERERAREEEIB1061BL(ZE—+
F 4208 0) RZE—N\F+ZA=+—8"
NEERE ERFEED BIEX393,394,0007% 7T
K #9259,867,000/8 7C o WA MEZHNAFE
AREBHEECSBRBEMREL I - MARQ
REAAELSERIENMNIEZEHR : (QEEBRE
FEVEREVEREEMBRAR (KRR EE
HEONED B AR 2 VEIRE 2 E R EEE
WA - TR LB [E A $%15 B R £ BE4Y16,417,000
BIL OEAEETHEEAEEBEMNRE B
MEMERGEZ JEIKER  EEZRERES
BB ARSI RO AEEEFFHEMER
BEZAMEDSHEEZ  FHEAEEEMNEREEY
BEBESBEHREANBEN  ERERIAEE
BEMBEBSBEPEMRE  URBEAAEERR K
FREBOHZHTEEERRD -

iR 2
REARBZEERRESEERENEE TA
SEBRBEREEEZR EFEATRIZREN
FEORPBRE(ZT—LF : 8) -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B AEXAE R DA

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Macrolink Capital
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), | am pleased to present the business review and outlook of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s revenue was
approximately HK$184,704,000, representing a significant increase of
409.18% over HK$36,275,000 of the corresponding period of 2017.
The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$111,784,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018, representing an increase of 148.99% over HK$44,895,000 of
the corresponding period of 2017. Basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company was 10.61 Hong Kong cents
(2017: 4.29 Hong Kong cents). At 31 December 2018, the Group’s
total assets and net assets reached approximately HK$393,394,000
and approximately HK$259,867,000 respectively. Revenue increased
mainly because the Group added a new non-ferrous mineral
concentrate — nickel cathodes in its trading business during the year.
The increase in loss attributable to owners of the Company was
primarily attributable to (a) the absence of any compensation income
from the minority shareholder of the Company’s indirect 60%-owned
subsidiary, Hunan Taiji Construction Material Co., Ltd. during the
year under review, as compared with an amount of approximately
HK$16,417,000 being recorded during the corresponding year; (b)
a substantial increase in the amount of impairment loss related to
the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables after the
assessment by the Group of the recoverability related to the same;
and (c) a substantial increase in the amount of impairment loss related
to the Group’s other intangible assets after the reassessment of its
recoverable amounts, taking into account the prolonged curtailment of
the Group’s construction material business segment and the decrease
in the estimated production volume relating to the Group’s coal mining
business segment.

DIVIDENDS

According to the Company’s dividend policy and in order to reserve
sufficient funds for the Group’s future development and operation, the
Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
(2017: nil).
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REVIEW OF 2018

Business review
Trading of mineral concentrates business

The significant increase in the turnover of the Group during the year
was mainly attributable to the significant expansion of the business
scale of the mineral concentrates business segment by successfully
soliciting trading pipelines for a non-ferrous metal, nickel cathodes, by
the new management after the management change in late July 2018.
During the year under review, the turnover recorded for trading nickel
cathodes was approximately HK$145,832,000, contributing 78.95% of
the revenue of the year.

In relation to the business of sourcing and exporting of mineral
concentrates (mainly gold and copper concentrates) from Ecuador
and Peru, during the period under review, both the sales volume and
net profit margin of this segment continued to decline due to the keen
competition in exploring local suppliers with stable supplies of the
mineral concentrates, particularly in Ecuador. In addition, the Group
has started to explore the sourcing of mineral concentrates market
in Peru since 2017 and the purchases volume gradually increased. In
respect of the impairment loss provided for in relation to deposits and
other receivables, the Group will continue to take action against certain
vendors located in Ecuador and Peru to recover the deposits paid.

Construction material business

Hunan Taiji Construction Material Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Taiji”) is the
Company’s indirect 60%-owned subsidiary engaged in manufacture
and sale of slag powder business in the PRC. Its production continues
to be suspended and the resumption of production of Hunan Taiji
remains uncertain due to the suspension of the supply of raw materials
in the foreseeable future. In addition, the arbitration between the
Group and the minority shareholders of Hunan Taiji was still pending.
During the year under review, the operation of manufacture and sale of
construction materials business has not yet resumed, and there were
no updates for the arbitration during the year.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oEBR A XA R LS
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Coal mining business

The Group has two coal mines in Peru under development with one of
them being currently under suspension (the “Suspended Coal Mine”)
and the other (the “New Coal Mine”) having officially started production
in August 2018 with an estimated average monthly production volume
of around 1,000 tonnes during the year. As the New Coal Mine is still
in its initial stage of operation, output is lower than expected. The
local sales market of coal products in Peru is sluggish, and it is not
cost effective for export. During the year under review, the coal mining
and sales business recorded a net loss. Once the production of the
New Coal Mine becomes stable, the Group plans to prepare operation
resumption of the Suspended Coal Mine as soon as possible. It will also
change its sales strategy and coal products from the Suspended Coal
Mine would be changed from domestic market to export market so as
to enhance its synergy with the customer base of the New Coal Mine
and its logistics.

Changes in major shareholders and the Board

In 2018, the Company also experienced a remarkable change in its
shareholding. On 9 May 2018, Macrolink Group Limited (“Macrolink
Group”, previously named Macrolink International Holdings Limited)
and Prime Century Investments Limited (“Prime Century Investments”)
(the then Company’s controlling shareholder) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to acquire 697,837,417 shares in the Company
(representing a 66.75% interest in the Company) held by Prime Century
Investments for a cash consideration of approximately HK$433,845,522
(equivalent to HK$0.6217 per share). The transaction was completed
on 26 July 2018. Macrolink Group subsequently made an unconditional
general offer to the other shareholders in accordance with the relevant
codes on takeovers and mergers on 1 August 2018. The general offer
closed on 22 August 2018 and the current Board was set up. Upon
completion of the unconditional general offer, Macrolink Group held a
67.85% interest in the Company.

Change of company name

At the special general meeting held on 23 July 2018, a resolution was
passed to change the name of the Company to “Macrolink Capital
Holdings Limited” and to adopt “¥7#EH & ARG R A 7]” as its secondary
name. Upon completion of all the procedures for the change of name,
the Company’s new name officially came into use on 19 September
2018. The change of company name is of great significance. It does
not only highlight the change in control and management of the Group.
In view of the volatile economic situation now, it also signifies that
Macrolink Group is determined to develop the Company into its core
listing platform overseas and demonstrates its confidence to bring its
successful experiences in China to the international stage.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & %
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Issue of convertible bonds

The Company entered into a conditional subscription agreement with
Macrolink Group to issue convertible bonds with a principal amount
of HK$100,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”). The Convertible Bonds
were issued to Macrolink Group on 26 July 2018. The Company
allotted and issued a total of 160,849,284 conversion shares to
Macrolink Group at the conversion price of HK$0.6217 per share on 14
December 2018. The conversion shares rank pari passu in all respects
among themselves and with all other existing shares in issue. Upon
conversion on 14 December 2018, the Company did not have any
outstanding Convertible Bonds and Macrolink Group held a 72.14%
interest in the Company.

OUTLOOK

With the successful raising of funds through the issue of the Convertible
Bonds on 26 July 2018, the Company will continue to foster its
cooperation with suppliers to develop the trading of nickel so as to
strengthen our core businesses, expand our business scope, and
broaden our revenue base. With the establishment of a wholly-owned
subsidiary in Yantian District, Shenzhen Municipality, China, in October
2018, the Company will also develop its domestic trading business in
China to strengthen its all-round business positioning.

In addition, by continuing to adhere to the principle of investing in value,
the Board will further cautiously and carefully focus on and develop
the Group’s investments and business development opportunities at
home and abroad, and make good use of funds to expand its business
scope. In line with the Group’s investment strategy and leveraging on
the experience and support of the Group’s controlling shareholders,
the management is committed to grasping and creating business
opportunities in the trading business and securities and financial
investments with a view to bringing long-term and substantial returns to
shareholders and the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like express my gratitude to our valued
shareholders for their unwavering trust in the Group over the years, to
our business partners and clients for their long-term support, and to the
entire management team and all staff for their efforts and dedication.
We will continue to intensify our efforts to strengthen and develop our
existing businesses while remaining open to explore new investment
opportunities so as to achieve long-term strategic transformation and
will strive to create the best returns for our shareholders.

Fu Kwan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) recorded revenue of approximately
HK$184,704,000, representing a significant increase of 409.18%
over HK$36,275,000 of the last year. The increase in revenue was
mainly attributable to the expansion in business scale of the mineral
concentrates business segment by successfully soliciting sourcing
network of a new mineral concentrate-nickel cathodes. The Group’s
gross profit during the year under review was HK$6,452,000 (2017:
HK$5,237,000). The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$111,784,000 (2017: HK$44,895,000),
representing a significant increase of 148.99% over the same period
last year, which was primarily attributable to (a) the Group did not
receive any compensation income from the minority shareholder of
the Company’s indirectly-owned subsidiary, Hunan Taiji Construction
Material Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Taiji*) during the year under review (2017:
HK$16,417,000); (b) after assessment of the recoverability related to
the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of approximately HK$23,953,000 (2017:
HK$6,391,000) and (c) as a result of the prolonged curtailment of the
Group’s construction material business segment and the decrease in
the estimated production volume relating to the Group’s coal mining
business segment, the Group reassessed the recoverable amounts of
the Group’s other intangible assets and the Group recorded impairment
losses of approximately HK$37,110,000 (2017: HK$14,782,000). Basic
and diluted loss per share were HK cents 10.61 (2017: HK cents 4.29).

OPERATION REVIEW
Trading of mineral concentrates business

The trading of mineral concentrates business segment principally
operates in two main aspects: (1) sourcing mineral concentrates (mainly
gold and copper concentrates) from Ecuador and Peru and exporting
them to the customers in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”);
and (2) starting from 2018, the Group was able to secure sourcing
network of a branded electrolytic nickel cathodes with a well-known
supplier in this area and started to source the product mainly in Russia
and export them to the PRC.

Leveraging on the business relationship and background of the
management, the Group achieved to expand its mineral concentrate
business scale by exploring the potential in nickel products. During the
year under review, the Group was able to trade an aggregate volume
of approximately of more than 1,600 tons of nickel, with a revenue
of approximately HK$145,832,000 being recognized by the Group.
This new revenue stream enables the Group to strengthen its revenue
base with diversification into other mineral products in this business
segment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & %



S—FE REBEFERN BEEHEBEIBH
HERKRRANIEE  TEHAMELBTHER
Bee Hz EHER R A (FRIRENEZ®) -
AEEE T —tFRBHFERAWERERE B
KEBEZWIE N - KEBESSUALI24,041,000%
T (ZF—+%:26,953,00087T)  WEFREAT
#£10.80% °

REBEFERN ZEBI>BERFBEEY
20,401,000/ 7t (ZZF —+F : 4,695,000/ 7T) -
£ FE R EIKIE FFH49334.53% © FES B AE EFH
FETHREAEE AR - BRCHNZS 2RE
E51E#1/521,456,000/%8 T (= —+t 4 : 5,175,000
BIL) c AKEBEERUARACNEZRENBZETE
FERETE  UREEMZE -

"HHRE
HORRFTEHA_ZE-N\FRAZTALBEZSE
Tt - EREFERTEBLFTSEREL AR
Ej?;ﬁﬂvrﬁ/\\gé_)\i‘tﬂg‘f’/\aﬁé ng‘:ﬂx{f
([ MRES]) 2B FIRFRI2BIRENE
AR/ XPERECHBRB AR ETES - UE
ERBWALEERRPERIEE - A R=F
—N\FET+F FERTEBHFMSFESETH
AELKE - TTRRKRS - Bt - REEFE
W AEEYEBERMSIORFRRENZES

I

REBEFERN AEEEHEMBRIEEEZR
ERFEFE AR=_FE—N\F+=-A=+—8"

AEEFRBEATEFAEMEZEEE ([EAF
Bt AEMEEWE]) 2 RAIEE B H #508,000
BIL - AEEBRBREBETAZEETRALR
5% o F$¢FW REERZEREKEER

I8N F{EE 18 491,556,000 7T ﬁ#ﬁi_

—+tF+ A=+ —HLEFEHESAFERED
2,275,000/ 70 ENE AR HEEREZATE
) ZEAFEEBRRESIREE=ZZ—N
FER-ZE—+F+_A=Z+—BHULEFERAFET
AEMEERERFEANINR R AREEHHS -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & %

EEEBHNWEDWN
NT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On the other hand, during the year under review, the trading of
mineral concentrates business segment in other products performed
unsatisfactorily mainly due to the keen competition in exploring local
suppliers with stable supplies of mineral concentrates, particularly in
Ecuador. The Group has started to explore the sourcing of mineral
concentrates in Peru since 2017 and the purchases volume gradually
increased. The Group recorded the revenue of approximately
HK$24,041,000 (2017: HK$26,953,000), representing a decrease of
10.80% compared to the same period last year.

During the year under review, this business segment recognised a
net loss of approximately HK$20,401,000 (2017: HK$4,695,000),
representing a significant increase of 334.53% compared to the
same period last year. The significant increase in the net loss was
mainly due to the impairment loss on deposits paid of approximately
HK$21,456,000 (2017: HK$5,175,000) after the assessment by the
Group. The Group is taking actions against certain vendors located in
Ecuador and Peru to recover the deposits paid.

Securities investments

As stated in the circular of the Company dated 29 June 2018, in view
of the prosperity of the securities market in Hong Kong and the PRC,
the Company intends to apply 42% of the net proceeds from the issue
of convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) on 26 July 2018 to
invest in the listed securities of companies engaged in financial services
in Hong Kong and/or the PRC with a view to generate dividend income
and seizing capital appreciation in medium or long term. However,
during the second half of 2018, the securities markets in Hong Kong
and the PRC are vulnerable to a high level of uncertainty and volatility
with high downside risks. As a result, during the year under review, the
Group did not invest any of the net proceeds in this business segment.

During the year under review, the Group has disposed of all of the
existing securities investments held for trading and as at 31 December
2018, the Group held equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) of approximately HK$508,000. The
Group held less than 5% of the issued share capital of the issuer.
During the year, the Group recognized an unrealized fair value loss
of approximately HK$1,556,000 for these equity investments while a
fair value gain of approximately HK$2,275,000 was recorded for the
year ended 31 December 2017 which was classified as change in fair
value of available-for-sale investment. These fair value loss and gain
were charged to the FVTOCI reserve and credited to the investments
revaluation reserve respectively for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oEBR A XA R LS
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Construction material business

Hunan Taiji, engaging in manufacture and sale of slag powder business
in the PRC, has being in suspension of production since August 2016
after its sole supplier served a written notice to suspend the supply
of the granulated steel slag for production (“Steel Slag Supply”) in
March 2016. There was no turnover generated since August 2016.
During the year under review, the Group recognized a net loss of
approximately HK$56,694,000 (2017: HK$34,241,000), representing
an increase of 65.57% compared to the last year under review. The
net loss mainly consisted of an impairment loss of approximately
HK$28,245,000 (2017: HK$14,782,000) in relation to the Group’s
other intangible assets of supplier contract, taking into account the
prolonged curtailment of this business segment and an impairment
loss of approximately HK$4,251,000 (2017: Nil) on its property,
plant and equipment. For the best interests of the Group, Hunan
Taiji and its minority shareholder, the Group continued to pursue
on the negotiations with the minority shareholder of Hunan Taiji on
the possibility for the resumption of Hunan Taiji’'s production and
sought out any feasible solution from time to time. At the request of
the minority shareholder of Hunan Taiji, a local court at Loudi City,
Hunan Province of the PRC, served a notice of response to Hunan
Taiji in February 2019 requesting to dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to the
termination of the joint venture agreement of Hunan Taiji due to the
prolonged disputes between the two joint venturers. In view of the sole
supplier is a related party of the minority shareholder of Hunan Taiji,
the Group believes that the resumption of production of Hunan Taiji
remains uncertain due to the suspension of the supply of raw materials
in the foreseeable future and, therefore the Group made full impairment
loss on the supplier contract after the reassessment as at 31 December
2018.

Meanwhile, the Group is still waiting for the ruling for the second
arbitral application with the China International Economics and
Trade Arbitration Commission (“Arbitration Commission”) for claiming
compensations from minority shareholder of Hunan Taiji on the
decrease of the profits due to the shortage of Steel Slag Supply for the
period from 1 September 2013 to 31 August 2016 and the minority
shareholder of Hunan Taiji should continue to honour its obligations by
procuring the Steel Slag Supply in accordance with the joint venture
agreement of Hunan Taiji. The Arbitration Commission made the ruling
in favour of the Group on the first arbitral application in 2015.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & %
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Coal mining business

As stated in the Company’s interim report for the six months ended 30
June 2018, there are two coal mines in Peru under development with
one of them being under progress for formal production (the “New Coal
Mine”) and another one is currently under suspension (the “Suspended
Coal Mine”). The New Coal Mine has started its formal production in
August 2018 with an estimated average monthly production volume of
around 1,000 tonnes by the year end of 2018. All the coal products
were sold to the local market in Peru because it is not cost effective
for export with a low sales volume. During the year under review, this
business segment recorded revenue of approximately HK$657,000
(2017: Nil) and a net loss of approximately HK$21,686,000 (2017:
HK$3,430,000), representing an increase of approximately 532.24%
as compared to the same period last year. The Group performed
impairment assessments on its exploration and evaluation assets and
mining rights of its coal mining business, the estimated recoverable
amount of the exploration and evaluation assets were lower than their
carrying amounts and therefore the Group recognised impairment loss
on exploration and evaluation assets of approximately HK$8,865,000
(2017: Nil). Regarding this segment, the Group also recognised
written-down on inventories of HK$3,894,000 (2017: Nil) and
impairment loss on deposits and other receivables of approximately
HK$1,985,000 (2017: HK$1,216,000) after the assessment by the
Group.

Since the production volume of the New Coal Mine is lagged behind
from the initial planning and the revenue generated is unable to support
its operating costs, the Group expects that it will continue to incur
loss in 2019. Nevertheless, the Group will consider the operation
resumption of the Suspended Coal Mine and the development of
other mines once the New Coal Mine would be profitable or generates
positive cash flow.

Property investment and development
Investment properties in Beijing

During the year under review, the rental income from property
leasing in Beijing, the PRC was approximately HK$4,031,000 (2017:
HK$4,289,000), representing a slight decrease of 6.02% compared
to the last year under review. These investment properties in Beijing
also recorded fair value gains of approximately HK$885,000 (2017:
HK$5,422,000) in respect of the revaluation. The Group expects
these investment properties in Beijing currently held on hand will
keep generating a stable rental income stream and capture potential
appreciation.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oEBR A XA R LS
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Property development in Peru

During the year under review, the property development in Peru
recorded turnover of approximately HK$3,883,000 (2017: Nil). The
Group strives to sell the remaining 2 units in the first half of 2019.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The financial position of the Group is sound with strong equity and
working capital bases. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total
equity amounted to approximately HK$259,867,000 (31 December
2017: HK$294,648,000), representing a decrease of 11.80% compared
with that as at 31 December 2017. The Group’s current ratio as at 31
December 2018 was 1.61 (31 December 2017: 1.75). The Group’s
gearing ratio, expressed as a ratio of total interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings to total assets as at 31 December 2018, was 0.09 (31
December 2017: 0.09).

The Group had no particular seasonal pattern of borrowing. As at
31 December 2018, the Group had secured bank loan, secured
other loan and unsecured other loan amounting to HK$6,280,000
(31 December 2017: HK$9,914,000); HK$25,000,000 (31 December
2017: HK$25,000,000) and HK$5,701,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$6,010,000), respectively. The secured bank loan is denominated
in United States dollars (“USD”), interest-bearing at an annual rate of
London Interbank Offered Rate plus 6.4% per annum and will expire
in August 2020. The secured other loan is denominated in HK$,
interest-bearing at 8% per annum and its repayment date is 3 January
2020 pursuant to a new agreement entered into by the Group. The
unsecured other loan is denominated in RMB and interest-bearing at
9.5% per annum and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and bank balances totaled
approximately HK$100,901,000 (31 December 2017: HK$34,290,000),
which were mainly denominated in HK$, US$, RMB and Soles.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had aggregate banking and other
facilities of approximately HK$35,948,000 (2017: HK$39,582,000)
and had unutilised banking and other facilities of approximately
HK$4,668,000 (2017: HK$4,668,000) available for drawdown.

Taking the above into account, the management is confident that the
Group will have adequate resources to settle its loan as they fall due
and finance its daily operational and capital expenditures. However, the
Group will remain cautious in its liquidity management.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & %
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Convertible Bonds in principal amount of HK$100,000,000 were
issued by the Company on 26 July 2018. The Convertible Bonds bore
an interest rate of 5% per annum with its maturity date falling two years
after the issuance of the Convertible Bonds. Based on the conversion
price of HK$0.6217 per share, a maximum of 160,849,284 shares of
the Company may be allotted and issued upon its conversion. On 11
December 2018, the Company received a conversion notice from the
bondholder to wholly convert the Convertible Bonds pursuant to the
terms of the Convertible Bonds. On 14 December 2018, the Company
allotted and issued a total of 160,849,284 shares at the conversion
price of HK$0.6217 per conversion shares.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no change in the issued share
capital of the Company and the Company’s number of issued ordinary
shares as at 31 December 2018 was 1,206,249,251 (31 December
2017: 1,045,399,967).

GROUP STRUCTURE

During the year under review, Macrolink International Development
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, formed Shenzhen
Macrolink Industrial & Trading Development Limited (31137 =k T & 3%
BB AT, a company established and incorporated in the PRC with
its principal activities being mainly in trading and investment.

Apart from the above, there has been no material change in the
structure of the Group during the year under review.

CAPITAL AND OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no significant capital
commitments (31 December 2017: Nil). Rental payment under
non-cancellable operating lease amounted to approximately
HK$156,000 (31 December 2017: HK$309,000).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group continued to adopt a conservative approach with respect
to treasury and funding policies, with a focus on risk management
and transactions that are directly related to the underlying business of
the Group. During the year under review, the business activities of the
Group were mainly denominated in HK$, RMB, US$ and Soles. The
Board did not consider that the Group is significantly exposed to any
foreign currency risk. The Group has not adopted any hedging policy
or entered into any derivative products. However, the Board and the
management will continue to monitor the foreign currency exchange
exposure and will consider adopting certain hedging measures against
the currency risk when necessary.

CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment and investment properties with carrying amounts
of approximately HK$44,178,000 (2017: HK$46,973,000) and
HK$39,065,000 (2017: HK$39,199,000) respectively have been
pledged to bank and other lender to secure bank and loan facilities.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION

The Group had 180 employees in total as at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: 172) mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC and Peru. The
number of workers employed by the Group varies from time to time
depending on the industry need and they are remunerated under the
employment terms which are based on industry practice. The Group
implemented its remuneration policy and discretionary bonus based on
the performance of the Group and its employees. The Group provided
benefits such as social and medical insurance and pensions to ensure
competitiveness.

OUTSTANDING LITIGATION

Details of outstanding litigation are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM ISSUE OF
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The actual net proceeds from the issue of Convertible Bonds, after
deduction of related expenses of approximately HK$1,250,000,
amounted to approximately HK$98,750,000. The below table sets out
proposed application of net proceeds from the issue of the Convertible
Bonds on 26 July 2018, and usage up to 31 December 2018:
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With the successful raising of funds through the issue of the Convertible
Bonds on 26 July 2018, the Company will continue to foster its
cooperation with supplier to develop the trading of nickel so as to
strengthen our core businesses, expand our business scope, and
broaden our revenue base. With the establishment of a wholly-owned
subsidiary in Yantian District, Shenzhen Municipality, China, in October
2018, the Company will also develop its domestic trading business in
China to strengthen its all-round business positioning.

In addition, by continuing to adhere to the principle of investing in value,
the Board will further cautiously and carefully focus on and develop
the Group’s investments and business development opportunities at
home and abroad, and make good use of funds to expand its business
scope. In line with the Group’s investment strategy and leveraging on
the experience and support of the Group’s controlling shareholders,
the management is committed to grasping and creating business
opportunities in the trading business and securities and financial
investments with a view to bringing long-term and substantial returns to
shareholders and the Group.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fu Kwan, aged 61, has been the executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company as well as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company since 1 August 2018. Mr. Fu is currently
the chairman of the board of directors and the president of Macrolink
Holding Co., Ltd (“Macrolink”). Mr. Fu is a senior economist and has
over 30 years of experience in corporate management and business
strategy planning. Mr. Fu served as a Commissioner of Public
Security in Liling City, Hunan Province, China, the Deputy Secretary
of the Commune Party Committee, the Secretary of the Township
Party Committee, the Deputy Director of the Economic and Trade
Commission of Liling City, a director of the Municipal Foreign Trade
Bureau, the deputy general manager of Hunan Arts and Crafts Import
and Export Group, and the deputy leader of Social and Education
Work Team of the Provincial Party Committee in Liuyang city, etc.
Also, Mr. Fu was appointed as the executive director and a member
of Standing Committee of the China Federation of Industry and
Commerce (2E T8 ), and a director of Political Affairs Committee
of China Federation of Industry and Commerce (% B T % B 2 B % B
Z 89 ) and the vice president of the 10th China Federation of Industry
and Commerce (2B T ). Mr. Fu worked as the vice chairman of
the 11th China Civil Chamber of Commerce (P E R € ), and was
a member of the 11th, 12th and 13th National Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, and the president of the
Hong Kong China Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Fu was appointed as
the vice chairman of the board of directors of Central South University
and Beijing Foreign Studies University. He has been honored as
“the National Outstanding Socialist Builder”, “the China’s Top Ten
Outstanding Entrepreneurs”, “China’s Economic Figures of the Year”,
and “the Outstanding Entrepreneurs of Private Enterprise in 40 years
of reform and opening up of China”. Mr. Fu is currently an executive
director of Dongyue Group Limited, a company listed on Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Zhang Jian, aged 45, has been the executive Director of the
Company and a member of the nomination committee of the Company
since 1 August 2018. Mr. Zhang joined Macrolink in 2002. Mr. Zhang is
currently the senior vice president of Macrolink and the president of the
Ceramics and Equipment Business Department of Macrolink. Mr. Zhang
has more than 20 years of experience in investment banking, corporate
operation and business management. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics and law from Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics and a master’s degree in business administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang is currently the general
manager of the Company and also acts as directors of two subsidiaries
of the Company.
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Mr. Zhang is currently the executive director of Dongyue Group Limited
(a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and New
Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange), the Vice President of Keda Clean Energy
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
the executive director of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co.
Ltd (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Zhang
was a director of Xia’an Financial Group Co., Ltd. which is quoted on
the “National Equities Exchange and Quotations” from June 2016 to
August 2017.

Mr. Zhang Bishu, aged 49, has been the executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2018. Mr. Zhang is currently the senior vice
president and chief accountant of Macrolink, and the president of the
Chemical and Tyre Business Department of Macrolink. Before joining
Macrolink, Mr. Zhang served in state-owned enterprises and PRC
government bureau. Mr. Zhang joined Macrolink in October 2004 and
was employed as the deputy financial officer of Macrolink, the chairman
of Macrolink Weihung Food Company Ltd. (¥ EERRER A F),
a director and general manager of Jiayuan Cobalt Holdings Co., Ltd.
(fFEEeh LM AR A R])and the chief financial officer and a director
of the Investment Department of Macrolink. Mr. Zhang is also a certified
accountant and registered tax agent in the PRC. Mr. Zhang is also
the executive director of Dongyue Group Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and a director of Macrolink
International Investment Co., Ltd.

Ms. Liu Jing, aged 43, has been the executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2018. Ms. Liu is currently the senior vice
president of Macrolink, and the president of the Investment Department
of Macrolink. Ms. Liu joined Macrolink in 1998. Since then, Ms. Liu
has worked in winery, real estate and gas companies under Macrolink.
Ms. Liu also served as the chief financial director of Overseas Finance
Department of Macrolink, the chairman and the general manager of
Changshi Investment Co., Ltd., and the general manager of Macrolink
International Investment Co., Ltd. In 1998, Ms. Liu obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in accounting from Xiangtan University in Hunan
province. Ms. Liu is also a certified accountant in the PRC and acts as
a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Chan Yeuk, aged 60, has been the executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2018. Mr. Chan is an economist and the
current director of Macrolink and Macrolink International Investment
Co., Ltd. Mr. Chan started working in 1976 and worked as a worker
and a project budgetary staff. In 1987, Mr. Chan obtained a degree
from the Business Administration Department of Beijing Institute of
Chemical Technology. After graduation, Mr. Chan worked in a company
under San Xiang Group in Guam, the United States of America serving
as the deputy manager, and later served as the deputy director and
the director of Sales Department of Hunan branch of China Investment
Bank. Mr. Chan joined Macrolink in 1993, and served as the chairman
of the Supervisory Board, the vice president, and the executive director
of Macrolink.
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ENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhou Jianren, aged 60, has been an executive Director of the
Company since July 2014. Mr. Zhou is the elder brother of Mr. Zhou
Chu Jian He, the Chairman and an executive director of the Company
until 22 August 2018. Mr. Zhou has more than 30 years of experience
in international trading. Mr. Zhou also acts as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert, aged 63, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since September 2004 and
is the chairman of the audit committee; and a member of each of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Lam is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong
Securities Institute, Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors,
Australia ¢ New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants, Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong and Certified Tax Adviser. Mr. Lam is currently
an independent non-executive director of OCI International Holdings
Limited (formerly known as “Dragonite International Limited”) and Grand
T G Gold Holdings Limited, all of which are companies listed on the
Main Board and the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Lam currently is a partner of Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
and was head of department in Southwest Securities International
Securities Limited and also the proprietor of Albert Lam & Co. CPA.
Mr. Lam was also the director and currently is the shareholder and
Consultant of Jonten Hopkins & Aoba Group. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor
Degree in Arts (Economics) from the University of Manchester, the
United Kingdom.

Mr. Cao Kuangyu, aged 68, has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since January 2013 and is a member of
each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. Mr. Cao holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics from
Hunan University and a Master Degree in Financial Management from
the University of London. Mr. Cao has over 30 years of experience in
the banking industry. Mr. Cao worked in the Bank of China, Hunan
branch from 1981 to 1996 and his last position was the deputy general
manager of the branch. In 1996, Mr. Cao was transferred to the
Singapore branch of Bank of China as deputy general manager until
1999. Mr. Cao also worked in Citic Bank, Shenzhen branch from 1999
to 2003 and his last position was the president of the branch. Mr. Cao
came to Hong Kong in 2003 when Mr. Cao worked as managing
director, head of global investment banking division of BOCI Asia
Limited until 2007.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & %



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAIL

BALEBRRARRKEBEBRBRAG - #HAEX
KERDABRBEEBRREERARZBILIFH
TEE  BRAARRBRA LT - BEAEGEE
NER(EB)ERARZEIIFNATEE(R=-F
—tFNABE) - ERRARRERZAMLED -

RREXE 61 BT =H=-ABHEEIAR
AZBYFATESTRRTHZERTREUALE
REZBEERRBZEGRAZIKE - RALETRE
BEERNBREBEEEL BN NERBBL BN - KK
ETFEEERBARTHRBELEBMEAER L
B - RALERTRBUTRAER+ =4 - IR
RAVERREFRDITEARBBEB - TFNHREL
B RELRAERERMEBAZESRABA -
REEREBMEBAGABERBRMA LML
RA) - BEBERRNEENBEREZEREL
RERER -

AEME

REAKE 475 B \FALARBET AR
DEIZARIMERMEBE - REEABHLARE
ARASERSEREAGHIASEE  BEE
BRBRABTIREEEL2N - EBE: - RALE
R @R EMATMEREFE T ABEES -+
FEE - MMALRRRR  REEEBERE—HEH
Best AR ITiE URIBRREZMESLTAR
EEQF UBRERARIMESZS -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & %

4
>

T EEREREBEAERERE
RS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cao is currently an independent non-executive director of Dongwu
Cement International Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited
and Dingyi Group Investment Limited, all of which are companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cao served as an independent
non-executive director of Huili Resources (Group) Limited (resigned in
September 2017), which is a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Cheung Ka Wai, aged 61, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since March 2013 and is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of each of
the audit committee and nomination committee. Mr. Cheung holds a
Bachelor Degree in Economics and a Bachelor Degree in Law from the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung also holds two Masters Degrees
respectively in Public Administration and in Laws from the University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung has worked in various government
departments for 12 years, and has over 20 years in the practice of
company law and civil litigation matters. Currently Mr. Cheung is the
senior partner of Messrs. Kelvin Cheung & Co., Solicitors & Notaries.
Mr. Cheung and his law firm have been the legal advisors of a number
of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, asset fund management
firms and non-profit making organizations and charities in Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Kwok Choi, aged 47, has been the company secretary
and the financial controller of the Company since September 2018.
Mr. Ng is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and holds a bachelor degree in business
administration from Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
majoring in accounting. Mr. Ng has over 20 years of experience in
finance, accounting and listed company secretarial matters. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Ng had worked in an international accounting
firm in Hong Kong, and was responsible for accounting, finance and
company secretarial matters for various listed companies in Hong
Kong.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The board (the “Board”) of directors of Macrolink Capital Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company together with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2018 (the “Reporting Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding
and trading of mineral concentrates. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company comprise of property investment and
development, manufacturing and sale of construction materials,
securities investment, trading of mineral concentrates, coal mining
and others, details of which are set out in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of
the Group’s principal activities during the Reporting Year.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

The change of the English name of the Company from “Junefield
Department Store Group Limited” to “Macrolink Capital Holdings
Limited” and the adoption of “¥7# ¥ & NG R A 7" as the secondary
name in Chinese to replace “ BB &5 BB BR A F)” which was used
for identification purposes was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 23 July 2018. The
Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name and the Certificate
of Secondary Name were issued by the Registrar of Companies
in Bermuda on 20 August 2018. The conditions for the Change of
Company Name have therefore been satisfied and the change of the
English name of the Company and the adoption of Chinese secondary
name became effective on 30 July 2018. The Certificate of Registration
of Alternation of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong Company was
issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong on 5 September
2018.

The Board considers that the new name better reflects the change of
control of the Company during the Reporting Year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Year,
discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section from pages 8 to 15 of
this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and maintaining a good standard of corporate
social governance essential for creating a framework for motivating
employees, and contributes to the community to meet our corporate
and business of the objectives of the Group. The Group also
implemented energy saving practices in offices where applicable.

The Group will review its environmental protection practices from time
to time and will consider taking more effective and efficient measures
and practices in the operations. The environmental policies and
performance of the Group are discussed in more detail in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this Annual
Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have significant impact
on the Group, such as the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) and the revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations
are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units from time to time. As far as the Company is aware, it
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the businesses and operations of the
Group.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group intends to reward and recognise performing employees by
providing a competitive remuneration package and to promote career
development and provide opportunities within the Group for career
advancement. The Group encourages employees participation of
external seminars and lectures to keep abreast of changes and updates
on areas of industrial, legal, compliance, financial accounting and
tax knowledge. The Group also encourages continuous professional
development training for the directors to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills which includes seminars, updates on regulatory
requirements and development and corporate governance practices.

The Group places high priority on maintaining good and long-term
relationships with our customers and suppliers to ensure efficient
delivery of products and services and smooth procurement process
respectively.

The Group recognises the importance to protect the interests of
shareholders and the importance of having communication with
them from time to time through annual general meetings, corporate
communications, interim and annual reports as well as results
announcements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

During the Reporting Year, the Board identified the principal risks which
are likely to affect the Group’s business operations including volatility
and uncertainty in market conditions, changing in industry standards,
industry competition and financial risks in the ordinary course of
business, such as liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. It
is essential that the Group is able to respond in a timely manner to
such changes which may adversely affect the Group’s businesses and
financial results.

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the risk
management practices of the Group are sufficient to mitigate the risks
present in our businesses and operations as efficiently and effectively
as possible. The Board delegates some of its responsibility of risk
management to various operational departments. Further reviews are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report — Risk
Management and Internal Control” on page 60 of the Annual Report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 72 of this Annual
Report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of investment properties of the Group are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATION

No charitable donation was made by the Group for the Reporting Year
(2017: HK$779,000).

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank and other borrowings of the Group are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, revenue generated from the Group’s five
largest customers in aggregate accounted for 93.03% of the total
revenue for the year and revenue generated from the largest customer
included therein accounted for 50.64%. Purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for 95.01% of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
accounted for 79.08%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five customers and suppliers during
the Reporting Year.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Issuance of shares of the Company upon exercise of the conversion
rights attached to the convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in
the principal amount of HK$100,000,000 issued by the Company on 26
July 2018:

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 11 December
2018, the Company received a conversion notice from Macrolink Group
Limited (“Macrolink Group”, previously named Macrolink International
Holdings Limited), in relation to the exercise of the conversion rights
to wholly convert the Convertible Bonds pursuant to its terms. On
14 December 2018, the Company allotted and issued a total of
160,849,284 shares to Macrolink Group at the conversion price of
HK$0.6217 per conversion shares.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Reporting Year are set out in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders, calculated in accordance with the provision
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted
to approximately HK$100,131,000 (as at 31 December 2017:
HK$181,785,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws of the
Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme described below, the Group has not
entered into any equity-linked agreements during the Reporting Year.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on page 208 of this Annual Report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting
Year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Reporting Year and up to the
date of this Annual Report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Kwan (Chairman) (appointed on 1 August 2018)
Mr. Zhang Jian (appointed on 1 August 2018)

Mr. Zhang Bishu (appointed on 1 August 2018)

Ms. Liu Jing (appointed on 1 August 2018)

Mr. Chan Yeuk (appointed on 1 August 2018)

Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He (resigned on 22 August 2018)
Mr. Zhang Min (resigned on 22 August 2018)

Mr. Zhou Jianren

Mr. Xiang Xianhong (resigned on 22 August 2018)

Mr. Lei Shuguang (resigned on 22 August 2018)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Jorge Edgar Jose Mufiz Ziches (resigned on 22 August 2018)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oEBR A XA R LS

25



26

EEgHE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BUFHTES
R R 52 A
BRT L
REEEE

BIEARRQE 2 AR 4B E86(2) 15 K E87(1)E »
BhE - RERE  BFZLT RUELE - HRR
EERREREAESRERERRBEAS LHE
BT HEFAERBRET-

BYFHTES 2B IMRAE

ARBBBILIFNTESFTCRIE EHRAFEI.13M%
ZHRERRBERENABUMZBFHERE - AR
ARBMBEBYIFNTESRTE LMRRIES. 131K
PR# 2 B 1E4R Sl - BB AL -

EEREE
ARRAEE BRERRAFREI6EZHI9E -

EERBEN
AATEEHEBRA T RAEFTHER R T
BERDTAR—FRBALBKE CRERER
S MRIEZ BRIBALD - EEHMFBERNR Y
B R L8 -

EERRS  REIESHN2ESR

BRI ENANERF28ENBEFBERF] — £
AR MBI TAIEEESN  NRAFES
BEARARLEEMZERARRMERFRE
BEEAFTVERARERG 2EFNEREQF
ERYHERBEERER -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B A XA R DA

v

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Cheung Ka Wai

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 86(2) and 87(1), Mr. Fu
Kwan, Mr. Zhang Jian, Ms. Liu Jing, Mr. Zhang Bishu, Mr. Chan Yeuk
and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive directors met the independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of directors of the Company are set out on pages
16 to 19 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors of the Company has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensations). Details of directors’ remuneration
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transaction” on
pages 28 and 29 of this Annual Report and note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements, no director of the Company had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its holding
companies and subsidiaries was a party during the year under review.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Bye-law number 166 of the Company’s Bye-laws, every
director, other officer and auditors shall be entitled to be indemnified
and secured harmless out of assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
incurred or sustained by him as a director, auditors or other officer
of the Company about the execution of the duties of his office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance coverage for the directors and
officers of the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted pursuant to the written resolutions
passed by the shareholders of the Company on 29 June 2009 (the
“Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to provide incentives to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Further details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year under review, details of the movements of the
outstanding share options granted under the Share Option Scheme are
as follows:

EREHE
Number of share options
RZZ-NF
RZE-N% T8
-B-8 =t-H
&8 £ £ £h b =
Balance R B B Balance TR
REAH i asat Granted  Exercised  Cancelled asat  Exercise
Date of Exercisable 1 January during during during 31 December price
grant period 2018 the year the year the year 2018 per share
B
HKS
g3
Directors
AEfLE ZEEAFEARA ZEENELASAEZE-NELARA 9,980,000 - - (9,980,000 = 0.229
Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He 6 July 2009 6 July 2009 - 5 July 2019
HERLE ZEENFLARE ZEEAECASRECE-AELARA 3,300,000 S - (3,300,000) - 0.229
Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 6 July 2009 6 July 2009 - 5 July 2019
13,280,000 - - (18,280,000) -
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During the year, all the outstanding share options under the Share
Option Scheme were cancelled as a result of the acceptance of
mandatory cash offer made by Macrolink Group which was completed
on 22 August 2018. The related accounting policy for the fair values of
the share options are set out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Year, the related party transactions set out in note
41 to the consolidated financial statements did not either fall within
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction”, or treated as de minimis transactions under Rule 14A.76
of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION
Issue of Convertible Bonds

On 9 May 2018, the Company entered into a conditional subscription
agreement (which is supplemented and amended by two supplemental
agreements, collectively referred to as the “Subscription Agreement”)
with Macrolink Group as a subscriber to the Convertible Bonds with a
principal amount of HK$100,000,000. As Macrolink Group was deemed
to be a connected person under Rule 14A.20 of the Listing Rules, the
issue of the Convertible Bonds to Macrolink Group was deemed to
be a connected transaction of the Company. An ordinary resolution
approving the issue of the Convertible Bonds was duly passed by
independent shareholders of the Company at a special general meeting
held on 23 July 2018.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the Convertible Bonds were
issued by the Company to Macrolink Group on 26 July 2018. The
Convertible Bonds bore an interest rate of 5% per annum with its
maturity date falling two years after the issuance of the Convertible
Bonds. Based on the conversion price of HK$0.6217 per share, a
maximum of 160,849,284 shares of the Company may be allotted and
issued upon its conversion.

The net proceeds from the issuance of the Convertible Bonds was
intended to be applied for securities investment and the trading of
mineral concentrates businesses of the Group, repayment of the
Group’s borrowings and for its general working capital purpose. Further
details of the Convertible Bonds are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 29 June 2018.
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On 11 December 2018, the Company received a conversion notice
from Macrolink Group in relation to the exercise of the conversion
rights to wholly convert the Convertible Bonds pursuant to the terms of
the Convertible Bonds. On 14 December 2018, the Company allotted
and issued a total of 160,849,284 shares to Macrolink Group at the
conversion price of HK$0.6217 per conversion shares.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) were as
follows:

LONG POSITION - ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.10
EACH OF THE COMPANY

HARDT B BT

BEED L

Percentage

of the

PN = EEER wiER Company’s

EENA Personal Corporate Total issued share

Name of directors interest interest interests capital

BEEE 4,500,000 870,145,473 874,645,473 72.51%
Mr. Fu Kwan (B1att)
(Note 1)

FoR BB 9t A= 100,000 - 100,000 0.01%

Mr. Chan Yeuk

Biat1 - #%870,145, 473D D EBEEFE -  MEHSE
EREVEEREARAREFL2.05% - HELARES
BEUEBEREERAAIEBITRAZTONE = °

Wz : RZZ—NF+ZA=+—H8  ARBIZBETRAEAAR
1,206,249,251 B A% 1

B EXFIEEEN R N\F+_A=+—

B RALFAEEREETRABAM  FEET
R AT HAD T R AR AE (E% BB %
RS I B XVER) 2 BA - IRBIR G RS
B E % R 0 B062(ER S A D AR 2
BEMUREEETNERAAR AR
HRRAR -
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Note 1: These 870,145,473 shares are held by Macrolink Group which is owned as to
42.05% by Truly Industry Investment Company Limited. Mr. Fu Kwan owns 70% of
the issued share capital of Truly Industry Investment Company Limited.

Note 2: As at 31 December 2018, the issued share capital of the Company is
1,206,249,251 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, so far as is known
to the directors and chief executives of the Company, no other person
had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the
register as required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise pursuant to the Model Code, notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

Save as the interests disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or children
under age of 18, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its holding companies and subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31
December 2018, the following director of the Company was considered
to have interests in the following businesses which competed or were
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.

Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He had been an executive director of the Company
until 22 August 2018. Mr. Zhou engages in businesses including
property investment, mineral exploitation and related investment
through a number of private companies (collectively the “Private
Group”).

In the event that there were transactions between the Private Group
and the Group, Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He, as and when required under the
Company’s bye-laws, abstained from voting on any board resolution in
respect of any contract, arrangement, or proposal in which he or any of
his close associates has a material interest.

As the Board is independent from the board of directors of the Private
Group and maintains no less than three independent non-executive
directors, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at an arm’s length from, the businesses of the
Private Group.
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In addition, each of Mr. Fu Kwan, Mr. Zhang Jian, Mr. Zhang Bishu,
Ms. Liu Jing and Mr. Chan Yeuk is either the beneficial owner or the
director and/or senior management of a number of companies (the
“Companies”) in which Macrolink Holding Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries
have beneficial interests. The businesses engaged by the Companies
include property investment and development, securities investment
and trading of mineral concentrates.

The above-mentioned businesses are operated and managed by the
Companies with independent management and administration. In
addition, the Board is independent of the boards of the Companies
carrying on the competing businesses. Accordingly, the Group is
capable of carrying on its businesses independently of the competing
businesses mentioned above.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, as at the date of
this Annual Report, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the
Company was held by the public as required under the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and/or
comparable market statistics. As an incentive for the employees,
bonuses and cash awards may also be given to employees based on
individual performance evaluation.

CHANGE OF STOCK SHORT NAME

The shares of the Company were traded on the Stock Exchange under
the new English stock short name of “MACROLINK CAP” and Chinese
stock short name of “¥7#EHE A" in place of “JUNEFIELD GROUP”
with effect from 9:00 am on 19 September 2018. The stock code of the
Company on the Stock Exchange remains unchanged.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices.

The Corporate Governance Report of the Company is set out on pages
50 to 63 of this Annual Report.
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= Em AUDITORS

BE-_Z—N\E+-_A=+—BILEFEE 2448 The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December

BEHEEITHBAFSHMEEAERATER B 2018 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose

BTy REBEARS HER - WS ERKRE term of office will expire and, being eligible, offer themselves for

EETEE - NBA=SE2FAEERN - AAT 2 re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. There has

e E S - been no other change in the auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three years.

REES=E ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
BE Fu Kwan

TE Chairman

BE ZE-NEF=AR=+tH Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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1. REPORT OVERVIEW

About the Report
Introduction to the Report

Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Junefield Department Store Group Limited) (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (“Macrolink”, collectively referred
to as the “Group”, or “We” and “Us”) persistently strive to
operate its business in a sustainable manner.

Adhering to the Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
reporting principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency, the Group is pleased to present its ESG Report,
which aims to demonstrate the efforts on sustainability
developments to both internal and external stakeholders for
the twelve months ended 31 December 2018 (“Reporting
Period”).

Preparation Basis of the Report

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
“ESG Reporting Guide”) under the Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”). Cushman & Wakefield was
appointed as an external consultant to provide assistance and
advice in the course of report preparation. The Group has
reviewed and approved the ESG Report to ensure all material
issues and impacts on sustainability development are fairly
presented.

Scope of the ESG Report

Compared with our previous report, which covered two major
businesses of the Group, namely the coal mining business in
Peru and the manufacture and sales of construction materials
business in Hunan province in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), the scope during the Reporting Period
of 2018 mainly focus the Group’s coal mining business in
Peru which has commenced the operation, while the Group’s
manufacture and sales of the construction materials business
is still in suspension since its sole supplier suspended the
supply of granulated steel slag for production since August
2016.

This ESG Report focuses on three environmental aspects
and eight social aspects required by HKEX. For information
regarding the governance section, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report as incorporated in the
Company’s Annual Report.
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e Stakeholder Engagement

The Group values its communication with stakeholders,
maintains long-term relationships and responds to their
needs as an important principle of business operations. The
Group establishes close relationships by maintaining effective
communication with each stakeholder and ensure that the

Group understands their expectations and opinions in a timely

1 - manner and gives them feedback.
B E HAEEER BEAN
Stakeholder Expectation and aspirations Communication modes
BFEEEHE o BEAW s RHTEEREH
s BITHMER s HETKUBTHER
o BlEMEKE
Government and regulatory ¢ Operation in compliance e Required submission of information
authorities e Fulflment of tax obligations e Regular communication with
e Creation of job opportunities regulatory authorities
IR =R # & [ s KERE
IESFREE o BIHIRE
AIREE R

Shareholders

'R

Customers

KRB

Business partners

BIR

Environment

(]

Employees

#HE
Community

Hee

Media

Investment return
Workplace safety
Sustainable development

EEEMMRS
EPREE

Quality products and services
Customer satisfaction

MIZEH

e |ntegrity and fulfilment of agreement

T &R
BAOHBRRENEE

Fulfilment of emission standards
Environmental impact reduction

BREE

Bl A2

EXER

Occupational health
Remuneration and benefits
Career development

HEE IR
e Improvement of local community
e E8

NGEA

e Openness and transparency of
information

Group announcement
On-site inspection

EFOR

Pk 75 20 A%
Customer feedback
Service hotline

TEHEEREENED
Lawful actions and communications
with partners

HEWIRFWE PR R

Communication with local
environment authority/department

BEFBENTHER
B ZLEE

Career talk and regular meeting
Team building activities

SEE M E
Participation in local community

S®BRE

MERME EERS

Group website/announcement
Press conference/media interviews
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2. THE ENVIRONMENT

2.1 Emissions

During the Reporting Period of 2018, the Group continues
to adhere to the concept of sustainable development, clean
production and environment-friendly production. We take
measures to strictly control the resource consumption and
environmental emissions for the subordinate production
bases.

The Group’s annual production operations only involve “new
coal mines” that have been put into operation in Peru. The
production of the mine is in full compliance with relevant
local environmental laws and regulations in Peru, including
regulations of solid waste, liquid discharge, gas discharge and
emission. All the emission related data has been thoroughly
recorded by the coal mine management and verified by
independent assessment professionals. Due to the operation
commencement of new coal mines in 2018, the environmental
emission data has increased significantly compared to that of
2017.

The Group adopts a Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) reduction
strategy, especially for material procurement, business travel,
energy conservation, and water conservation. In 2018, our
coal mines in Peru were produced by using mainly locally
available raw materials. We put on water conservation signs
at all employees’ bathroom faucets. We also limit the air
conditioning temperature set in the office to save electricity
and encourages video and conference calls to reduce
unnecessary travels.

About 90% of the woods used in the coal mine are recycled
and reused to reduce the waste of resources. In addition, all
waste paper and printer cartridges of the Group are properly
recycled.
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The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations
on environmental protection. During the Reporting Period,
there was no reported case of prosecution against the
Group for material violation of environmental laws. The main
emissions in 2018 due to production and operation are listed
below:

B
Emission
R R R-ZZ-NFHEGZEREE KK
Liquid Waste No waste water discharge reported during 2018
[ 88 B2 ¥ REB-N\EHEZSEBBEYER
Solid Waste No solid waste discharge reported during 2018

BERBHERN _SLREE

GHG Emission Carbon Dioxide Equivalency

EE1HE R o AR PR AR (BERR R B B0 R e B ) 1,875 —AtES
Scope 1 Emission e Fugitive emissions (CH4 emissions from coal mines and coal 1,875 tCO,e
piles) ik HE L
EHE2HE Y o EIEMBERCEFRMBENE N  BNFKAT) 1
Scope 2 Emission e Stationary combustion (consumption of purchased 1
electricity, heat or steam) [ & /& HE
Bt 1,876
Total 1,876

FHBREREHBRURETISEERAERTE :

The above greenhouse gas emissions are defined and calculated according to the following reference:

BERBEEERTCE
GHG Protocol
BEERERE B S E N EREBREGERER BRI

UNEP Guidelines for Calculating Greenhouse Gas Emissions for Businesses and Non-Commercial

Organizations
EIBX 8RB (IEA) © CO, Emissions from Fuel Combustion (MK 2 =SB R) WEM
iea.org’ —E——fF

International Energy Agency (IEA), highlights version of CO, Emissions from Fuel Combustion,

http://www.iea.org, 2011
2006 FIPCCEI R BEERBEEER
2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
tE X B R D F ANNUAL REPORT 2018 # #

http://www.



ENVIRO

22 EREH

R-T—\F  AEBEEERTENED

BERAAH  BARAM o HhESHRE
FREARIEBEHR R RE  TTHET

Hih AR EBEBREHSE - BNE

EHETEBREREEUREERZSE

M o kEZRRBEIEEBTEREBEEE o

AEEBEEEE N RBNETRS -

(S TE B ERRERE

E : 8,092,018 F F.F¥
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23 BRBERRAER

AERBBRTIREEEARABRER I
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: 19,3897
Gasoline: 19,389 L

RE #HE8REBRS
AL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

2.2 Use of Resources

The main resource consumptions of the Group’s production
in 2018 are petroleum, electricity and wood. The gasoline
is mainly supplied to vehicles and mining machinery and
equipment, and also supplied to other vehicles that serves
the Group’s business. The power is mainly supplied to the
mining equipment and infrastructure and building material
production. The water is mainly used for lowering the
temperature inside the drills.

The Group pays attention to the energy efficiency of the main
electrical equipment and carries out regular maintenance and
commissioning of the equipment.

(@)

K# : 664.593 75K
Wood: 664.59 m?

2.3 Environment and Natural Resources

The Group actively advocates the rational use of natural
resources and educates its employees to raise awareness of
environmental protection, and actively implements the use of
energy-efficient electrical equipment in all office areas, adopts
energy-saving light bulbs, and sets the cooling temperature
to 26 degrees Celsius in summer to reduce air conditioning
energy consumption. Various measures have been taken
by the Group to reduce the environmental impact and save
natural resources.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3. THE EMPLOYEE

3.1 Employment Policy and Labour Practice

The Group puts great emphasis on the protection of the
legitimate rights and interests of all employees. For example,
we strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations for
our coal mining business in Peru, namely TUO del D. Leg.
728 — Ley de Productividad y Competitividad Laboral (Work
Ministry law of productivity and competitiveness). We also
respect equal right and would not reject to employ applicants
by factors of sex, age, race, etc. according to Political
Constitution of Peru of 1993.

The Group has established an effective system of employment
policies, including equal recruitment policy, equal promotion
policy, work-life balance policy, compensation policy,
remuneration and allowances policy, dismissal and retirement
policy, anti-discrimination policy, diversity policy, employee
welfare and benefit policies.

Equal Recruitment
Policy “F-55{ & 18

Employee
Welfare and
Benefit Policy
B AR BR

Diversity Policy {& &
ET A&

LT

Employment

Equal
Promotion
Afs BB T

Work-life Balance
Policy T/EAIET
(e

Policy System

(R UK & 550

Anti-discrimination

Policy /B AREER

Dismissal and
Retirement Policy
fi e S B AR

RTEEETAETERALAE ZFHREYF
& BREGIREREERAIN  AKER
TUEREHEREANZFASER - AK
EnRnEERHMERERERRR -
WA e AR 350K ) 1 € AR B OB IRIRER » 10
BEMA AEEYERABEFNETX
WHEST  R|MEHALEEERIARM
ERRAPIM T ER -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B A XA R DA

Compensation
Policy i fE{ B 5K

Remuneration and
Allowance Policy
HrBCE

In order to enable employees to strike a balance between
work and life, both female and male employees of the
Group are entitled to paternity leave in addition to statutory
holidays required by law. The Group also provides employees
with social security and medical insurance, and formulates
dismissal and retirement policies in accordance with the
law. The Group did not employ any child labor or forced
labor during the Reporting Period. There were no cases of
prosecution for breach of relevant laws and regulations during
the reporting period.
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Employees

5w

Composition of Staff
by Gender

s Age 18-30

® Male m Female 18223051
B . m Age 46-60
46 % 605%

3.2 TEBRE

BB AMAERELELZRENTIE
BRI WETTRRERTFEHENRA -
BATHNEREEARBEREAL 2
AR AREIEE - SRS
BRDEGMBMNR - Fik - R BHE
RARBRER - HMEHTEERZ R
REXZEREEVERLRES  BTA
SEHAREEBRIEKGIENES -

ZRERTE

BPBAOBETRLS  BERREKD
Bzt 2ESZTLFE BANE
BRENT2RE YSKAFRES B
NEENA B EMARLM - SHERT
FoRORRBIET - BAEZEEIMNR
&% BAAENREBEE - MAED
SERBERRENFBRAFEMEE -
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Composition of Staff
by Age Group
REWRAEREDHE THAK

RS HRRERES

Composition of Staff
by Employment Group
REBAERIE DB THK

7.8%

Age 31-45

31E455% H Junior W Intermediate = Senior
Age 61 or above ENFS ==14 18 S%
61 E

3.2 Working Environment

We aim to create a safe and healthy working environment
for all the employees, and pursue the principle of
non-discrimination and equal opportunities. We also aim
to ensure justice, fairness and openness in the whole
employment process, from recruitment, to remuneration,
promotion and training, try the very best to eliminate all
gender, age, religion, marital status and ethnic discrimination.
We invested resources and capitals in employee safety
enforcement and professional development, which
demonstrated the Group’s believes in shared values and team
work.

Diversity and Equalization

We strive to bring together talents from different geographic
locations, backgrounds and ethnics, creating a diversified
platform in which human resources can be turned to best
account, and looking for high caliber individuals with the
right talent and attitude to join us. Only looking at staff’s
performance, experience, personal ability and business
needs, we would not consider other factors such as marriage
status and body conditions during decision-making process
to ensure equalization.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oEBR A XA R LS
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BRSNS

Medical
First Aid Kits
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Training

Regular Safety

BEREEZEAH
Occupational Health and
Safety Day

REPORT

Health and Safety

It is one of the Group’s priority that we ensure the health and
safety of our employees, we target to maintain an efficient and
effective policy system to safeguard the workplace. Based on
local law and regulations, we formed an occupational safety
management system. We actively monitor employee health
through regular physical examinations; we hire occupational
safety officer at workplace for daily safety management; we
conduct regular safety training and organize activities such
as Occupational Health and Safety Day. Moreover, personal
protective equipment has been provided in accordance with
local standards. All employees must wear personal protective
equipment before entering the workplace. Various medical
first aid kits and other first aid equipment are also installed in
the workplace to enhance the safety of our employees.

BARELR®E
Personal

Protective
Equipment

BEZ2EE
Occupational
Safety Officer
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All these measures allow the Group’s accident level remains
relativity low. There were no work-related fatalities, and only
99 lost days due to work injury in our mine sites during the
Reporting Period. Through the participation of all employees,
the Group strives to improve the safety standards of
workplaces and emphasize the importance of safety.

99 lost days
due to workinjury

RITEBERTHE
REHI9X

e 3.3 Development and Training

Enhancing our people’s skill sets, broadening their knowledge
horizons and cultivating employee safety awareness are some
of the aims of our learning and development programs. The
Group believes that effective trainings on various topics such
as health and safety training and business soft skills can help
employees understand the working environment, thereby fully
develop the potential of its workforce. The Group understands
that it can rely on excellence in management and work teams
for long-term success and development.

The Group provides employee orientations to new joiners to
ensure they are able to seamlessly fit into the new positions.
To help employees adapt to the rapid development of the
society, the Group encourages employees to participate
in various training and provides them with continuous
professional development opportunities.

The Group pays extra attention to the training of employees’
occupational safety management, including management’s
safety supervision awareness, employee safety conduct,
and crisis management training in response to earthquakes,
fires and rescues. Moreover, given the increasing attention
to corporate social responsibility, community relations
and corporate social responsibility training were specially
conduced for staff work for the Group’s coal mining business
in Peru.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3.4 Ethical Conduct and Anti-corruption

We have high standards in terms of ethical conduct. The
Group strictly prohibits anyone from using their powers to
ask for bribes, accept bribes, or use improper means to seek
personal gain, and may not conduct extortion, fraud and
money laundering activities. Upon discovery, the person will
be dismissed and never hired; for serious case, the person
will be transferred to local law enforcement and judicial
authorities. This is core to who we are as a business, and
essential to our sustainable growth.

Moreover, our Anti-Fraud Policy and Whistleblowing Policy
provides employees with a confidential channel to report any
misconducts. The identity of the informant will be guaranteed
without being disclosed, and shall be treated with respect
and fairness. The Group encourages its employees to report
to management, department heads and other appropriate
personnel when they suspect or discover any illegal or ethical
violations, and provide relevant information to management
for proper handling.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant anti-corruption
and anti-bribery laws and regulations. There were no cases
prosecuted for violating relevant laws during the Reporting
Period.

4. THE VALUE CHAIN

4.1 Management of the Supply Chain

We understand that the performance of social responsibility
requires the involvement and contribution from all the
business partners. The Group adheres to good practices
and conducts fair and unbiased procurement processes
for supply chain management. We set stringent supplier
selection process and management approach for mine care/
control mine works. For example, according to our purchase
procedure policy effective since 2014, qualified members are
appointed to conduct supplier assessment and review the
proposals with a short list of at least 3 suppliers to choose
from.

Suppliers’ performance monitoring and reviews are also in
place to ensure that those suppliers can meet our expectation
to have strong commitments to good ESG practices
concerning issues such as legal compliance, environmental
sustainability, health and safety, ethical conduct. The Group
not only expects all suppliers to comply with applicable laws
and regulations, but also encourages them to continually
improve their performances.
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e 4.2 Product Quality and Responsibility

We place a high priority to ensure customers’ satisfaction
in terms of products and services we deliver. For long-term
success and sustainable development, the Group has
formulated a quality management policy with stringent
procedures to ensure that the product quality is up to
standard.

Product and service quality assurance policy has been
implemented since 2014, our quality inspectors carry out
sampling, sample preparation, sample retention and review in
accordance with established operational requirements, with
the purpose to identify potential risks and defects during the
production process.

On-time delivery is important especially for coal mining
business, we have also formulated policies and operational
measures to ensure our products to be delivered on time
under the purchase order contract with client’s required
quality.

THE COMMUNITY

We understand that our responsibility to society is to bring
long-term benefits to the present and even the next generation
through social activates and community investment. The Group
is committed to providing career opportunities to the locals and
promoting the development of the community’s economy. For
example, job openings are provided to local people from the
community nearby the mine to maintain good relationship with
interest groups which are relevant to business operation, which
also further extend the caring and services to local families as well
as surrounding community.
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k]| —E-N\FHE B B
Category Parameters Unit Remarks
Rk e ) WE S LiRE =
Scope 1 Emission tCO.e
B R R E R R P 2
Emission & GHG Emissi N o s e
misston misston 5 Eopk Y M- ElbiE
Scope 2 Emission tCOe
9’_|_
L
ERHFE TRE
Resources Consumption Electricity Power KWh
mS

ESG Reporting Guide

GUIDE INDEX

Pages

WERNE
Contents in
the Report

A. R
A. Environmental

BEA1: HERY
Aspect A1: Emissions

A1 — MR
General Disclosure

BRERIREREBHN  F/KRLHAOEES BEREZERZYH

EEEN
() BUR: &

b) BITHBTABEAZENHEREENAD

AR -
Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Al BEEE R ARR B EUE -

The types of emissions and respective emission data.
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Page 35
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Page 36
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CHERERBERE BR BREAR
Contents in
ESG Reporting Guide Pages the Report
A12 BERBAEHNE CAMGHE) R (MER) BE (MASGESEMN - 368 FE2 18 HE Y
SIEHREETE) o Page 36 Section 2.1
Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Emissions
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
A13 FEARZEEVRE CAE)R(WMER)ZE (WMABEEEM - %368 FE2 18 HE Y
SIEHBETE) o Page 36 Section 2.1
Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Emissions
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
A4 FELEZEZEVEE UMGE) M (MER)BE (WASEEEM - £36R FE2 18 HE Y
SIEHRETE) o Page 36 Section 2.1
Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes and, where Emissions
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
A1.5 IR BERE O RPTIEER o 358 FE2AEBERY)
Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. Page 35 Section 2.1
Emissions
A6 RMEBEERESEEYNAE REELSENEERFAERR . 2358 E2 180 HE Y
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, Page 35 Section 2.1
reduction initiatives and results achieved. Emissions
BEA2: EREA
Aspect A2: Use Of Resources
A2 —RIXEE £37H F2 280 ERER
General Disclosure Page 37 Section 2.2 Use

BRERER(BIERIR - KREMERME) BB
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.

A2.1  REABSWEER HMEEER(NE  JRaloh) B2 (UATETR $378

KA REE(MAEESEM - 8IEREAHR) °

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas
or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

A22 BREKERFZE(WUSEEEN  SELMETE) -
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

A2.3  HEBEIR(E AR B RIS AR o

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & %

Page 37

¥37H
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of Resources

F2. 281 B RIFE A
Section 2.2 Use
of Resources

F228ERE R
Section 2.2 Use
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F22f1ERE A
Section 2.2 Use
of Resources
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Contents in
ESG Reporting Guide Pages the Report
A2.4 FRECSREGEAKR LR AEABEE - AREARKKGEEIRMAGK 2378 F22M1ERE R
o Page 37 Section 2.2 Use

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

A25 HERAASEMENEE (UBHE)R(NER)BEEEUHNE - -
Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

EBHEAS:: RERRXRER

Aspect A3: The environment and Natural Resources

A3 — R F37H
General Disclosure Page 37

MEZBTAHRERARAAREREXNERZENOBE -
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

A31 HIEBEPHHRBRRAAERNEAZERCENERGUATEN FI7H
78 - Page 37
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

B. #¥&

B. Social

EmEB1 : EfE

Aspect B1: Employment

B1 —RRIRE ££38H
General Disclosure Page 38

BRZMNEE BERER  TERE - RH - FSEEE - St
FRURAR A Je B A 135 58 e A8 F &Y

() BE: &
(b) BFHBITABEAFZENERER LB
BB R -

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.
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Not applicable

F2.38MIRE R
RAERIR

Section 2.3
Environment
and Natural
Resources

FE23HIRIER
RKAER

Section 2.3
Environment
and Natural
Resources

EIEFBHEE
B THER

Section 3.1
Employment
Policy and
Labour Practice
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BEB2: BREZ2E
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
B2 —RRWEE SE40H SE3.26 TYEIRIR
General Disclosure Page 40 Section 3.2
FHARHLZE2TIHEREIMREESHABELEREEN Working
(a BXR: & Environment
(b) BTHETAGTERTENHBERZ AN
&R} o
Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
fEEB3 : &R K
Aspect B3: Development and Training
B3 —MRIXEE E4E SE3.3f & Kk
General Disclosure Page 41 =l
ERRAEBEBRITIEBENMBREENBER - M EINES - Section 3.3
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging Development
duties at work. Description of training activities. and Training
[EEB4 : & T %A
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
B4 —RRIREE SE38H EIEERBEE
General Disclosure Page 38 AT ER
BEILETSEHL TH Section 3.1
(@ BX: &k Employment
(b) BTHBETAGERTENHBBERZ LA Policy and
H) & o Labour Practice

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.
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Contents in
ESG Reporting Guide Pages the Report
[EEBS : fitpESEEE
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 —REE 428 SBANEHpERE
General Disclosure Page 42 =Ll
EBRMHEENRERGEERRBUR Section 4.1
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply Management of
chain. Supply Chain
[EEB6 : EmEE
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
B6 — MR ER 438 Fa2fhEMBER
General Disclosure Page 43 E&EFE
FHEFMBEHERNBRENERELZS  BE EHEELBEEUR Section 4.2
HROTER ¢ Product
(@) BE: &k Quality and
(o) BIFHEHBITABERZENMBBERERAN Responsibility
AR -
Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
BEB7 : R&ET
Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption
B7 —RRIEE 428 SE34ETBIEERST
General Disclosure Page 42 ;rERES
BRI IEFER - 15 - MEFREREH Section 3.4

(a BX: & Ethical Conduct
(o) BTFHBITABERTENMBEZEREN and
KB R} o Anti-corruption

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.
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[EEB8 : #HBRE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

B8 —RRIREE £438 SEEETAt &
General Disclosure Page 43 Section 5 The
FRAUHEL2ERTREEMEMEFTENBRAEK TS E B LR Community

MEBABR ©

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the

communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take

into consideration the communities’ interests.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Macrolink
Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is committed to maintaining
high standard of corporate governance practices. The primary
corporate governance rules applicable to the Company is the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting Year”) and up
to the date of this Annual Report, the Company has complied with all
the code provisions as set out in the CG Code except for the following
deviations:

— Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. In addition,
the chairman of the independent board committee should be
available to answer questions at any general meeting to approve
a connected transaction that requires independent shareholders’
approval. The Chairman of the Board did not attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 4 June 2018 (“AGM”)
due to other business engagement. In addition, the chairman
of the independent board committee did not attend the special
general meeting (“SGM”) of the Company held on 23 July 2018.
The chairman of the Audit Committee, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and certain members of the Nomination
Committee were present at the AGM, and certain Directors were
present at the SGM to answer the shareholders’ questions.

— Under code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should at least annually hold meetings with non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors) without
the executive directors present. Due to the change of chairman of
the Board during the Reporting Year and various other business
engagement, the Chairman of the Board did not meet up with
the non-executive Directors during the Reporting Year. The new
Chairman of the Board will come up with a meeting date with the
non-executive Directors as earliest as possible to make sure that
they can meet without other executive Directors present in the
reporting year of 2019.

— Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors and non-executive director should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders. During the Reporting Year, not all the
independent non-executive Directors and the non-executive
Director attend the AGM and the SGM. The Company will
finalize and inform the dates of the general meetings as earliest
as possible to make sure that the independent non-executive
Directors can attend the general meetings in future.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & %



EEETERRS
AATERM LR FIR EFRTAESR

BTEFRZZORESTR (RETA]) - ERE
FETRFRHZHETTR - MELARERR -
MEBEEFBRARENBE_Z—\F+A=+—
BUEBEFEAN-—BEETHRET -

ARARRBABREFNTEASEFHRE2FE
BRREMBEERARAREMB AR (REAH
[(AEE]) 2R REEABBRETRESTR - )
AWM ILERZEST AT REL

EEEHE
RBEFERARBEAFTHREB AL  BROBEL
HEREZEARRFRTEERERE AT —\F
NA—BREM: ()RELE ROERE - BF
Tt ERBRBEEDRBZEARPTES H_Z
—N\FENA—BHBER: Kii)AEMLEE  RRE
A [MBRATSE A - B8 B8 ¢ % A& RJorge Edgar Jose
Mufiz Ziches R £ BHE AR B EE BT — \F
NAZ+TZARERIN ES AR 8T E
B EERANTNERESEAR  URAEKA
BRI NS - HEHERK

BITES
BERE(LE)
SRR (AT
RUESEE
B+

R R 5

R A%E

BYFHITES
PRBER 52
ELR L
RER L

AARIBE=ZBBIUIFERITTES  HESEKEA
B=prz— IO EZBIUFHNTEETELEFEE
CEEXSHERN KB LEEYEE R
BEMNE -BE-_T—\F+_A=+—HLE
BFEE  ARal—HET EMHRREII0NERE
3mu1 c RIEMITERYBYFRTEFDHEA

ANRIFIMIREEH  BEME  EEREZADH
B IR R ER IE AL -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & %

PORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding the
Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2018 after specific enquiry.

The Company believes that the current procedures to remind all
Directors and senior management of the Company and it subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) to follow strictly with the Model Code prior to
publication of the Group’s interim and final results remain sufficient to
prevent non-compliance with the Model Code.

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the Reporting Year and up to the date of this Annual Report,
except (i) Mr. Fu Kwan was appointed as an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company with effect from 1 August 2018; (ii) each of
Mr. Zhang Jian, Mr. Zhang Bishu, Ms. Liu Jing and Mr. Chan Yeuk was
appointed as an executive Director with effect from 1 August 2018;
and (iiij each of Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He, Mr. Zhang Min, Mr. Xiang
Xianhong, Mr. Lei Shuguang and Mr. Jorge Edgar Jose Mufiiz Ziches
was resigned as Director of the Company with effect from 22 August
2018, there was no change in the structure of the Board, which
currently comprises nine Directors and is of the opinion that it has a
balance of skill and experience based on the following composition:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Kwan (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Jian (General manager)
Mr. Zhang Bishu

Ms. Liu Jing

Mr. Chan Yeuk

Mr. Zhou Jianren

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Cheung Ka Wai

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board. At least one of the independent
non-executive Directors possess appropriate professional qualification
and/ or experience in accounting and/or related financial management
expertise. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules. Each non-executive Director or independent non-executive
Director has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
period of two years until terminated in accordance with the terms and
conditions specified therein.
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 16 to
19 of this Annual Report. Save as disclosed therein, there are no
other relationship (including financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships among members of the Board. The Board
has received from each independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independence and considers that they are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as
the operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review
and approve the Group’s annual and interim results, as well as
corporate governance, financial, capital, remuneration and mergers and
acquisition matters. During the year under review, six Board meetings,
an AGM and a SGM were held. The attendance of each Director at the
Board meetings and the general meetings is set out as follows:

HE/BTEERY
Meetings Attended/Held*

Exg BRE RE

Board BEXRE KEAE
EZ Directors Meeting AGM SGM
HTES Executive Directors
BEXER=_ZE-N\ENA—-HZMA) Mr. Fu Kwan (appointed on 1 August 2018) 01 0/0 0/0
RELE(RZE-NFNA—BZM) Mr. Zhang Jian (appointed on 1 August 2018) 11 0/0 0/0
RUERTE(RZE-NFNA—BZHA) Mr. Zhang Bishu (appointed on 1 August 2018) 171 0/0 0/0
A/ (MZE-NENA—BZH) Ms. Liu Jing (appointed on 1 August 2018) 11 0/0 0/0
BREE(RZZ-NENA-BZM) Mr. Chang Yeuk (appointed on 1 August 2018) 0/1 0/0 0/0
BEMEE(RZE-NENAZ+TZHBEE) M Zhou Chu Jian He (resigned on 22 August 2018) 2/5 0/1 0/1
RREEGE(R-E-NENA-T+ZHET) Mr. Zhang Min (resigned on 22 August 2018) 3/5 0/1 11
BEALE Mr. Zhou Jianren 3/6 1/1 11
MEALEE (R A\ENAZ+-HEME) M Xiang Xianhong (resigned on 22 August 2018) 5/5 0/1 0/
EEYEE(RZZ-NFNAZ+ZHEME) M Lei Shuguang (resigned on 22 August 2018) 5/5 11 11
FHTES Non-Executive Director
Jorge Edgar Jose Mufiiz Ziches: 4 Mr. Jorge Edgar Jose Mufiiz Ziches

(R=ZFE-NENAZFTZHEHT) (resigned on 22 August 2018) 2/5 0/1 0/1

BYEHTES Independent Non-Executive Directors
MEREE Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 6/6 11 0/1
ERTEE Mr. Cao Kuangyu 6/6 01 0/1
REELE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai 5/6 11 0/1

*OREEHARRTZEERE

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B A XA R DA

* It refers to number of meetings held during his/her tenure.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & %



A

Eéi&%if‘lﬂq &
B EER

KB EJHE m%%ﬁ
EH-

RIEZERTBZEEAE
2F EPE@&?F%% - RERER R
CEXRCUBREEENZ

EzgflenBReRBERRHELTIOKXEM-
EREMEESSR  IRBITA—BREERME
LR - AERESESRRTIEL=KRAES
BHemsREEMEBER  THMEESEH
#HONEBEMEBIAESSGEERER -

R

T%Miﬁaf%ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ_%%’*& Bggmai
HIEFMERFRIAMER - FFCB 2R R
RREREERMEES  UHREFFENRELE
REERTH EFAUARWERFES MR
% MARNEBARNEFEAER  BREBEFES

GREF RRWERABUENZIZESTLH
AR ARBREEERE -

ERER
EREFHRERESSNAURTEINAEEE
BOETEZS  BREABRILALN XAEER
EREE—TERN ARFCRNESTSRHTIN
MERER  REFSAURRERGABMALENE
BREMER  FHERBENFE -EFTAER
HRSARMENERMNZERMBE RS - Aw]
BAREBEFRUEFER  HINEBELARAN
KB UBRARAFHALERRENFE - AT
RAZREEETHRE -EFENCRAE  EFAH
BOTHEZRERSKBUEXER BRAAAR
BERNE

ESERERBEEREE

REBEE-_Z-/\F+_A=+—BLEFER HE
EWE%EE ZERESRERM - LR
HAKENEBAHRENIRE  ARMBARHE
MRAIRBEEEZEMEERE THBREREL -
ARRAMEFRHUHBBASEXBERAZEHEN
ﬁﬂ EERBECSAMIRREEERANRER

TSR &HER  UEBBETEEE - AR
ThaMﬁ BERDEZERHBEZINBREE
R -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & %

EEERRSE
PORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the Reporting Year, the Board has dealt with matters covering
mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual, interim and quarterly
results, internal control and risk assessment, corporate governance,
capital, finance and matters of general offers.

Notice of at least 14 days is given to all Directors in advance for regular
Board meetings. For other Board meetings, reasonable notice period
is given. Meeting agendas and other relevant information are normally
provided to the Directors at least 3 days in advance of the Board
meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional matters in
the agenda for Board meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all Board
and committee meetings which are recorded in sufficient detail about
the matters considered. Both draft and final versions of the minutes are
sent to all Directors for their comments and records. Directors have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary who is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board meeting procedures
are followed.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that
may have affected the Group’s business, including relevant rules and
regulations and are able to make further enquiries when necessary.
Sufficient explanation and information have been provided to the Board
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of financial and
other information put before it for approval. They also have unrestricted
access to the advices and services of the Company Secretary. A
monthly update which gives a balanced and concise assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient details
is provided to all Directors to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties. The Board has also agreed that the
Directors may seek independent professional advice in performing their
Directors’ duties at the Company’s expenses.

DIRECTORS INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the newly appointed
Directors were given an induction after their appointment so as to
ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the Group’s
business and of their duties and responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. The Company
provides regular updates on the business performance of the Group
to the Directors. The Directors are continually updated with legal and
regulatory developments, and the business and market changes to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefings
and professional development to Directors will be arranged whenever
necessary.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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K
RATSE AR ESEELEETHEE The Company encourages the participation of ongoing professional
BHAQNREE - BREZEER_F— )\iim%gﬁw trainings by individual Director at the Company’s expenses. The training
N2 BRI participation by individual Director during 2018 is summarised as
below:
HERE
3,/
-
Ene
Attending
induction
S MR training/
Reading seminars/
materials briefings
BiTES Executive Directors
BEEE (RZZE-N\FNA—BZE) Mr. Fu Kwan (appointed on 1 August 2018) v v
RETERZ-Z—NFNA—BZME) Mr. Zhang Jian (appointed on 1 August 2018) v/ v
RUELERZZE—NFNA—BZI) Mr. Zhang Bishu (appointed on 1 August 2018) v v
BTt (R NENA—BZME) Ms. Liu Jing (appointed on 1 August 2018) v v
BREE (RN_Z—-—N\FNA—BZME) Mr. Chan Yeuk (appointed on 1 August 2018) v/ v
FEMss(R-F-N\ENA-+-BEE) Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He (resigned on 22 August 2018) v =
RREE(RZE—NFNAZ+ZBET) Mr. Zhang Min (resigned on 22 August 2018) v =
BE#AEE Mr. Zhou Jianren v/ .
AEIEE (M- ZT—NENA-+-HEM) Mr Xang Xianhong (resigned on 22 August 2018) v =
EEXAAER_Z-NFNAZ-+-HEE) Mr Lei Shuguang (resigned on 22 August 2018) v/ -
FHTES Non-Executive Director
Jorge Edgar Jose Muniz Ziches’t £ Mr. Jorge Edgar Jose Muniz Ziches
(RZZE-NFENAZ+ZHEIT) (resigned on 22 August 2018) v =
UHHTES Independent Non-Executive Directors
MEREE Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert v/ v
BEHTEE Mr. Cao Kuangyu v/ =
RRELE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai v v
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BOARD RESPONSIBILITY

On top of the regulatory and statutory responsibilities, the main duties
of the Board include formulating strategy as well as monitoring and
controlling operating and financial performance of the Group. The
Board is also responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
have been consulted on major and material matters of the Company
and have been encouraged to make active contribution to the affairs
of the Board. All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company and are committed
to act in good faith and make decisions in the best interests of both
the Group and the shareholders of the Company. The Board delegates
day-to-day management of the businesses of the Group to the
management of the relevant principal divisions. The Company’s Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee have
been set up to assist the Board to discharge its duties and to oversee
particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. Al Committees have specific
functions and authority to examine issues and report to the Board with
recommendations. The final decisions are rested with the Board, unless
otherwise provided in terms of reference of the relevant Committees.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions as set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code and
has adopted the latest corporate governance code manual (including
continuous professional development of directors, the compliance of
the Model Code, etc) since March 2016. In addition, the Company’s
employee whistleblowing guidelines has also been in place since
March 2012. Liability insurance for the Company’s directors and senior
management was maintained by the Company with coverage for any
legal liabilities which may arise in the course of performing their duties.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN PREPARING
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 that give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Group in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Board is responsible for presenting a
balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s
performance and prospects. The Board was not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and,
therefore, the consolidated financial statements were prepared on a
going concern basis. The statement of the auditors of the Company
regarding their reporting responsibilities for the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 69
to 71 of this Annual Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The role of the chairman of the board and the chief executive officer
are segregated and are not exercised by the same individual. During
the Reporting Year, Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He had been the Chairman
until 1 August 2018 and Mr. Fu Kwan is appointed as the Chairman
starting from 1 August 2018 and they are responsible for the leadership
and the effective operation of the Board. Mr. Zhang Min had been the
Chief Executive Officer until 1 August 2018 and Mr. Zhang Jian is the
general manager of the Company and assumes the responsibility of
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company upon the resignation of
Mr. Zhang Min. They are responsible for the day-to-day management
of the businesses in all aspects effectively, the implementation of the
strategies approved by the Board, the development and formulation
of business plans, budgets and financial objectives for consideration
by the Board, and the establishment and maintenance of proper
internal controls and risk management systems with the support of the
Company’s Audit Committee.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors serve the relevant function of
bringing independent judgment on the development, performance and
risk management of the Group. Their presence and participation also
enable the Board to maintain good standards of compliance in financial
and other mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company and the Company. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has been appointed for a term of two years and subject to
retirement by rotation at annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. The independent non-executive
Directors are explicitly identified in all of the Company’s corporate
communications.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which would
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters including the
appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the Company. The
Board considers that the new Director(s) is expected to have expertise
in relevant area to make contribution to the Company and to have
sufficient time to participate in the decision making process of the
Company.

The executive Directors of the Company entered into service contracts
with the Company for terms of two or three years. In addition, each of
the independent non-executive Directors signed a letter of appointment
with the Company for a specific term of two years.

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, (i) any director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the next general
meeting of the Company after his/her appointment or (ii) any director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next annual general meeting of the Company. Any
Director appointed shall then be eligible for the re-election.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in 2005. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert, Mr. Cao Kuangyu
and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai. Mr. Cheung Ka Wai is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee. The principal responsibility of the
Remuneration Committee includes making recommendation to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and reviewing the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board. The remuneration of Directors are based on the skKill
and contribution in the Company’s affairs and are determined by
reference to duties and responsibilities of the executive Directors
after considering the Group’s performance and the prevailing market
situations including salaries paid by comparable companies. No
Director is involved in determining his own remuneration. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available at the
Company’s website.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, there was one meeting held
by the Remuneration Committee to review the remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management as well as the remuneration
policies for the Reporting Year. In addition, certain matters relating to
the remuneration of the executive Directors were approved by written
resolutions signed by all members of the Remuneration Committee.

Details of the remuneration paid to Directors and members of senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
disclosed in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

NBEFERN FEE€ 2 HEIBERETIMT - Attendance of the Remuneration Committee during the Reporting Year
is set out below:
HESBRE ETEBEXH
No. of Meetings attended/
24 Members No. of meeting held
REEiLE(EE) Mr. Cheung Ka Wai (Chairman) 1/1
MER A Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 0/1
BERMTEAE Mr. Cao Kuangyu 1/1
BEE&FzE= NOMINATION COMMITTEE
PN i = _iﬁﬁﬁi_ﬂm%%,\ @ . [AESE® The Company’s Nomination Committee was set up in 2012 to review
EHRT R EZAEAE - IEREZEE B AAM and make recommendations for new candidates to the Board. The
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Nomination Committee currently comprises two executive Directors
(Mr. Fu Kwan (chairman of the Nomination Committee) and Mr. Zhang
Jian) and three independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Lam
Man Sum, Albert, Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai). The
Nomination Committee will assess new candidates based on their
skills, experience and who, in its opinion, are able to make positive
contribution to the performance of the Board. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in 2013 which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Nomination
Committee is also responsible to review the policy and any measurable
objectives as may be adopted from time to time and to review the
progress on achieving the objectives. The Company seeks to achieve
board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities. The Company will also
take into account of its own business model and specific needs from
time to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.
Although the Board supports the principle of diversity, it currently does
not intend to fix a diversity quota for Board members appointment or
set a short term objective on gender diversity, for such policies may
compromise on the calibre of Directors.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no meetings
held by the Nomination Committee and the matters relating to (i)
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii)
nominating five new executive Directors; and (iii) reviewing biographies
of the candidates who would be appointed as new Directors of the
Company and made recommendation to the Board on the candidates
nominated for directorship were approved by written resolutions signed
by all members of the Nomination Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and currently comprises
three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Man
Sum, Albert, Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai, and is chaired
by Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert. The chairman of the Audit Committee
possesses appropriate professional qualifications and/or experience in
accounting and/or related financial management expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings in 2018 with 100% attendance
of its members. During the year, the Audit Committee provided
accounting and financial advices and recommendations to the Board
as well as reviewed the independence of external auditors and
relevant auditing matters. Also, the Audit Committee reviewed the risk
management and internal control system of the Group. The Group’s
unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2018 and
audited annual results for the year ended 31 December 2018 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee which was of the opinion that
the preparation of the relevant financial statements complied with the
applicable accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosure has been made.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. During
the Reporting Year, the fee in respect of audit service provided by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was approximately HK$950,000
(2017: HK$880,000). The fee paid/payable to HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited for non-audit services relating to assisting in reviewing
the disclosure of interim financial report was HK$285,000 (2017:
HK$200,000). The fee paid/payable to HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited for non-audit matters relating to professional services rendered
in connection with the composite document dated 1 August 2018 was
HK$158,950 (2017: nil).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibilities for the
establishment and maintenance of an adequate and effective risk
management and internal control system to safeguard the Group’s
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, and to protect the
interest of shareholders of the Company. Furthermore, the risk
management and internal control system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

On-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
significant risks of the Group has been established. Business units are
responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks associated
with their respective units. The results of evaluation will be reported
to management through regular internal meetings associated with the
list of risks identified and management’s assessment on the impact to
the Group. The Board discussed the risk identified and evaluates the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system.

The Group is of the view that an effective risk management and
internal control system is in place which encompasses sound control
environment, appropriate segregation of duties, well-defined policies
and monitoring procedures and is reviewed and enhanced by the
management at regular intervals.

The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good corporate
governance practices, risk management and internal control system.
In respect of the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group engaged
external consultants to perform review on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control system of the Group’s major
operating subsidiaries at least once a year and make recommendations
for improvement and strengthening of its risk management and internal
control system. Based on the reports on the findings from the external
consultants, the Board considered the Group’s risk management and
internal control system were effective during the year.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information, the
Company has formulated its guidelines, with an aim to ensure that the
insiders abide by the confidentiality requirement and fulfill the disclosure
obligation of the inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the company secretary
attended relevant professional training for not less than 15 hours.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, special general meetings may be
convened by the Board upon requisition by any shareholder holding not
less than one-tenth of the issued share capital of the Company and the
securities being held carrying the right of voting at any general meetings
of the Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business at 15/F, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (“Head Office”), specifying the
shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her contact details
and the proposal regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place
of business at its Head Office, specifying the shareholding information
of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/she
intends to put forward at general meeting regarding any specified
transaction/business and its supporting documents.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the company secretary at the Company’s head
office and principal place of business at its Head Office. Shareholders
may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2018.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Directors are aware of the importance of maintaining good relations
and communications with shareholders of the Company. The Company
continues to promote investor relations and communication with its
investors. The Company uses a range of communication tools, such as
annual general meetings, special general meetings, annual and interim
reports, various notices, announcements and circulars etc, to ensure its
shareholders are kept informed of the Company’s information.

The Company has maintained a website at http://macrolinkcapital.etnet.com.hk,
which serves as a platform for corporate communications with its
shareholders and the general public. All corporate communications
required under the Listing Rules are displayed (for documents
published in the previous 5 years) on the Company’s website, which
has established procedures to ensure timely update in compliance with
the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a new dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
in 2019. Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company may declare
and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company, provided
that the Group records a profit after tax and that the declaration and
distribution of dividends does not affect the normal operations of the
Group. The Company intends to pay out on annual dividend payment
for the then financial year after taking into consideration of, inter alia,
the following factors:

()  the Group’s financial results;
(i) the financial condition of the Group;

(i) future cash requirements and availability for business operations,
business strategies and future development needs;

(iv)  the availability of funds to meet the financial covenants of our
Group’s bank loans; and

(v) any other factors that our Board may consider appropriate.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 & %
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The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Act of Bermuda and the Bye-
Laws of the Company. Any final dividends declared by the Company
must be approved by an ordinary resolution of its shareholders at an
annual general meeting. The Board may from time to time pay to the
shareholders such interim and/or special dividends as it considers to be
justified by the profits of the Group.

Any declaration and/or payment of future dividends under the Dividend
Policy are/is subject to the Board’s determination that the same
would be in the best interests of the Group and the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. The Board endeavors to strike a balance
between the shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management
and the Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and may
exercise at its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period.
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

BB 31/F, Gloucester Tower
F IR The Landmark
FITE1158 11 Pedder Street
EMES Central

£ +4TKE31%E Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN
AS “JUNEFIELD DEPARTMENT STORE GROUP LIMITED”)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Macrolink
Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 206,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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AUDITORS' REPORT (continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that,
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

in our professional

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

AREBSFERERGAMBRRLMEEAR
REETREN  BEST@HREFTREHRES
MER -

HREZSR

Key audit matter

PRIERE LR BY 5 R 715 5 2 ol (B P 1

Impairment assessments on mining rights and
exploration and evaluation assets
REGE W BWMEMITT6 -

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

EXEERBEREARBRRTIGEEER_ZE—\FE+_H
=+—HZEEBES R4 /12,264,000 7T &% 17,772,000
7T (R EER BTG REL FEA) -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s mining rights and
exploration and evaluation assets as at 31 December 2018
were approximately HK$12,264,000 and HK$17,772,000
respectively before adjusting for the results of the
impairment assessment of the assets.

RBEEANBRLRFEEECRIESRASTHABRZ
4 R U AT A DA Bl BR T B B 1R HORUE R AT - BEE SRR
BARBREFHEEENBREHRZREELSS LR EM
BESTSKRUALRREBEZE (REFERBIR)BRRAEE
i B8 K 2 e

The carrying amounts of mining rights and exploration and
evaluation assets are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Determining whether
there is any indication of impairment of the carrying
amounts of mining rights and exploration and evaluation
assets as at the end of the reporting period, and the
extent of impairment loss if such indication exists, require
significant judgement.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

5 L0t E 1R B B IR DA SR B IR K w5 B A 1T RUE AT P
TZRERFEHE:
Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessments on mining rights and exploration and evaluation
assets included:

s HEBENRAENR ULKEREREEFHUSATE
MEFROEE - EEBIRREEANOERT - FHHER
BHETRRERR
Discussing indicators of impairment with the
management and challenging the management’s views
about the existence or non-existence of indicators of
impairment. Where such indicators were identified,
assessing the impairment testing performed by
management;

e REE BERECZEHERRKESZYH BEK
HEREERMNNREELEEM
Assessing management’s identification of CGUs
based on the Group’s accounting policies and our
understanding of the Group’s business;

B R 15 2 IR AR Y

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oEBR A AR R DA

65



66

BB RE (K
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REP

v

FREEXZEE(E)
BREXEE

Key audit matter
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For the purpose of assessing impairment, mining rights
and exploration and evaluation assets are allocated to
cash-generating units (“CGUs”). The recoverable amounts
of the CGUs as at 31 December 2018 were determined
by management based on value-in-use calculations using
cash flow projections. In carrying out the impairment
assessments, significant judgements were required to be
exercised to appropriately identify the respective CGUs to
which mining rights and exploration and evaluation assets
belong and to determine the key assumptions, including
operating margins, growth rates and discount rates, to be
used in the preparation of the cash flow projections and
the value-in-use calculations.

HRETRER G Bt EREGEBERXARRRE
& 18 R 20478,865,0008 7T * LA IR KT E ERRE S
HEMOR

As a result of the impairment assessment, impairment
loss amounting to approximately HK$8,865,000 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
to write down the carrying amounts of exploration and
evaluation assets.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
EECERNMNEERRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

TEERERMACEREBEFE (BEREEASE)
Assessing the value-in-use calculations, including the
methodologies adopted by the management;

BEBETSENEBRITENBT G RANARRE (B8
KEMBER ERERRE) 7B

Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
adopted (including operating margins, growth rates and
discount rates) based on our knowledge of the business
and industry;

HIRWARB R FHERE (MK ERE
EEZEEM

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and considering the reasonableness
of these budgets;

B EESERGEMZBED EAREEHE &
Evaluation of the independent professional qualified
valuer’'s competence, capabilities and objectivity; and
ZEAEERBHESTEMAREZRERRR 26 #
1 e

Engaging a valuation expert in assisting us to assess the
methodology used and the appropriateness of the key
assumptions.
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Key audit matter

BREYFEZ1GE
Valuation of investment properties
DEEZEAVBHHRRM T4 -

Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

ERERE SEEEREVEN-_ZE-/N\F+tA=1+—
HZ RFEART74,367,0008 T MEEVERBZE_FT
—N\F+ZRA=+—BIFEZAFEKZ 885000/ T
REEEEREZAAR ERREMEBISE LN 4E -
FREMFENEERBEGERERAARMANE TRE -
ZEBRITHETEARTZE MHEBERERTEEARE
E-EEBEZRIERBREPERT 2 TRIEL 28
R o

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties to be approximately HK$74,367,000
as at 31 December 2018 with fair value gains on
investment properties for the year ended 31 December
2018 recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss of approximately HK$885,000. Independent external
valuation was obtained in respect of the investment
properties. The valuation of the investment properties
is dependent on certain assumptions adopted in the
valuation process, which are subject to uncertainties
and might materially differ from the actual results.
Reasonable consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

EEZBERNMEERARERSER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERNEREBHREMECHEMETZERFBE
Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of
investment properties included:

e IEBUEESERGEMZIBEL  EOREEIL
Evaluation of the independent professional qualified
valuer’s competence, capabilities and objectivity;

s ZEMEZRMNHESFHAEMARZRBERRZGHE
t R
Engaging a valuation expert in assisting us to assess the
methodology used and the appropriateness of the key
assumptions; and

o REFAE AR ERIERABMKT -
Checking on the accuracy and relevance of the input
data used.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REP
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITORS' REPORT (continued)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REP
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITORS’' REPORT (continued)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Lo Kin Kei.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Kin Kei
Practising Certificate Number: P06413
Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT O
BE-Z—/\F+-A=+—HIFE GETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-N\E —E—tF
2018 2017
Bt it TET FHT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
30 Revenue & 184,704 36,275
$H & R R KA Cost of sales and services (178,252) (31,038)
E F Gross profit 6,452 5,237
H Ao Yo A K & Other income and gains 5 5,222 21,728
THER Administrative expenses (58,506) (46,374)
Hige Other operating expenses (46,520) (34,603)
KEMERATFEKE Fair value gains on investment properties 14 885 5,422
HEHIEERE 2 = Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investment = 4,394
B & EREEE Impairment loss on other intangible assets 16 (37,110) (14,782)
KREBE Operating loss 6 (129,577) (58,983)
B 75 B AR Finance costs 7 (10,088) (4,908)
MRV AIEE Loss before tax (139,665) (63,891)
PTISHE % Income tax credit 10 7,765 1,029
FEEE Loss for the year (131,900) (62,862)
FEAE - Attributable to:
ZANYNECIE 2N Owners of the Company (111,784) (44,895)
IEE R = Non-controlling interests (20,116) (17,967)
(131,900) (62,862)
ARAFEBAELBREE Loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company 11
AR R (FRREN) Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) (10.61) (4.29)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BEZZ - A\Ft__A=t—HLEFEUALETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-N\F —E—+4F
2018 2017
TER FH T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEEE Loss for the year (131,900) (62,862)
Htr2mE (%) ki (HIBRBIE) Other comprehensive (expense)/income,
net of tax
B TEE DB LRk HA - Iltems that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
BATEFAEMEMKZEZ Change in fair value of equity investments at
AT E 2 A FEEE fair value through other comprehensive
income (1,556) =
B - BE REEAR Gain on revaluation upon reclassification from
T B ERIBEN property, plant and equipment and prepaid
\*Ex?y\ﬁ%%&z%ﬁ U 2§ land lease payments to investment properties = 2,744
REWE BB REHAR Deferred tax liability on recognition of gain on
?Eﬁii@??ﬂ%%’f\lﬁi%ﬁ | revaluation upon reclassification from property,
2B ER 2 EHWEEFT plant and equipment and prepaid land lease
EEXCZRERBARE payments to investment properties - (1,612
(1,556) 1,132
HERfEEH B FE=IEE - Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
ARHERE AT EEZS Change in fair value of available-for-sale
investment - 2,275
MHEHEEREETTERN Reclassification adjustments relating to
DR disposal of available-for-sale investment - (4,519)
RMEBINEBEECIELZ5 Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations (2,441) 13,904
(2,441) 11,660
FEHM2@E(BAX), Other comprehensive (expense)/income
Wz (ERBIE) for the year, net of tax (3,997) 12,792
FEZHMAXAE Total comprehensive expense for the year (135,897) (50,070)
FEAS - Attributable to:
KABHEE A Owners of the Company (113,268) (37,002)
FEVERR 42 21 Non-controlling interests (22,629) (13,068)
(135,897) (50,070)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT O
RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—8 UAETIE) _

At 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SITION

—E-N\F — Lt
2018 2017
B at FTET FH T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
RBEE Non-current assets
W - BWERFE Property, plant and equipment 13 122,045 149,400
LEME Investment properties 14 74,367 75,105
B+ FH & A Prepaid land lease payments 15 17,963 19,399
EMEEEE Other intangible assets 16 21,171 66,779
AHIHERE Available-for-sale investment 17 = 2,064
BWATESAHEMEEUEZ 2  Equity investments at fair value
AR A& & through other comprehensive income 18 508 -
REFRIBE = Deferred tax assets 32 349 357
FERBEERE Total non-current assets 236,403 313,104
REBEE Current assets
mMEZRSE Stock of properties 19 3,411 5,768
B Inventories 20 15,794 12,829
FERE R Loan receivable 21 = 397
JFEWAR R Accounts receivable 22 1,300 1,105
TEfFRIE Bz%& Prepayments, deposits and other
H b & W 5K receivables 23 22,929 58,473
F%Hﬁlf"ﬁ?éﬁ’&ﬁ%’\lﬁ Amounts due from related companies 24 12,656 13,196
FRBERRRATERE 2 Financial instruments at fair value
TRIA through profit or loss 26 - 1,047
A @ A IR Tax recoverable - 86
Be RIBTES Cash and bank balances 27 100,901 34,290
MEBEEMLE Total current assets 156,991 127,191
REEE Current liabilities
FERTBR SR Accounts payable 28 7,028 5,169
Hab e B R ERT & Other payables and accruals 29 45,969 47,612
FFERITREMEER Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 31 34,469 9,728
FES B AR YRR A R R IE Amount due to the ultimate holding
company 25 - 29
& 1<) B 3 R R U Amounts due to related companies 25 3,780 3,818
FENBLIE Tax payable 6,562 6,428
mEBAEEE Total current liabilities 97,808 72,784
REBEEFE Net current assets 59,183 54,407
EELERADAERS Total assets less current liabilities 295,586 367,511

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ANCIAL POSITION (continued)

O ORZZE-N\FE+-A=+—HAERIE)
At 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CONSOLIDATED STA

—E-N\E —E—tF
2018 2017
B at FET FH T
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERBEE Non-current liabilities
SERITKREMEE Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 31 2,512 31,196
EERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 32 33,207 41,667
FEnBaBRE Total non-current liabilities 35,719 72,863
EEFE Net assets 259,867 294,648
= Equity
ARATEBANEMLER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
% 2 Share capital 33 120,625 104,540
& Reserves &5 109,059 137,296
229,684 241,836
IR = Non-controlling interests 30,183 52,812
mES Total equity 259,867 294,648

SEMBERER-_ZT—NLE=ZFA_++HE=Z=E The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised

e ERBERETHEUATESEAREST SRR for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2019 and are signed on
its behalf by:
BE RE
Fu Kwan Zhang Jian
o= 5%
Director Director

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT O
BE—T—\F+-A=+—BIFE ETEIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

KRAREARLE
Atributable to owners of the Company
i ERE RE hz 3
RE  REGEE  RBEE BE  EREE  EREE  RBRE  GEEA & HiREs s
Share Statutory Share~ Investments Property Exchange Non-
Share premium surplus opfion ~ revaluation  revaluation ~ fluctuation Retained controling Total
capital account Tesenve Tesene resenve TEserve Tesenve proffts Total inferests equity
TEn Thn T Tt Thn Thn T T Thn TR Tt
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK§ 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Wi23) Hiz)
(Note 33) (Note 35)
RZ5-tE-5-A At 1 January 2017 104,540 78,399 18,380 1,673 3439 - (2,488 74.8% 218,838 65,880 344718
b LET Proftor loss - - - - - - IR 1Y N R 7]
Rb2ERE /(8% Other comprehensive income/
(NIB%E) (expense), net of tax
8% BEREENR (ain on revaluaton upon reclassifcaton
B tHAERRER from property, plant and equipment
ABERENZHL and prepaid and lease payments
Bfths fo investment propertes = = - - - 274 . i 274 _ 274
BAENE BRRAE Deferred tax iabity on recognition
WRERTHAERE of gan on revaluation upon
ENRERENZK reclassifcation rom property, plant
LERNERELZE and equipment and
EHEak prepaic land lease payments
o investment properties - - - - - (1,612) - - (1612) - (1.612)
IEEERE ATE Change in far vlug of
£ avaleble-for-s2le imiesiment - - - - 2075 - - - 2075 - 2075
ERELETfEE Reclassffication adjustments
REZENAERE relatng to disposal of
avallable-for-sale investment - - - - (4519 - - - (4519 - (4.519)
BEBNEBEEZ Exchange differences on
ERER Hranslation of foreign operations - - - - - - 9,005 - 9,005 4899 13904
EE2M(B%)/WHEBE  Total comprehensive (expense)/
(NBHE) income for the year, net of tax - - - - (2,244) 1,132 9005 (44,895) (37,00 (13,068) (30,070)
WZE-tETZA=T-F  At31December 2017 104,540 78,399 18,380 1673 1,1% 1,132 6,517 30,000 241,836 52,812 294,648
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ANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
BEZZ - A\Ft__A=t—HLFEUAETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
KDAREARE
Attributable to owners of the Company
#ATE
18R ie  BRE RE AR S Bl REEA/
Bt RfEER  EERE  2REE BE EEEE 2EWERE  EEEE  RERE  (2HER) it EREE 8

CONSOLIDATED STA

Fair value
through other Retained
Share  Convertible  Statutory Share Investments comprehensive  Property  Exchange profits/ Non-
Share  premium bonds surplus option  revaluation income revaluation ~fluctuation (accumulated controlling Total
capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve loss) Total interests equity

Tén  fén  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn Tén  fén  fén TR TEr  TEr  TER
HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000

%) Wiz (Wdw)
(Note 33) (Note 30)  (Note 35)
WZE-tETZA=T-B At31 December 2017 104,540 78,399 - 18,380 1,673 1,19 - 1,132 6,517 30,000 241,836 52,812 294,648
REEEURASEE  Eflct of adoption
E95HTE of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 9 - - - - - 1% - - w0 - (480
H-E-NE-B-H At 1 January 2018 (restated)

(&E3)) 104,540 78,399 - 18,380 1,673 - 1,19 1,132 6,517 29520 241,356 52,812 294,168
BHEER Profit or loss - - - - - - - - - (111,784 (111,784) (20,116)  (131,900)
Bf2E(E%X)/WE  Other comprehensive

(MBHE) (expense)/income, net of tax
BATETALBZR Changg in far value of equity

Wi RaRE2 investments at fair vlue through

ATERY other comprehensive income - - - - - - (1,556) - - - (1,556) - (1,556)
BERNSREE Exchange aiferences on

JENEE translation of orelgn operations - - - - - - - - n - 1 (2,519) (2,441)
EE2F (M%) /WHEE  Total comprehensive

(1R%2) (expense)/income

for the year, net of tax - - - - - - (1,556) - 0 (11784 (113,268 (22,629)  (135,:897)
KauhREs Issuance of convertible honds - - 19,266 - - - - - - - 19,266 - 19,266
TAREFETER Convertble bonds issuance

BXpeNses - - (241) - - - - - - - (241) - (241)
ThRERESS Conversion of convertible bonds 16,085 85,511 (18,462) - - - - - - - 83,134 - 83,134
TAREFOEERE  Defered tax on convertiole bonds - - (563 - - - - - - (563) - (563)
ik Cenclation of share options - - - - (1,673) - - - = 1673 - - -
WZE-NETZA=T-B At31 December 2018 120,625 163,910 - 18,380 - - (361) 1,132 6,589 (60,591) 229,684 30,183 259,867

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 # # w2 wasB®RALE



RERETRER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT O
BE_Z-/\F+-A=+—HBIFECAETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
B &t FERT FHT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
REXBEERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
B B AT B 48 Loss before tax (139,665) (63,891)
Bt T3S E L AR Adjustments for:
B 7 X AR Finance costs 7 10,088 4,908
FE M A Interest income (439) (319)
LEWME  BKE Gain on disposal of items of property,
REBHEEB 2 W2 plant and equipment (1,499) -
HEHEERE 2 e Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investment - (4,394)
REYERNFEYE Fair value gains on investment
properties 14 (885) (5,422)
BRBEEEATEER Fair value (gains)/losses on equity
ZRARERTEZ investments at fair value through
(Wa) B8 profit or loss (39) 104
M BEREEBEZITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 18,072 23,994
TE AN £ b FH S R85 Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments 15 455 446
HihmE & E 2 #H Amortisation of other intangible assets 16 6,333 8,651
MEEE - RENMKEEE Write-off of items of property,
plant and equipment 324 958
EMEREE 2 REEIE Impairment loss on other
intangible assets 16 37,110 14,782
JE UG BR 3Kk 2 Rk (B &5 18 5 BE Impairment loss on accounts
receivable-net 13 1,000
TENRIE - Ze R Impairment loss on prepayments,
Hibh e skI8 2 R EEE %%  deposits and other receivables-net 23,953 6,391
W WmERBENRMEEE  Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment 4,251 =
15 & MO Write-down of inventories 3,894 -
(38,034) (12,792)
MEFERED Decrease in stock of properties 2,264 -
FEEN Increase in inventories (6,859) (1,756)
BREREATE Decrease in equity investments at fair
RIB 7 B AN E R A value through profit or loss 1,086 328
& U B R (3 0n) SRk > (Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable (419) 7,785
FERNRIE - - ZE Rk Decrease in prepayments,
L th i W FRIB R deposits and other receivables 11,593 9,674
FEULREE N R A A (18 50) Decrease/(increase) in amounts
due from related companies 540 (410)
FERBRRIE 10 (Rt A>) Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable 1,859 (10,497)
Hih B R E B &R Decrease in other payables and accruals (2,205) (9,309)
FERTREE N Rl aE OFi L) /1€ hn (Decrease)/increase in amounts
due to related companies (38) 1,652
KREXBAARS Cash used in operations (30,213) (15,419)
B U R 17 F B Bank interest received 439 52
B8N I Overseas tax paid (401) (2,403)
ARREEE 2HESHREFE Net cash flows used in operating
activities (30,175) (17,770)
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 BABSKRER (&)
CONSOLIDA T OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(BT - \FT_A=1T—RHIEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
B &t FERT FHT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
RETHRESHRE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
B H S Interest received = 172
EEME WEKIRXEEE Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (812) (2,071)
LEWE  WERFK Proceeds from disposal of items of
HB Z 1S I8 property, plant and equipment 1,659 -
HERHHERE Proceeds from disposal of
B ZE available-for-sale investment - 6,025
NEHMBEFREE Additions to other intangible assets (124) (5,854)
Blnr EKRER Receipt of loan receivable 397 2,581
2[R 538 € Rk Decrease of restricted cash 10 498
RETHFB2ELAREFESHE Net cash flows from investing
activities 1,130 1,351
METHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
EAFE Interest paid (2,672) (2,358)
XNERZHER Loan arrangement fee paid (1,500) (1,500)
BT A R R AE 25 ) FT 5 508 Proceeds from issuance of
convertible bonds 100,000 =
TMmRESFEZETER Convertible bonds issuance expenses (1,250) -
BT 0] R (B & F B Convertible bonds interest paid (1,945) -
FTI% E B New other loan = 25,000
BERITER Repayment of bank loan (3,724) (1,241)
FES B 4RAE IR A A 008 (Decrease)/increase in amount
CRA) /4N due to the ultimate holding company (29) 3
BMETEFEB2EERETEEHE Net cash flows from financing
activities 88,880 19,904
ReRESEEY2EMFEE  NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 59,835 3,485
FU2HEERBESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 34,201 33,373
INESTE R B E) 2 & SRR Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net 6,786 (2,657)
FRZRERAESEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 100,822 34,201
REeRESEEYHBZSH  ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
R KIRITAER Cash and bank balances 27 100,901 34,290
o XRHER S Less: Restricted cash (79) (89)
TR EHRERERNA Cash and cash equivalents as
Z2REeNAEEFEEY stated in the consolidated statement of
cash flows 100,822 34,201

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATE
BE-T—\E+-A=+—AILFF GBTIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

RAREEER

MEMEABRAB(ARF]) D—HRA
REFAMAL 2 BRAF > EERHEEBH
BRHMARAR (BT LT o AAT]
REBZEAMMERR I BLERWE 2t
RAFHRE2EEFIANFER —HPHE -

RRATHEREK B AR (G ANEEH]) R
FEARENEZXHBOT

° MERBERER:

o BUERIHEREME
o EFEHWE

s BREES

o BRxRK: K&

o HERBERBTEM -

BEARTR_ZE—NFLHAZ+T=HE
TZBREBERAE LBBZERRER A
NAZ RN ZFEE A [Junefield Department
Store Group Limited | # & & [ Macrolink
Capital Holdings Limited | - 1 X 4 78 [ #7
EBMERERAR ] BERAT ELABER A
ZE_EZE -BREQAFGEMEERER =
E-NFNAZtHBLEXREZBEIMES
NE_ZTHEERE -

ARAREERE RZZE—N\FLtA=-F+RX
HZRl ARG ZEEBEERAR ARTRE
ERAR(—HEREBREZHES ([RBEREK
B ) M2 AR]) « MARAR)Z fREE
BARAREBEMKLZEE (EE)BR
AR ERKRES  AZN A E B E R BT
TEERAEMEE (R_E—\FENA=-+=
B BT N\FELtA-_TABEK
BREARRBHAZE-—N\NFA—H =
E-NERNA+T-ZBE=-_Z—N\FE+A
TH+ABEHEEBARARAIRNDZIAE AR
RAIZEEER AT REEER AR ER AR
EMEBAERAR ([FEBER ] - pIEHE
GBI IERBRAR) RELEXIKERR A
A MEDNRHESHEREBRE XS T
Az - M EHKRES FRIERAARRE
BRERHNTEEBELE(R_ZE—N\FNA—
BEXRE)
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section on pages 2 to 3 of this annual
report.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were involved in the following principal
activities:

° property investment and development;

o manufacture and sale of construction materials;
° securities investments;

° trading of mineral concentrates;

° coal mining; and

° sale of parts of mining equipment.

Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 23 July 2018, the English
name of the Company was changed from “Junefield Department
Store Group Limited” to “Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited”
and a Chinese name “¥T#EHEEARABR AR has been adopted
and registered as the secondary name of the Company.
The Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name and the
Certificate of Secondary Name were issued by the Register of
Companies in Bermuda on 20 August 2018.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, prior to 26 July
2018, the immediate holding company of the Company was Prime
Century Investments Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), and the ultimate holding company
of the Company was Junefield (Holdings) Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, and its ultimate controlling party was
Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He , the former chairman and former executive
director of the Company who resigned on 22 August 2018.
Since 26 July 2018 and pursuant to the announcements of the
Company dated 1 June 2018, 22 June 2018 and 26 July 2018 in
relation to the sale and purchase of shares in the Company, the
immediate holding company and the ultimate holding company
of the Company changed to Macrolink Group Limited (formerly
known as Macrolink International Holdings Limited, “Macrolink
Group”) and Truly Industry Investment Company Limited, which
are incorporated in Cayman Islands and BVI respectively, and its
ultimate controlling party changed to Mr. Fu Kwan, the chairman
and an executive director of the Company who was appointed on
1 August 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSO

B AU BB ERE (&)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHEZZE-N\FE+-_BA=1+—HIEFEE (LABTHE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. AIREEER (&) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
N ENGCIA= Information about subsidiaries
ARARZEEMBART ZERIT : Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
NN
Edi e BRORBERE PEfE Rz
BrRRkKEmE EER BAL TEXEK
Place of Issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity
NG registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
HERS
Directly held
Junefield Energy Holdings Limited RERZHS 1Em([ET]) 100 BB R
Junefield Energy Holdings Limited BVI United States dollars Investment holding
(HUSD”) 1
Topshine Reward Limited RERZHE 50,0003 7T 100 &
Topshine Reward Limited BVI USD50,000 Investment holding
MEBRBRRERERAR BB 5,000,0003% J© 100 REZEKR
Macrolink International Development Limited Hong Kong USD5,000,000 Investment holding
BEES
Indirectly held
O AR A BB 18T 100 BHERE
Best Yield Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Securities
investments
Compafiia Minera Caminante S.A.C. WE 10,000 B R/ 100 Bx - BE.
(TR®I) BR - R
B NS R
DA R AE B BR B R 15
Compania Minera Caminante S.A.C. Peru Peruvian Soles Searching,
(“Soles”) 10,000 prospection,
exploration,
development,
transport and sale
of coal and related
mining activities
ERERERAR BB 1,000,000/ 7T 100 MERE
Ever Park Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Property investment
ST ERARRAT BB 187 100 MERE
Golden Talent Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Property investment
Grade Honor Investments Limited RERZHS EV 100 1% & R
Grade Honor Investments Limited BVI USD1 Investment holding

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %
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CAMBBENT (&)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
BHE-_Z—N\E+-_A=+—AH1EFE (ABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

1. 2AREEER (#)

ATEMENTS (continued)

(continued)
MEB AR ZER () Information about subsidiaries (continued)
PN
FMmREL BROARBERE FE 1L RE 2
B R i i ER BAk TEEK
Place of Issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity
NGIER registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
BEEE (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
MAREEMERAA hE ARARE 11,000,000 7& 60 BEKHEREME
(DBmRE]) (H20) (THE) Manufacture and
Hunan Taiji Construction Material Co., Ltd. The People’s USD11,000,000 sale of construction
("Hunan Taiji") (Note (i) Republic of China materials
(HPRCH)
e () BRAE ([HE (BM) ] BB 28T 100 REER
Junefield (Building Material) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
(“Junefield Building Material”)
HBEECBREARAA BB 10,0007 7T 100 BHFRE
Junefield High Value Metals Investments Hong Kong HK$10,000 Securities
Limited investments
Junefield Metal Development S.A.C. & 28,000 100 BRE S REE
RERBZT MY
Junefield Metal Development S.A.C. Peru Soles 28,000 Trading of mineral
concentrates
and sale of parts of
mining equipment
Able Field Colombia S.A.S. Fwb 4,073,012,000 100 BREES
TR THRR Trading of mineral
Able Field Colombia S.A.S. Colombia Colombian Peso concentrates
4,073,012,000
ERAERAR ([EH]D BB 178 7T 100 BIEE S
Like Top Corporation Limited (“Like Top”) Hong Kong HK$1 Trading of mineral
concentrates
BEAR AR BB 178 7T 100 REZER
Link Wide Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B AEAXEFE R DA
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NOTES TO THE CONSO

B AU BB ERE (&)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHEZZE-N\FE+-_BA=1+—HIEFEE (LABTHE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. DAIREBER (8) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
MEB AR ZER () Information about subsidiaries (continued)
PN
FMmREL BROARBERE PE{h =
B R i i ER B TEEK
Place of Issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity
NGIER registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
BERE (8
Indirectly held (continued)
Lima Junefield Plaza S.A.C. B 7,848,316 5 100 EERER
FEHEEE
Lima Junefield Plaza S.A.C. Peru Soles7,848,316 Promotion and
development of real
estate projects
Minera RC S.A.C. e 7,286,874R 100 R
BhiR - B E
Eh R HE KK
AR BB R IE X715
Minera RC S.A.C. Peru Soles7,286,874 Searching,
prospection,
exploration,
development,
transport and sale
of coal and related
mining activities
Talent Note Limited HERIHS 3ETT 100 REEKR
Talent Note Limited BVI uUSD3 Investment holding
s (b R) B EKLBR DA (A 5() i 100,0003 7T 100 MERE
Junefield (Beijing) Property Agency Co., Ltd. PRC USD100,000 Property agency
(Note (i)
RN FE TERRAR AR (B a2(0) i 5,000,000 7T 100 BEE S
RN FER TEEREBR A (Note (i) PRC USD5,000,000 Trading of mineral
concentrates
Bt - Notes:

) EZMBAADREREEEIMALNAELE
i AWMBARASREFREZEIHANEBEL
-
EERBLERBINZARFNBRRHALE
BZAFERRAEAFENMEXRAEEE
EFECERRDY  -EFTRE - EHEEMBKH
BRAlz#BEREBERBRITE

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %

(i) The subsidiary is registered as a contractual joint venture under the PRC law.

(if) The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the
PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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CABMBREMS (&)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLFE UGB TINE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
21 RELEXE 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

HWEREMERRTIBEFAESTMAE These consolidated financial statements have been prepared

ATEMENTS (continued)

84
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in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial
statements also complied with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and equity investments which have been measured at
fair value. These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has

power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 &



NOTES TO THE CONSO
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CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHE T \F+_A=+—HILFE(ABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
HE—_Z—-N\EFE+-_A=1+—HILEE (LABTIE)

ATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.2
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with

HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28

2014-2016 Cycle

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 15, the adoption of the other new and revised
HKFRSs has had no material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The principal effects for adopting HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 15 are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for (i) the classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities, (i) expected credit losses (“ECL”)
for financial assets and (iii) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in HKFRS 9 i.e. applied the classification and
measurement requirements (including impairment) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been derecognised as at 1 January
2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised
as at 1 January 2018. The difference between the carrying
amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as
at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening retained profits
and other components of equity, without restating comparative
information.
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CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BHEZZ-N\F+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

NOTES TO THE CONSO

22 EFRRSBREKE (A)
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O eR T A (&)

DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three principal
classification categories: measured at amortised cost, at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and at fair value

@) RIEAFEGFABER ((HRAFERA through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). On initial recognition the Group
BaiR]) c RYIGERE - AEBEEEGR makes an election to designate the equity investments at FVTOCI

AEERBIEAFEF AR M E RS (FA]
BE) - AAFENREZSHNEME2EK
SR ARRETRMERN T AEREETT
HEEREN G BT A AR E R
HEEHRZEE . —BEHEE  REM2
m RS RDBEFR R FERE (TR
BE)  HEERBEHERL RHER  QF
BFE(TARD) PN RFSRERERE
A ETAE BB AL o RAS B U
1‘1‘ REVERFEBS - IRARE (TR0 B RIE

NFEFABSRERIIEAFEFARMER
Yas (A E)) W BN BmRPERSE
U A -

AR BB HA A R A FEF ABSRE
BEZEREBEERVIFERBTBMBEREER
FORREBEZ B 2D ENGE - BEYH
SEAFRABRCRBA D ERFE
iﬁméﬁii?/%.anﬁrﬁ,ﬁﬂ B3OSR L ME A RFEFT
R B RE LRI ERIE TR
$Tﬁ.ﬁr7\?§ﬁﬁﬂﬁzﬁﬁraﬂi%ﬁZﬁEﬂﬁ““

(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained profits. It is not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from equity investments,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI
(non-recycling), are recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

The Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost
and FVTPL continue with their respective classification and
measurements upon initial application of HKFRS 9. The
classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from HKAS 39,
except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of a financial
liability designated at FVTPL that is attributable to changes

BMEREATEES 2D EREMEE of that financial liabilities’ credit risk to be recognised in other
W AR (N EE) - A& B W EE[E comprehensive income (non-recycling). The Group does not have
EERAFEFABERZeHEE At any financial liabilities designated at FVTPL and therefore the new

BEENMACHASELETMAZE -
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requirement on financial liabilities does not have any impact on
the Group.
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ATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
22 Bt BREBHRIKE (&)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
Classification and measurement (continued)

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in HKAS 39 with ECL model. Under the ECL model,
it will no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to
recognise and measure either a 12-month expected credit loss
or a lifetime expected credit loss, depending on the asset and
the facts and circumstances. The Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9 for accounts receivable which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables. To measure the ECL, accounts
receivable has been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. For financial assets at
amortised cost other than accounts receivable, the Group applies
the general approach which is also referred to as the “three stage”
model. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

The following information sets out the impacts of adopting HKFRS
9 on the consolidated statement of financial position, including
the effect of replacing HKAS 39’s incurred credit loss calculations
with HKFRS 9’s expected credit losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

2.2

Classification and measurement (continued)

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under HKAS 39
and the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018

is as

follows. The following table shows the adjustments of the

Group recognised for individual line item and line items that were
not affected by the changes have not been included.

EBSEAE ERMBHREE
395RTE BEfS2E RUGEEFR BIE9 &
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
measurement Reclassification ECLs measurement
Kzt THER THET THER THER
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AHHERE Available-for-sale investment (i) 2,064 (2,064) - -
BATEFAHME2E  Equity investments at fair
Wik 2 RAKE value through other
comprehensive income (i) - 2,064 - 2,064
JE U R 3R Accounts receivable (i) 1,105 = (267) 838
BRZIE ReMEM  Prepayments, deposits
& W 08 and other receivables (iii) 58,473 - (213) 58,260
REEMFHEE Investments revaluation
reserve (i) 1,195 (1,195) - -
RAFEFAEME2ME  Fair value through other
Woas 2 s comprehensive income
reserve (i) - 1,195 - 1,195
RE & A Retained profits (ii) & (i) 30,000 = (480) 29,520
it - Notes:

(i)

(iii)

AEEBEERHEMEEREZINHEMBESSS
FTERIEIR D AR A HIHERE 2 IR FHERA
BERNTEEY  REAZEREWIFEEERER
BHTEEARARLE - RERERESHER
EXRAFH AR - RFEX 52,064,000/ 70,2 &
MEEAAHEEREEN S BERAFET AR
ftb 2 W = 2 AR E - i & 2 F8401,195,000
BTEREEGRRBEEN D BERATFEF AL
2HE 2 R o

BRARKER  AEBEREAEBHBREERFE
e ERARETFESRNEREEER
BREBEETEEREEEE - M BSREURTN=
T—N\F— A —BHRER A IN4267,0008 7T ©

ERBERERNFA  Ze REMR KRN @
BE ASEEREEMBHREENEORN—RK
TE WBREEZESREER T \F—A—
H #0 )8 (B B 32 I 49213,000/ 7T °
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(ii)

(ii)

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive income the fair
value changes of its non-trading equity investments previously classified
as available-for-sale investment under HKAS 39, as the investment is not
held for trading and not expected to be sold in the foreseeable future. As at
the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, financial assets with a fair value
of approximately HK$2,064,000 were reclassified from available-for-sale
investment to equity investments at FVTOCI and reserve amount of
approximately HK$1,195,000 were reclassified from the investments
revaluation reserve to the FVTOCI reserve.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach which uses lifetime
expected credit loss allowance to measure ECLs for accounts receivable.
This resulted in an increase of the loss allowance on 1 January 2018 by
approximately HK$267,000 for accounts receivable.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 general approach for financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables. This resulted
in an increase of the loss allowance on 1 January 2018 by approximately
HK$213,000 for these financial assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ATEMENTS (continued)

20 EHBEHHRILE (F) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

ERAUBHEZEDFESRMITE (8) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
R Impairment
TERIIR=ZZE—N\F-—A—BREEEE The following table reconciles the aggregate opening impairment
FT2E R ZE 3958 51T & A9 HA 70 6k (B 42 1 48 20 E1 4R allowances as at 1 January 2018 under HKAS 39 to the ECL
BREABMBHEERESRTENTBEEES allowances under HKFRS 9. Further details of ECL are disclosed
BRENYE BUEREEBENE—2 in notes 22 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

HEERA BB REN 22 R2BNRE -

RIE BB 8|

REZBGTE EERFEOFEFE

RISE39%% 5t E MY WREBEEER

HERE Bt E BiE

Impairment ECL

allowances allowances

under under

HKAS 39 Re-measurement HKFRS 9

FTHER FTHET THERT

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

JFE L2 BR 3R Accounts receivables 1,000 267 1,267
BREEENRIE Eek Financial assets included in prepayments,

HEmERZENCREE deposits and other receivables 161 213 374

1,161 480 1,641

90 MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
2 E ) N\FT+_A=1+—"HIEFE (ABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations
and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising
from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new
five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this standard recognised at
the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at
the date of initial application is recognised in the opening retained
profits (or other components of equity, as appropriate) and
comparative information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group
has elected to apply the standard retrospectively only to contracts
that are not completed at 1 January 2018.

Previously, revenue arising from provision of services was
recognised over time, whereas revenue from sale of goods was
generally recognised at a point in time when the risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods had passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised goods or service in the contract.
This may be at a single point in time or over time. HKFRS 15
identifies the following three situations in which control of the
promised goods or services is regarded as being transferred over
time:
A - When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

When the entity’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the entity and the entity
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into
any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity
recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service at a single
point in time, being when control has passed. Transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators that is
considered in determining when the transfer of control occurs.

The Group has the revenue which is recognised at a point in
time under HKFRS 15, namely (i) sale of mineral concentrates; (ii)
sale of properties; (i) sale of coal; and (iv) sale of parts of mining
equipment. Gross rental income, fair value changes on financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss and the provision of
aircraft sub-leasing services of the Group are specifically excluded
from the scope of HKFRS 15. Management has performed an
assessment and determined that the implementation of HKFRS 15
does not result in any significant impact on the Group’s financial
position and results of operations, except for more presentation
and disclosure requirements.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the
period between the transfer of the promised goods to the
customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction
prices for the time value of money.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration,
i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.2

2.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, a contract liability represents an entity’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the entity has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group recognised
consideration received from customers in advance as “deposits
received” which was included in “other payables and accruals”.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, “deposits received” amounting
to approximately HK$6,886,000 was separately recognised as
contract liabilities as at 1 January 2018 and continued to be
classified within the line item “other payables and accruals”.

As at 31 December 2018, under HKFRS 15, approximately
HK$2,090,000 was separately recognised as contract liabilities in
relation to the consideration received from customers in advance
and was classified within the line item “other payables and
accruals”.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?®

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKFRS 10

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material?
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017

Cycles'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

EN O
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash
flows, the Group currently presents operating lease payments as
operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing cash flows.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 using a modified
retrospective approach where the cumulative effect of initially
applying the standard is recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits and comparatives are
not restated. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total
non-cancellable operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$156,000, all falling due within one year. The Group expects
to account for these leases following the provisions of short term
leases. The adoption of HKFRS 16 is not expected to have a
material impact on the assets, liabilities and retained profits at the
date of initial application.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Other new or revised HKFRSs

The Group is in the process of making an assessment on what
the impact of the other new or revised HKFRSs is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:
Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets and investment properties), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)

(i

(ii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(il

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Not depreciated
20 to 30 years
Over the shorter of the lease terms

and 6 years
Plant and machinery 4 to 12 years
Office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 6 years
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building, leasehold
improvements and plant and machinery under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date
of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Mining rights

Mining rights are initially measured at cost. The carrying amount
of exploration and evaluation assets is reclassified to mining rights
when the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting
mineral resources are demonstrable. Mining rights with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any identified impairment losses. The mining rights with finite
useful lives are amortised on a unit of production basis over the
estimated economic reserve of the mine.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration
and evaluation assets are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Exploration and evaluation assets include the
cost of exploration rights and the expenditures incurred in the
search for mineral resources as well as the determination of the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting those
resources. When the technical feasibility and commercial viability
of extracting mineral resources become demonstrated, previously
recognised exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified as
either intangible assets or property, plant and equipment. These
assets are assessed for impairment before reclassification, and
any impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)
Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially

stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition
(applicable from 1 January 2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers

EECHEEUEARSRE - EBER to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
FTHRERENKRIEWRENERERE B flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
ESMEEEESWMERE ° result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
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assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of
the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as
for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised
in other comprehensive income is recycled to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with
net changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value profit or loss are also recognised as other income
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host;
a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid
contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the
case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include available-for-sale investment,
cash and bank balances, loan receivable, accounts receivable,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from related companies and financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oEBR A AR R DA

107



BEMBHRME (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLFE UGB TINE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
24 FTESHHEME () 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

ATEMENTS (continued)

REFHEMEREE (REFEBER
ERFIRBEBRAR-—F-—NF—A—
H Al B BUER) (8)

R E (&)
BERm KN FEREL L HEE
ERBERRATEREZEREE  BER
FEEZEMEERRERERRIETER
BEEATVTEREZEREE 2REEMN
NEMHERBNMEE  BoBRRKEER
Bz MTETRBREIRZBARNITE
TR BERFBERE HESFRIETAE
MR T A (E&REFE S EAFEI9H) br
B o

FEESERATEREZERMEELERAY
BRAKRFARFEIR  ERAFEESHF
BEERAFEESFERBNERBLER
N2 - ZEFXFEEHFELITIEEZE
CREEMS2EMNREHNE  BRAKE
HMEDRBETXRAERCGERR=-F
—N\E—A— B8 2 HRER -

RS R EER/BEEBRRR AT ERERE
ZeBMEEENSEAANEEEFTEER
SEHERIE3RIE TRERIEE °

EBRARIARTEIANKERE LR
REETERLETIEE  AREAFIALE
KEEBEIREREEBEGRAFERE
BAREERTETANERBIITETLA
AEWRAFERE ZERARNTET
ATV AVEE MEAFEZEH NG
EEARTHR - EHAEHESNE RIKK
HREPHESTHRRERHRERED
B g eREEREEBRRaR A TEREE
BRIEH DR - TEET -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

B E A AR 2 H

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments as
defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with
positive net changes in fair value and negative net changes in fair
value presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
These net fair value changes do not include any dividends or
interest earned on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition
(applicable before 1 January 2018)” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading
or designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on

B A - BERFREHIWAGEERRLZ acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
ET‘M&)\&H&ZE& cREEAZEBEELS the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
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is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
finance costs for loans and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investment

Available-for-sale financial investment is non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt
securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale
are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities
in this category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investment
is subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as other income
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition
(applicable before 1 January 2018)” below.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investment (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investment is stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has
the ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale
category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any previous
gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest rate. Any difference between the new
amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If
the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a passthrough arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for accounts receivable and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For account receivables and contract assets that do not contain
a significant financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group calculates ECLs of accounts receivable that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to other expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investment

For available-for-sale financial investment, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investment (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss — is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates,
among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value
of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, amount due to the ultimate holding
company and amounts due to related companies.
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using market rate for equivalent
non-convertible liability; and this amount is carried as a long
term liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included
in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying
amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent
years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible bonds based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when
the instruments are first recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out or weighted average
basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.
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POLICIES (continued)
Stock of properties

Stock of properties including completed properties, which are
held-for-trading, is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

The cost of completed properties for sale is determined by
apportionment of the total development costs, including
borrowing costs capitalised, attributable to unsold units. Net
realisable value is estimated by the management of the Group
based on prevailing market conditions, which represents the
estimated selling price less estimated costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

The amount of any write-down of or provision for completed
properties held for sale is recognised as an expense in the period
when the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down or provision arising from an increase in net
realisable value is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associate, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associate, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oEBR A AR R DA

121



122

CAMBBENT (&)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
HE—_Z—-N\EFE+-_A=1+—HILEE (LABTIE)

ATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
24 FTESHBRME (&)

Frig®t (&)

ERERBEE CIREE  ESERSHREE
REFTLAER - B TBARMERN G A
REN 2B HBECHEAEEE - BIH
RRIER IR B ERREE - R THR ZEER
BEERBERSHEGERE TAENE
B - A & % SR B A A LA MR [ 2 B ok &R
DHEBEEHRREE  MERRTHEIAZE
EMIHEE °

BREEIFEABZHEBEMERZH
X eRFEERTERBEENAR AN
BEHRERKDRRMRAB LD ERM
ZHER(RBER) BEE -

EEAKEE A QENITEMNA K AK A
BERANMBAAGEEN AREEHEBEEE
HRERBREER R BB RF—EHR
BEXNERRARMBRAEANBRERIER
EXEEFTRAEEIFER  RIRFHREE
BENBARGABEREEXRFEREER
BERABZTRARGERMER  AEEHREA
BESEREHARGEA] TEE -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

A

i

B E A AR 2 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the same taxation
entity and the same taxable authority or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services
to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

Revenue from sale of mineral concentrates, coal and parts of
mining equipment is recognised at a point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of
the goods.

Revenue from sale of properties are recognised when effective
control of ownership of the properties is transferred to the buyer,
which is the point in time upon completion of the transfer of legal
title to the buyer.
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POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018) (continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Management fee income is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January
2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of aircraft sub-leasing services, when
such services are rendered;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Contract assets (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.
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POLICIES (continued)
Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received a consideration
(or an amount of consideration that is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays the consideration before the Group transfers
goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract.

Contract costs (applicable from 1 January 2018)

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an
asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis
that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to which the
asset related is recognised. Other contract costs are expensed as
incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operated a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. Further details of share options are given in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair value
of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award
and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise benéficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operates in the
PRC, Peru and Ecuador are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.
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POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

S & Foreign currencies

;z_%rﬁ(z,\ﬁﬂ%iﬁgeﬁ;‘%ﬁiﬁlj W=V These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
RNAIZNERZIE ﬁﬁ‘ NEBRNEETER Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation

EAEZINGEER MEBEEZHEHRERA currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional

XIEB ﬁ]ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬂ]ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ%aﬁ'z AEERNZ currency and items included in the financial statements of each

ERZINERGERIERZBHSTE 2R entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
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currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency (Hong Kong dollars) at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts
receivable and other financial assets

To measure the expected credit losses, accounts receivable has
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due, taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available. For
financial assets at amortised cost other than accounts receivable,
the Group applies the general approach which is also referred to
the “three stage” model. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not
be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s accounts receivable
and financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables are disclosed in note 22 and note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. EAREFHHERLS(E) 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Y2 BE N2 O (& ER Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
AREBEEEEASE T MstrERFHELE The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
BT ERS - bt DARERIEE R ERE and consequently related depreciation charges. This estimate is
M BMELKZEER]FEAFHANAT based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
LEMIEL - Erl e A M A RFEF L property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
FRARENITERSRMEITEMA & KE It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
£ MraERAFEHERZAINGET AR AIE and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
HBESRSITER S & RTAEsE R Management will increase the deprecation charge where useful
BE el & /) FE SR BE & 2 i EE s MURL - W EE - lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off
MELEEN_ZE—\F+_A=+—"H8B2 or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
BRI (B4 A122,045,0008 L (ZE —+4F : have been abandoned or sold. The carrying amount of property,
149,400,000/87T) < E — FEBEH NG S B plant and equipment at 31 December 2018 is approximately
MR8 HK$122,045,000 (2017: HK$149,400,000). Further details are
included in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
HBMEEEE — IRIBEELR B RETF Impairment of other intangible assets - Mining
EEEZHE rights and exploration and evaluation assets
REEANDELFHEEZ RBESRE The carrying amounts of mining rights and exploration and
BB R 2 EE R s E LW E BRE A evaluation assets are reviewed for impairment when events or
RELRERT AEBESEREMEEELE changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
CEENEBANHEZEEERIEARED R be recoverable. The Group considers all facts and circumstances
PAE TR M DA K B iR AT B E < BR T {8 7 Bt occurred to judge whether these facts and circumstances
ZHEBAEFYE S (BB RE) - fl i E would suggest that the carrying amounts of mining rights and
SHAEEANTERLEXKARFEREER®N exploration and evaluation assets may exceed their recoverable
E2BEE FHEENTMHERAEEFT amounts (i.e. impaired). The recoverable amount is the higher of
HREREELEMNAHRRRERE its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Estimating
IR ERBSENTRERUEZZER SRS the value in use requires the Group to estimate the expected
RIRRERE - E—THBHARNGRE T HRE future cash flows from the cash-generating units and to choose
HisE16 o a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. Further details are included in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
BEHEEEE—(REFSA.2ZHE Impairment of other intangible asset - Supplier
contract
R EHEERE SEBEMEZEEHEM At the end of the reporting period, management reconsidered
EFEE-HREEESAZAIKEIIER @ £30 the recoverability of the other intangible asset — supplier contract
MREFHBELERE RETHEBRAGAOZ after deducting the accumulated amortisation and impairment.
e eEREZELERN G KA E - Significant estimation and judgement are required in determining
AEBEELHEEEEOBRREHEHELD the recoverable amount of the supplier contract. The Group has
28,245,000/ 7T ° ftFERE R « L R EF A recognised full impairment of approximately HK$28,245,000 in
H BN A IS & M 5E16(3) 240 ° relation to the supplier contract. Details of the circumstances,
shortage of supply, arbitrations and litigation are set out in notes
16(i) and 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties of the Group are stated at fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2.4
to the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of
investment properties at 31 December 2018 was approximately
HK$74,367,000 (2017: HK$75,105,000). The fair value of
investment properties, set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements, are determined with reference to a valuation
performed by an independent professional qualified valuer. Such
valuations are made based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainties and might materially differ from the actual
results. In making the judgement, reasonable consideration has
been given to the underlying assumptions that are mainly based
on market condition existing at the end of the reporting period.
These estimates are compared to actual market data and actual
transactions in the market.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December 2018
was approximately HK$349,000 (2017: HK$357,000). Further
details are included in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
BE_Z-/\F+-A=+—HBIFECAETIE)
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B R 3% B SE ()

ATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4.

7 EE
RERENMS  AEEREBECZER
RBHH BT AELREEDH

(@) MERERBERIE HEHBERHEE
e

b) HERHEZEMHIE  LERER
HEBE

0 BHEREDH WELMEFKRE

(d RBBEEZOVHM KEHRBEES:

() HRFRDE  HERBRFTE R
ERBEARBREHEERR &

HoE EERERET
R D HRS -

ERIFSHE &

EEEBYERAER 2LEDIELS

BEHAEBAERSMERRRTHZIRE -

ERIBTIBE2HRD A, EETE ﬁﬁ
2R 20 F 85 18 Bl A K 5 B Bk B AT s
7 EEFE - CHAZRBRHIDER,BIEZ
STEAFNEARNEE ZBRBAIEEFTER RN —
B BB EL T ARITHBERARE
R DB UL A R 2~ B TS AR AR R & A i

HERBZWHEAREMARD B Z MR ER
REEER -
DHEETERECHEAEE He kA

ZEBY - EUREER R FIENRE MR DB
ERERLEEBEE ARARFTEEDNRSE
BEEEE -

DHEETEFEFERTREMES B
R RBFHIA - BN BEERBFIENLR
HMANEARERENEEEE  ARZE
BENREEEEER -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

HoOE

B & X A R 2 A

4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has six reportable
and operating segments as follows:

(@) the property investment and development segment engages
in leasing and sale of properties;

(b)  the manufacture and sale of construction materials segment
engages in the manufacture and sale of slag powder;

(c) the securities investments segment engages in investing in
listed securities;

(d) the trading of mineral concentrates segment engages in the
trading of mineral concentrates;

(e) the coal mining segment engages in the exploration and
development of coal mines concessions and mining for sale
of coal; and

(f)  the others segment engages in the sale of parts of mining
equipment and provision of aircraft sub-leasing services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The
adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with
the Group’s loss before tax except that bank interest income
and other unallocated income and gains, finance costs, gain
on disposal of available-for-sale investment as well as other
unallocated head office and corporate expenses are excluded
from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, cash and cash
equivalents, amounts due from related companies and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, amount due to the ultimate holding company,
amounts due to related companies and other unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.
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A BREWT (E)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BEZT—\F+-A=1+—BLEFEE ABTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

NOTES TO THE CONSO

4. DEHER (88E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
o EELE Segment results
AEBZEFRHHE D 2D EBEESTAT ¢ An analysis of the Group’s segment results by reportable segment
is as follows:
BE-_Z—N\E+=-A=+—HLEFE Year ended 31 December 2018
NERE 2%  HER#E KW R
R%E kg BEMH g7 B& 2 @it
Property Manufacture
investment and sale of Trading
and Securities  construction of mineral
development  investments materials  concentrates  Coal mining Others Total

TE7 TE TE TE7 TE7 . TE7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Al Segment revenue:
NREFZHE/E%E  Salestolrevenue from extemal customers® 7914 - - 169,873 657 6,222 184,666
RERA Investment income - 38 - - - - 38
BRARRERALE Total revenue and investment income 7914 % - 169,873 657 6,222 184,704
%k Segment results (9,171) 188 (56,694) (20,401) (21,686) (5,542) (113,306)
FOFSMARE Bank interest income and other

APRMA R unallocated income and gains 2,553
SEREAARIERY Corporate and other unallocated expenses (18,824)
AOREYBRE Unallocated finance costs (10,088)
BHAER Loss before tax (139,665

HERDEBEZ SHE BT RE - M EER SR - * Since the amount of intersegment sales is insignificant, no reconciliation has

been made.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBERERME (&
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

BE-ZT—\G+-A=+—B15E OUETHE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ATEMENTS (continued)

4. DEER (H) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DERELE (1B) Segment results (continued)
BE-_Z—+&+-_A=+—HILEFE Year ended 31 December 2017
nERE 5 HEREE KB B
RERE ke BEME 25 AR fh st
Manufacture
Property and sale of Trading
investment and Securities  construction of mineral
development  investments materials  concentrates  Goal mining Others Total

TER TEL TEL TEL TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

PHlE: Segment revenue:
WREEZHE /BEE: Sales to/revenue from external customers® 4,289 - - 26,953 - 5,465 36,707
RERA Investment income - (432) - - - - (432)
WAREEUALE Total revenue and investment income 4,089 (432) - 26,953 - 5,465 36,275
PHEE Segment results 2,55 (208) (34,241) (4,695) (3,430) (12,083 (52,101)
FANERARL Bank interest income and other

AOERARNE unallocated income and gains 0
SERABKAERS Corporate and other unallocated expenses (11,596)
AARIBHA Unallocated finance costs (4,908)
HENHHERE L Gain on disposal of avalable-for-sale

W& investment 4,394
BHAES Loss before tax (63,891)

* HERDEBEZ HEBMTRE - M EER SR - * Since the amount of intersegment sales is insignificant, no reconciliation has

been made.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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%-.F MEmRMEE (F)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BHEZZ-N\F+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DIPEE (E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

STHEENEEURHEM S IER Segment assets and liabilities and other segment
information

NOTES TO THE CONSO

N

AEEZZ DD BEERAMEIN
REMDEIWERIHAOT

SEEH An analysis of the Group’s segment assets and liabilities and

other segment information by reportable segment is as follows:

BE-Z—N\F+-A=1+—HLEE Year ended 31 December 2018

NERE #%  HER#E L | R
KRR kg BENH g% BE 2t st
Property Manufacture
investment and sale of Trading
and Securities  construction of mineral
development  investments materials  concentrates  Coal mining Others Total
TR TR TER TR TR ThER Tin
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERAE: Assets and liabilities:
NIEE Segment assets 87,534 508 84,682 11,333 33,040 6,382 223,479
SERAMKIRAE Corporate and other unallocated assets 169,915
BEE Total assets 393,394
PiaE Segment liabilities 43,211 - 14,772 11,150 692 4,034 73,925
EEREMAARARE Corporate and other unallocated liabilities 59,602
BafE Total liabilties 133,527
EpAdEs: Other segment information:
RERABZTEREH Depreciation and amortisation charged
in profit or loss 2,948 - 18,838 140 2,149 5 24,080
SEREMADELE Corporate and other unallocated amounts 780
24,860
RENFATENS Fair valug gains on investment properties (885) - - - - - (885)
nE HERREFESE  Impament loss on property,
plant and equipment - - 4,251 - - - 4,251
BEHA Write-down of inventories - - - - 3,804 - 3,804
BAFE  ReREM Impairment loss on prepayments,
W ERERE 58 deposits and other receivables - net - (213) - 21,456 1,085 423 23,651
SEREMANEEE Corporate and other unallocated amounts 302
23,953

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %
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CAMKHERE (E)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
HE-T—N\F+-_A=+—BIFEUSETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ATEMENTS (continued)

4. DEHER (88E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
THEEREGBUEEMS FER Segment assets and liabilities and other segment
(&) information (continued)
NERE &%  HERRE | R
RER R& BN g% BE 2t @it
Property Manufacture
investment and sale of Trading
and Securities  construction of mineral
development  investments materials  concentrates  Coal mining Others Total
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn Tin Tin Tin
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EtEVEEREER Impairment loss on other intangible assets - - 28,245 - 8,865 - 37,110
EUEFRESE 58 Impairment loss on accounts
receivable - net (61) - - - 60 14 13
Nz BER Write-off of items of property,
REBRAR plant and equipment - - - - 324 - 304
HENE BERFEEEYE  Gain on disposal of tems of property,
plant and equipment - - - - 1,499 - 1,499
BB Capital expenditure* 5 - - 12 888 2 907
SEREMANEES Corporate and other unallocated amounts 29
936

€ ERRAXBERENE HMERREREMELE
o

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B E XA R DA

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment
and other intangible assets.
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..1: S BEHmKRMaE (&)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BECT—\F+_A=+—H1LFEUBTIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

NOTES TO THE CONSO

4. DHER (1) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
THEEREGBUEEMS FER Segment assets and liabilities and other segment
(&) information (Continued)
BE-_Z—+&+-_A=+—HILEE Year ended 31 December 2017
NERE & HERHEE et K%
RER A BEMH 2% ks Af o)
Manufacture
Property and sale of Trading
investment and Securities  construction of mineral
development ~ investments materials  concentrates  Coal mining QOthers Total
AL AL AL AL AL AL AL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EELRER: Assets and liabilities:
PR Segment assets 94,333 3,721 142,871 37,456 45,697 6,589 330,667
ERLEMAIREE Corporate and other unallocated assets 109,628
BEE Total assets 440,295
PREE Segment liabilities 42522 40 23,945 16,839 379 1,260 84,985
EBREMAIEAR Corporate and other unallocated liabilities 60,662
#aE Total liabilities 145,647
ApAdEs: Other segment information:
REZNGBZTER Depreciation and amortisation charged in
B profit or loss 2,831 - 26,987 136 1,967 4 31,925
AR RERELE Depreciation capitalised in asses - - - - 519 . 519
EEREMANELE Corporate and other unallocated amounts 1166
33,610
REMEATENE Fair value gains on investment properties (5,422) - - - - - (5,422)
R HEES Impairment loss on accounts receivable - - 948 - 52 - 1,000
REREMERGEREER  Impaiment loss on prepayments, deposits
and other receivables - - - 5175 1,216 - 6,391
B EEREER Impairment loss on other intangible assets - - 14,782 - - - 14,782
R EME Write-off of items of property,
plant and equipment 958 - - - - - 958
ERRY Capital expenditure* 445 - - - 7,952 6 8,403
SERERAPRLE Corporate and other unallocated amounts H
8,444
g BARZBREAEME BERRBEREMELE 3 Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment

o
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and other intangible assets.
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REUBHBRRKE (&

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
BE—ZT—\F+-A=+—AILFE GUSTHME)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4., DEHER (&)
i EE R
(a) KENEREFZKA

4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

ATEMENTS (continued)

—E-N\F —E—tF

2018 2017

FTHExT FE T

HK$’000 HK$’000

= PRC 173,904 31,242
%= Peru 10,762 5,465
BN Australia - (104)
a5 Hong Kong 38 (328)
184,704 36,275

WA REPE DR -

(b) FHEEE

The revenue information above is based on the location of

the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

—E-N\F —ET—tF

2018 2017

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

H PRC 157,013 215,773
WE Peru 78,280 93,910
BN Australia 508 2,064
BB Hong Kong 213 848
B %R Ecuador 376 501
Sfm b Colombia 13 8
236,403 313,104

HRBEEDNREEMEDLE -

140 MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B E XA R DA

The non-current assets information above is based on the

location of assets.
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T RANBREME (E)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BEZT—\F+-A=1+—BLEFEE ABTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

NOTES TO THE CONSO

4. DITER (&) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
EBETTEEZEFZ2EHR Information about major customers
REBPERERFCEXERBAEER Revenue from customers of corresponding period contributing
EHEFEHI0% 2 ER T ¢ over 10% of total revenue of the Group is as follows:

—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
FTERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000

EPA(BLBEE S5 ) Customer A (attributable to trading of mineral
concentrates segment) 23,314 26,953

EFPB(EGHBRE S HE0) Customer B (attributable to trading of mineral
concentrates segment) 93,535 =

BEC(EGRBEEE S E0) Customer C (attributable to trading of mineral
concentrates segment) 39,574 =

5. WWARHEAU AR WEH 5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
AEBZWADHAT ¢ An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

—E-N\F —ZT—tF
2018 2017
FTERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
PN Revenue
BB KR EEAE155%EENH  Revenue from contracts with customers
EEEHRA (ZE—/1F) within the scope of HKFRS 15 (for 2018)
SHE FBE Sale of mineral concentrates 169,873 26,953
SHERERES M Sale of parts of mining equipment 6,222 4,219
HE Y Sale of properties 3,883 -
$H & B R Sale of coal 657 _
XK E A it 37 5 A Revenue from other sources
He W ARz Gross rental income 4,031 4,289
IR AR 5 M RS Provision of aircraft sub-leasing services - 1,246
NEEKRE (BE) - F5 Fair value gains/(losses), net:
FRERIEATFERE ZRAKA Equity investments at fair value through
RE-RHEEE profit or loss — held for trading 38 (432)
184,704 36,275

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SAMBEERME (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

BE-ZT-\F+_A=+—HLFE CIBTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
5t

5. WARHEAMWARKE (&)

EFENBAN T #

BE-_Z2-N\F+-A=1t-HLFE

ATEMENTS (continued)

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers

Year ended 31 December 2018

MERE
LERE RRES 1 1% B 5 Hitr @
Property
investment Trading
and of mineral
Pk Segment development concentrates  Coal mining Others Total
TERT TERT THET TER TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EnkBREER Types of goods and services
HERTE Sale of mineral concentrates = 169,873 = = 169,873
HERBERBES T Sale of parts of mining equipment - - - 6,222 6,222
HEMR Sale of properties 3,883 - - - 3,883
HERK Sale of coal - - 657 = 657
EFENBAEE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 3,883 169,873 657 6,222 180,635
HEHIE Geographical markets
Hh The PRC - 169,873 - - 169,873
e Peru 3,883 - 657 6,222 10,762
EFEAMALE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 3,883 169,873 657 6,222 180,635
BARZRE Timing of revenue recognition
EE B At a point in time 3,883 169,873 657 6,222 180,635
E—BEHEA Over time - _ _ _ _
EFRHMALE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 3,883 169,873 657 6,222 180,635

TRIIMNBREBVEBEESHEBELRNA

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in

WMEBMANEROKA S : the current reporting period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
=¥ BN
2018
FET
HK$°000
HEEm Sale of goods 6,644

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

HoOE
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NOTES TO THE CONSO

mEMBEHRRMET (E)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BRE-ZT— \F+-A=+—HILtFE GAETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. WAREMK AR WE (8) 5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)
EFEEHNWANDE (&) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)
AR EHRBE R A—FEI AT The Group elected to choose a practical expedient and omitted
It AEEEETEREBRIEN AL disclosure of performance obligations as all related contracts have
mEEROET a duration of one year or less.
REB ZHMWARWZEESTAT - An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains is as follows:
—E-N\F —ZT—tF
2018 2017
FTET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
Hin g A & 2= Other income and gains
HITH EUWA Bank interest income 439 52
B U ER BE (8 (KT 5E40(a)) Compensation received (note 40(a)) = 16,417
HEWE  WERXEEREB K Gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment 1,499 =
H b ) B A Other interest income 2,412 267
BEIEE A Management fee income 554 =
b 5 U &% 5E Net foreign exchange gains = 4,262
Hth Others 318 725
5,222 21,723

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %
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BEMBHRME (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLFE UGB TINE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6. KREFH

AEBZELEBRELENR, GIA)

6. OPERATING LOSS

ATEMENTS (continued)

The Group’s operating loss is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

—E-N\F —T—+tF
2018 2017
Bt aE FERT T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 8 @FIF X Employee benefits expense
(TBEEEHE) (excluding directors’ remuneration) (i)
e IEBAREMEWMET Salaries, wages and other benefits in
kind 24,056 18,332
RREF B Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes 2,270 2,248
26,326 20,580
1% 2R B & Auditors’ remuneration 950 880
H b B N Amortisation of other intangible assets
—HEFE L — supplier contract (if) 6,272 8,651
Y8 5 + 3 FR S FR0E 8 Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments 455 446
R i 5 Amortisation of mining rights
GITAEERRBEKAA) (included in cost of sales and services) 61 -
FEXAERARBRX Cost of inventories recognised as
an expense (iv) 176,078 27,907
WiEmE - MERZRBEEE Write-off of items of property,
plant and equipment (i) 324 958
ME BMEREZEZIITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (iii) 18,072 23,994
PE N BRI RE Exchange losses — net 9,811 =
JE U BR ORI (B B 18 5 7R Impairment loss on accounts receivable
= e (i) 13 1,000
FENFIE - Ze &k Impairment loss on prepayments,
L th JE Rk IE Rk B B 1B % KR deposits and other receivables — net (ii) 23,953 6,391
Y - REREERERE Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment (i) 4,251 =
KEHEIRT Minimum lease payments under
BHENTSE &EBAENKIE : operating leases in respect of:
—THREF — Land and buildings 168 431
— R (T ASEE R REEAR) — Aircraft (included in cost of sales
and services) - 106
HEMER S WAL Gross rental income from investment
properties (4,031) (4,289)
Ve Less:
FATERBESWA ZZEY Direct operating expenses incurred for
EEXCEERKERT investment properties that generated
rental income during the year 139 102
(3,892) (4,187)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

E B EAXER DA
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NOTES TO THE CONSO

6. KEFE (H)

0] FERBEBRARESNASAEL(ZE—CF 8
3,372,000 ) 2 B IFE R FHEE 2 E AL
¥ o B E@AIF T 494,322,000 T (=T —+ 4 :
1,808,000/ 7T ) }&22,004,000/8 7T (= Z — 4 :
18,772,000 7T) B 2 Bl aT A S5 & K AR 7% A 48 BA &
THRER -

(i) FEAREAAGEGRERZ[EMALEHIA-

(i) ARAFRBBTREATHEIL(ZT—LF : £519,000
B ZHERFEEEZEARAEAX - TELD
671,000 7 (= —t4F : T#iT) * 5,694,000/
T (ZZ—tF :6,391,0007% 7T) K& 11,707,000/
7T (ZZ—+4 : 17,603,000/ 7T) ED Bt AR E
RA - THRBRAUREMEESER -

(v) BEFABEFEMMNAS,894,0008 T (= F—+t

A M m A M (&)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHECZT—\E+-A=+—HIFE GABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

OPERATING LOSS (continued)

Notes:

(i) Amounts excluded expenses capitalised in exploration and evaluation assets
of Nil (2017: approximately HK$3,372,000). Employee benefits expense of
approximately HK$4,322,000 (2017: HK$1,808,000) and HK$22,004,000
(2017: HK$18,772,000) were charged to cost of sales and services and
administrative expenses respectively.

(ii) Amounts are included in “Other operating expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

(iii) Amounts excluded expenses capitalised in exploration and evaluation assets
of Nil (2017: approximately HK$519,000). Depreciation of approximately
HK$671,000 (2017: Nil), HK$5,694,000 (2017: HK$6,391,000) and
HK$11,707,000 (2017: HK$17,603,000) were charged to cost of inventories,
administrative expenses and other operating expenses respectively.

(iv) The amount included write-down of inventories of approximately

F:m|m) HK$3,894,000 (2017: Nil).
7. BB FINANCE COSTS
WIEKADTAT : An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
FET F& T
HK$’000 HK$’000

ARAFRNBEEE Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
ZIRITREMEEF S repayable within five years 3,234 3,408
HtERLEE R Loan arrangement fee for other loan 1,500 1,500
MR EFNBRA S Effective interest on convertible bonds 5,354 -
10,088 4,908
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GEMBHRENE (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

BE-ZT—\F+-A=+—ALLFE ABTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ATEMENTS (continued)

8. EENFEITHAEMS 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION
BIE EMRE - FBRQRMEH5383(1)(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
b)) e RMEER AR (BEEEMNZER) R disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
FIE2EME B2 FRNESTREZTHRAEME and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
m Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, is as follows:

—E-N\F e
2018 2017
FET FA&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
we Fees 660 720
H b B - Other emoluments:
Fe RUREDH= Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,615 2,020
RIRETEI 3R Pension scheme contributions 31 18
2,646 2,038
3,306 2,758
(a) BUHHITEE (a) Independent non-executive directors
FRAENTFTRIUENTESTZHEED The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
™ the year were as follows:
—E-N\#F —E—+tF
2018 2017
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
we: Fees:
MER S E Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 180 180
BT E Mr. Cao Kuangyu 180 180
REELAE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai 180 180
540 540
Kr Bt E SN - RS EE A E B IE Apart from the above, there were no other emoluments
HITEE 2 ME (22— +F  &]&) payable to the independent non-executive directors during

the year (2017: Nil).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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e s B®mERE (&)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BEZZ - A\Ft__A=t—HLEFEUALETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
8. EENFTEITHAEME (8) 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSO

(b) BITEE - HHTEERETENT (b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and
HAE the chief executive
e EUR
e EYFE BATEER B <& 48 5t
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
THET FET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E-N\F 2018
WITES - Executive directors:
BHEEILE Mr. Fu Kwan - 50 - 50
RERE Mr. Zhang Jian - 650 - 650
RMELE Mr. Zhang Bishu - 50 - 50
2t Ms. Liu Jing = 375 16 391
PR BB O A4 Mr. Chan Yeuk - 50 _ 50
B ASE Mr. Zhou Jianren = 180 9 189
AR E Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He - 120 6 126
RERSEE Mr. Zhang Min = 900 - 900
A BRAL 5% & Mr. Xiang Xianhong - 120 - 120
EENEE Mr. Lei Shuguang = 120 = 120
- 2,615 31 2,646
EHMITESE Non-executive director:
Jorge Edgar Jose Mr. Jorge Edgar Jose
Mufiiz Ziches st 4 Mufiz Ziches 120 - - 120
120 2,615 31 2,766
S 2017
WITES - Executive directors:
BEM LA Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He - 180 9 189
REREE Mr. Zhang Min - 1,300 = 1,300
BAREAEE Mr. Zhou Jianren - 180 9 189
MBRAT S0 £ Mr. Xiang Xianhong = 180 = 180
BEBNEE Mr. Lei Shuguang - 180 = 180
- 2,020 18 2,038
EMITEE : Non-executive director:
Jorge Edgar Jose Mr. Jorge Edgar Jose
Mufiiz Ziches 3t 4 Muniz Ziches 180 - - 180
180 2,020 18 2,218

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CAMBBENT (&)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
BHE-_Z—N\E+-_A=+—AH1EFE (ABTIE)

ATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
8. EERFEMTHAEME (&)

(b) BITEE FHATEFREET

BAE (&)

RAFEAR - BELRE  REREE K
VELLE BRI IRBEELER_-F
—NFNA-BEZERATES -

RAFERN BEMELE  RELAE -
MRMALTEREBXEERZT—N
FNAZTZHAHFHERITES © Jorge
Edgar Jose Mufiiz Ziches%t £ =&
—N\FENA-+_HEIIENITES -
RRAER-ZZTE-N\FNAZ+=BE
EARRRITIRAEE -

EXFARINFHETHRITEEZH
T RMREMFE-RAMEKFAL
EIRANTE M EKEB AR ER MR
H A AR 75 O Fr B

ARBAEF] LA LHE BEEEK
EFBTRABRFARELREREL
e (ZF—tF: &) -

8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and

the chief executive (continued)

During the year, Mr. Fu Kwan, Mr. Zhang Jian, Mr. Zhang
Bishu, Ms. Liu Jing and Mr. Chan Yeuk were appointed as
executive directors on 1 August 2018.

During the year, Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He, Mr. Zhang Min,
Mr. Xiang Xianhong and Mr. Lei Shuguang resigned as
executive directors on 22 August 2018. Mr. Jorge Edgar
Jose Munhiz Ziches resigned as a non-executive director
on 22 August 2018. Mr. Zhang Min resigned as the chief
executive of the Company on 22 August 2018.

Salaries, allowances and other benefits paid to or for the
executive directors shown above are generally emoluments
in respect of those persons’ other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2017: Nil).

9. ENBREHEE

AEE AuGEHEEEE—NER (=T
—tF ) WeMEFBEEN EXME
8o BRI (ZT—+F : i) HZ=HES
GERRREZHAEETRABR)IRAFEREZ

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year include one
director (2017: one), details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining four (2017: four) highest paid employees who are

e FBEHR T X neither a director nor a chief executive of the Company are as
follows:
—E-)N\#F —E—tF
2018 2017
FET TATT
HK$’000 HK$’000
e EBREYH S Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,427 5,168
RIRETEIHE R Pension scheme contributions 93 196
3,520 5,364

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B AEAXEFE R DA
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A BREWT (E)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BEZT—\F+-A=1+—BLEFEE ABTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

NOTES TO THE CONSO

9. IfuERSHESE (&) 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)
BERTIMeEBENIEEZERIEFETETHA The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
EnaHEEHBLT : employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

as follows:
EE A

Number of employees
—E2-N\F —TE—tF
2018 2017
0—1,000,000/% 7T Nil — HK$1,000,000 3 3
1,000,0017% 7t —1,500,000/% 7T HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 1
4 4

10. FTB5H K = 10. INCOME TAX CREDIT
BEBNESHROIBEFERNEBEL 2(hETE Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
R AIE16.5% (B —+4F 1 16.5%) 25 (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
REAIREME - iR EEF SN 2B Ty Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
AR EEREEBREREEEZER Z2IRITH been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in
RETHE - which the Group operates.

—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000

BER — &% Current — Hong Kong
FEEMA Charge for the year 148 162

BVHA — B b b [= Current — elsewhere

FEER Charge for the year 333 301
BEFERETR Under-provision in prior year 20 868

RIERIEE Deferred tax credit (8,387) (3,187)

AN E R Withholding tax charge:

— - PRC 121 799
—BM - Australia = 28
FEBIABIE R Total tax credit for the year (7,765) (1,029)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED /g
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A KM EME (FE)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
BHE-_Z—N\E+-_A=+—AH1EFE (ABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

10. FREHER (F)

AEBBRRAIBEZHEIREEREAEEF
16.5%) M&t

BHBER16.5% (=T —
B2RmiBEzEZmMmT

+5F:

ATEMENTS (continued)

The tax credit on the Group’s loss before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits

tax rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) as follows:

—E-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
TET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B Bt AT E5 48 Loss before tax (139,665) (63,891)
Hz&m%ﬂ $16.5% Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5%
—+F :16.6%) s HE BB  (2017: 16.5%) (23,045) (10,542)
ﬁ/,\,iﬁﬂ %RZH&U\ Income not subject to tax (1,149) (2,248)
IRk d 3 Expenses not deductible for tax 18,172 10,231
BEFERETR Under-provision in prior year 20 868
RNEERTIEE B Tax losses not recognised 6,871 5,951
BEFECHAZHEABE Tax losses utilised from prior years (84) (177)
Bt A Bl 7E E b B Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
EERELEMBPETIRZTE operating in other jurisdictions (8,108) (5,939)
TEFOFR 4 2k B 78 & [ A i Effect of withholding tax on the interest income
HERENBEWA 2 £ from the Group’s available-for-sale investment = 28
AIMRESNIRLETIE . 28 Effect of deferred tax on convertible bonds (563) -
FREREEEMUARNTERR Effect of withholding tax on
IR other income from arbitration in the PRC 121 799
BREBREFE 2 HIEER R Tax credit at effective rate (7,765) (1,029)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

OE B E A E R A A
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%-.F MEmRMEE (F)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BHEZZ-N\F+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
1. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based on the
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,053,332,260
(2017: 1,045,399,967) in issue during the year.

NOTES TO THE CONSO

M. ARAEBABEEBRER

EREALRBEEENBEAQRREE A
BEFEBEEBRFEFANDTETZRER 2 M
15 #01,053,332,2600% (= ZF — + £ :
1,045,399,9678%) 5t & o

HBATTESRERN KB SEIS The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based on:

—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
FTERT FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
[ = Loss
Rt ESRERN#HE Loss attributable to owners of the Company,
)EETEZ NAaEE AEIEEE used in the basic and diluted loss
per share calculations (111,784) (44,895)
—E-N\#F e
2018 2017
4= Number of shares
RETE TR ER K #E Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
)’EETEZE ABEZEITEBR issue during the year used in the basic and
ZINREFEH & diluted loss per share calculations 1,053,332,260 1,045,399,967

FEEE T N\FRZZE—tF+ A
= t+t—HIEFEZEREEHERTEBRRT
FRBEARR A 2 BT S FTi  2 BE IR
EENARQREBELEBER RRBHEBET
FREERBEVE AEBEERAFE

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 did not assume the exercise of the
Company’s potential ordinary shares relating to share options
granted under the Company’s share option scheme since their
assumed exercise would have an anti-dilutive effect. The Group

WEESHFT A HARITE B AE -

AEEE T N\FT-_A=1T—HLEE
ZERESERYEBRRKAARANR TN
FLA-Z+TRABTHARARESRE R
(/HEWE’\_?—)\i—I-_ﬂ-i—EEM%%EL
®) REASERREHRKEAEREEYE

RZE-—NE+ZA=+—H K"EBITE
ERBEL B -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %

cancelled all outstanding share options during the year.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2018 did not assume the conversion of the Company’s
convertible bonds issued on 26 July 2018 and fully converted on
14 December 2018, since their assumed conversion would have
an anti-dilutive effect.

The Group had no potential ordinary shares in issue as at 31
December 2018.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CAMBBENT (&)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
HE—_Z—-N\EFE+-_A=1+—HILEE (LABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12. B2
RAFEALESNREMRETARE (=
T—tF 8 ARAEETESINEBE—
E-N\F+A=t—BLFERMNEMAR
B(ZE—tF:8)-

13. % - BMERKRE

12. DIVIDENDS

ATEMENTS (continued)

No dividend has been paid or declared during the year (2017: Nil).
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

KAEELH Br HENEXE HEREE  BOZRB AE @it
Freehold Leasehold Plant and Office Motor
Land* Buildings improvements machinery’  equipment vehicles Total
ThT TER THT ThT THT THT ThT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-N\EtZA=t-H 31 December 2018
RZF-t#+-A=T-H At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018
R=F-\§-A-H
AR Cost 3,437 141,997 18,225 170,155 4,630 11,034 344,478
2:H7E Accumulated depreciation - (34,387) (1,769) (146,297) (3,435) (9,190) (195,078)
FAFE Net carrying amount 3,437 107,610 11,456 23,858 1,195 1,844 149,400
RZE-\E-F-R HKRZHNE At 1 January 2018, net of accumulated depreciation 3,437 107,610 11,456 23,858 1,195 1,844 149,400
NE Additions - - - 754 58 - 812
HE Disposals - - - (160) - - (160)
it Wiitg-off = - = (324) = = (324)
RERHERE Depreciation provided for the year - (5,079) (1,216) (10,425) (546) (806) (18,072)
R (i) Impairment losses (note i) - (043) - (3,308) - - (4,251)
EiAE Exchange realignment 83) (4,185) (252) (800) (15) (25) (5,360)
RZE-NE+ZA=1-R" At 31 December 2018, net of accumulated
B 2HNERRE depreciation and imparment 3,354 97,403 9,988 9,595 692 1,013 122,045
RZF-\E+-A=1-H At 31 December 2018
AR Cost 3,354 135,998 12,906 159,030 4,212 10,852 326,412
ZHMERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment - (38,505) 2,918) (149,435) (3,580) (9,839) (204,367)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,354 97,403 9,988 9,595 692 1,013 122,045

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B AEAXEFE R DA
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NOTES TO THE CONSO

13. 5% - BERKHE (&)

TEAUBRBERE (H)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
HEZZ— ) \E+-A=+—BLEE GAETIME)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
KAFELH BF HENERE HEREE  BOERE at:3 ERIE @it
Freehold Leasehold Plant and Office Motor  Construction
Land* Buildings  improvements machinery® equipment vehicles in progress Total
AL ThT Thn TAL T TR ThT ThT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Z5-tE+tZA=t-R 31 December 2017
RZE-~E+ZA=1-H At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017
R=Z-t4§-A-A
AR Cost 3,300 110,695 974 156,456 4,424 10,784 21,128 322,528
Zithe Accumulated depreciation - (28,101) (587) (119,789) (2,804) (7,748) - (159,029)
EHFE Net carrying amount 3,300 82,694 9,154 36,667 1,620 3,036 21,128 163,499
R=F-+£-F-A" At 1 January 2017, net of accumulated
kst iE depreciation 3,300 82,504 9,154 36,667 1,620 3,036 27,128 163,499
RE Addtions - = - 1,580 85 - 406 2,071
btz Write-off - (958) - - - - - (958)
ERERENF Transferred to investment properties - (352) - - - - - (352)
REERERR Depreciation provided for the year - (4,945) (1,160) (16,617) (652) (1,289 - (24,513)
-3 Transfer - 25,59 3,085 - - - (28,681) -
e Exchange realignment 137 5,675 317 2,228 Y] 47 1,147 9,663
RZZ-+F+ZA=1-R" At 31 December 2017, net of accumulated
TR Z5iE depreciation 3,437 107,610 11,456 23,858 1,195 1,844 - 149,400
RZE-t+&+-A=1-A At 31 December 2017
AR Cost 3,487 141997 18,225 170,155 4,630 11,084 - 344,478
2itE Accumulated depreciation - (34,387) (1,769) (146,297) (3,435) 9,190) - (195,078)
FAFE Net carrying amount 3,437 107,610 11,456 23,858 1,195 1,844 - 149,400

* R BB AINZ M © * Located outside Hong Kong.

# ZEEFEEHEAEER _Z—N\F+_A4 # The net carrying amount includes property, plant and equipment of
=+ —HZHREEFEEBEEZYE - BE MK approximately HK$823,000 (2017: HK$3,453,000) relating to exploration and
&#9823,000/% 7t (ZZF — 4 : 3,453,000 L) ° evaluation activities of the Group as at 31 December 2018.

et Notes

0} HEZZT-N\F+-_A=+—HILFE HEHE (i) Amongst the depreciation provided for the year ended 31 December
# #918,072,000% 7T (== — £ 4 : 24,518, ooo,% 2018 of approximately HK$18,072,000 (2017: HK$24,513,000), Nil
JC)H ?%’m(-% L% : #7519,0007T) - (2017: approximately HK$519,000), approximately HK$671,000 (2017:
671,0008 7 (ZE—+4F : BH L) - 495,604, ooo Nil), HK$5,694,000 (2017: HK$6,391,000) and HK$11,707,000 (2017:
BL(=ZF ti 6,391,000/ 7t) & 11,707,000 17,603,000) were capitalised in exploration and evaluation assets, charged
BT (= F—+ 4 : 17,603,000 71 ) 2 B & AL R to cost of inventories, administrative expenses and other operating expenses
R RHEEE « HABRRAE - ﬁﬁﬁlg}fﬁ&ﬁm respectively.
meER W -

(ii) R=ZZFE—NF+ZA=+—RH ZXEEEREEHD (ii) At 31 December 2018, the Group had certain property, plant and
44,178,000/ 7T (= ZF —+ 4 : 46,973,000/ 7T ) Z equipment with carrying amount of approximately HK$44,178,000 (2017:
HETWE - BEREEEE ﬁf’ﬁ$?ﬁ?§&fﬁﬁ& HK$46,973,000) pledged to secure banking and general facilities granted
—MBRVE 2R FFEEREGRA M B RERMEST o to the Group, details of which are included in note 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.

(iii) REZZF-—N\F+-A=+—8 BRNHERER (iii) As at 31 December 2018, the Group performed an impairment assessment
ZFIEEE (HH5E16() » 2B/ EEA BRGERM based on fair value less costs of disposal with reference to valuations
HWEMNPBEE 2 WE  BE RREMETH performed by an independent professional qualified valuer on its property,
fH1E » NEBBRIE QA FERHSKANETT T RET plant and equipment located in Hunan, the PRC, due to prolonged
fy o THIREFEHBEELESE  BIBYH AN suspension of production in Hunan Taiji (note 16()). In assessing the
HHRABERENBUENERERETHTH land and buildings, direct comparison method is adopted based on price
HEITHE - BLE KRS - EEHAMSE information where comparable properties of similar size, character and
EREEEUEENBRE  WIRHTHEEENRRT location are analysed. For plant and machinery, market approach is principally

E FIN/NS B A S adopted. Prices for similar assets are considered, with adjustment to

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %

reflect condition and utility of the appraised assets. The above fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Based
on the assessments, impairment losses of approximately HK$943,000 and
HK$3,308,000 were recognised for buildings and plant and machinery,
respectively.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oEBR A AR R DA
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AN KBENT (&)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
HE—_Z—-N\EFE+-_A=1+—HILEE (LABTIE)

ATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. REWHE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—E2-N\F —EF—tF

2018 2017

THEx F&T

HK$’000 HK$’000

R—A—BZEmE Carrying amount at 1 January 75,105 63,023

N B EE NN F Net gain from fair value adjustment 885 5,422
BME - -EER Transferred from property, plant and

X (H i) equipment (Note) - 322

B & {5t £ 2t 7 & R0E 8 Transferred from prepaid land

(H1:z) lease payments (Note) - 4,064

b 5, 58 B Exchange realignment (1,623) 2,274

RT-_A=+—HBHzZE®EE Carrying amount at 31 December 74,367 75,105

Hiat -

HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—RBFE  KEHEDH

£ #%9352,0005% 7T K 1,290,0005% 7t (
MBS ARR) 2 WE - BEREE

ENSACE
VAR TR £ 3

HEFRCERERENE GEHRRNG S M BH

RIFFE18R15) - WIIRNERED

EHMEZA

B ZMECHB XA B RGEMKFITITE
BERARARRERA B ARMBSEEEENE
BUBREAEFHE TZERHASBASENERR
EMIBE - FTES 2 A FEHE N RABBEETRE
X 5 5l 492,744,000 7T K& 1,612,000 7T B &

=AY R E G R

EXRREREMEZEEERRE

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2017, property, plant and equipment
and prepaid land lease payments with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$352,000 and HK$1,290,000 (before adjustments of gain on revaluation
upon reclassification) respectively, details of which are included in notes
18 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements, were transferred
to investment properties as the management had changed the use of
the property. The property was revalued by RHL Appraisal Limited an
independent professional qualified valuer, at the date of transfer on an
open market value basis by direct comparison method with the major input
being the market price per unit of floor area. The resulting increase in fair
value and related deferred tax charge of approximately HK$2,744,000 and
HK$1,612,000 respectively have been recognised in property revaluation
reserve within equity.

The carrying amount of investment properties shown above

comprises:
—E-N\F —T—tF
2018 2017
FTERT FAET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
REPBENPEHAEEAR Held under medium-term lease in the PRC 74,367 75,105

RZB-N\F+-_A=+—H0  Fx&EHNRK
EMERLSEBHIEXABRMGERKFIT
FHEBEEAERATHEL ZGE  BRARMS

BEEENERLBRETHE
BB ABENBEEEMISER
MEDIRBELEHEHERTE=S

FEBHA
c HTIRE
- BRRE—

THEBFHBENGE B RKRME39() -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B AEAXEFE R DA

The

Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31

December 2018 with reference to a valuation performed by RHL
Appraisal Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer, on
an open market value basis by direct comparison method with the
major input being the market price per unit of floor area. Certain
investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 39(a)
to the consolidated financial statements.
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CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BHEZZ-N\F+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

At 31 December 2018, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with carrying amount of approximately HK$39,065,000
(2017: HK$39,199,000) were pledged to secure credit facilities
granted to the Group, details of which are included in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

NOTES TO THE CONSO

14. REY X (E)
R-—ZE—NE+-A=+—08 A&£H
AR M {8 939,065,000 & (=& — £ F :
39,199,000/ 75) ~ & TR AW £ D EMIER
EEEREZEREYER HBEEREAH
& M EE31 o
BRAEEIZEYEMNE— SHEBRNASE

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are

REB207H ° included on page 207 of this annual report.

NFEDK Fair value hierarchy

TRAARAEBZREMEZ ATFEABE The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
& o of the Group’s investment properties.

R-B-NE+-A=+-A2ATEIE

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018

EE  BAUEE EATUHE
mZHRE WAE WAE
(5—-%) (F=%) (=) At
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
TET THET THET TERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EAFETE Recurring fair value measurement for:
EAmE Commercial properties = - 74,367 74,367
R-EBE—+FE+-_A=+—B2Z2AFEE Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017
B BRABR EATAER
Mm% &RE B AE AR
(EF—%) (F=H) (F=A) @t
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
FHET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
KEERNTEF= Recurring fair value measurement for:
EERES Commercial properties - - 75,105 75,105

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

w2 W &EABRAF O
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CAMBBENT (&)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
BHE-_Z—N\E+-_A=+—AH1EFE (ABTIE)

ATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14.

BEYE (&)

AFED & (H)

RAFE PEE—QRE-QB2ATE
SRS TESARSHESR(CT L
6 W) -

DERAFESEAAZ=ZANRAFEFAEN
8k

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy:

[GEX/ES
Commercial
properties
THER
HK$’000
R-ZZE—+F— A —HBHHEASE Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 63,023
NFERABELEN W FE - L£1Bm AR Net gain from a fair value adjustment
recognised in profit or loss 5,422
EEYE - HE K&K Transferred from property, plant and equipment 322
EATEN A E ZHE Transferred from prepaid land lease payments 4,064
BE i, 5 & Exchange realignment 2,274
R-_EBE—+F+_A=+—HK Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 and 1 January
—E2-N\E—A—HNEESE 2018 75,105
NEEFHBELAN K F5E  £BARER  Net gain from a fair value adjustment recognised in
profit or loss 885
PE X, 3 & Exchange realignment (1,623)
R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—HEESHE Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 74,367
R=ZB-NFR=Z—tF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2018 and 2017
AFETR it B & 1l EXTAHERAE
Fair value Significant unobservable
hierarchy Valuation techniques input
ReBEIRZERME E=/ BEELEE BYAREMTHER
Commercial properties in Level 3 Direct comparison method Market unit price per square
Beijing, PRC meter

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

HoOE

B E A AR 2 H
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A BREWT (E)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BEZT—\F+-A=1+—BLEFEE ABTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSO

14. REWE (18)

DR EDR(E)

AEBERBERLEE  ZEARERER
AAER  ERBEBEUMEEREEMEE
BONERR/ RREETHR - AEESY
BOUXN HE - HE - BHERIENEU
WMEETON  LRGESYWENHEBREE
A M5 EEFR AT -

TEHGAERTF I KEMMISER - B
MHERARELA (TR EERREWE
NFERELEF(TBE) -

RZE—-NFE_FT—+tF+_A=+—
H FIEAEERTRZEENELEAE
EFFAENEENE  EDAB RS ERR
BAESmMEA -

15. M L HE KA

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Direct comparison method is adopted based on the principle of
substitution, where comparison is made based on prices realised
on actual sales and/or asking prices of comparable properties.
Comparable properties of similar size, scale, nature, character
and location are analysed and weighed against the respective
factors of each property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of
market value.

The key input was the market unit price. A significant increase/
(decrease) in the market unit price (per square meter) would
result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the
investment properties.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, all of the Group’s investment
properties in the PRC are commercial properties held by the
Group either for capital appreciation or for earning rentals.

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

—E-N\F —E—+tF

2018 2017

FTET FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

R—A—BZEmE Carrying amount at 1 January 19,399 19,676
T F T 2R A 2 8 Amortisation recognised during the year (455) (446)
BRI EYE Transferred to investment properties = (1,290)
BEE 5 & Exchange realignment (981) 1,459
Rt+-_A=+—HZEEE Carrying amount at 31 December 17,963 19,399

HELHWURFARE  WARHEERS - The leasehold land is held under medium-term lease and is

situated in the PRC.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AN KBENT (&)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
HE—_Z—-N\EFE+-_A=1+—HILEE (LABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16. Hib B EE

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

ATEMENTS (continued)

B R
HEBER BE REE &5t
Exploration
and
Supplier  evaluation Mining
contract assets rights Total
TERT TER TERT FERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(a2 (i) (B (i) (B2 (iii))
(Note (i) (Note (ii) (Note (iii))
—E2-NF+=A=t+—H 31 December 2018
RZE—NF—F—HZHA  Costat 1 January 2018, net of
B 2 5H 85 RORE accumulated amortisation and
impairment 36,156 23,524 7,099 66,779
INE Additions - 124 - 124
B REABEEE Impairment loss recognised (28,245) (8,865) - (37,110)
i Transfer - (5,501) 5,501 -
N Amortisation provided during the year (6,272) - (61) (6,333)
M 3, A 2 Exchange realignment (1,639) (375) (275) (2,289)
R=Z—\&+=-A=+—H8 At 31 December 2018 = 8,907 12,264 21,171
R-Z—A\F+-_A=+—H At31 December 2018
BN Cost 166,824 17,688 16,529 201,041
ZETEERRE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (166,824) (8,781) (4,265) (179,870)
RMEFE Net carrying amount - 8,907 12,264 21,171
—E2—+tH+-A=+—H 31 December 2017
RZE—+F—F—HzHA Costat 1 January 2017, net of
B 25T 85 ROR(E accumulated amortisation and
impairment 55,474 17,450 5,842 78,766
INE Additions - B, 1,016 6,373
ERRREERE Impairment loss recognised (14,782) = = (14,782)
FERNEE Amortisation provided during the year (8,651) - - (8,651)
IE & Exchange realignment 4,115 717 241 5,073
R-ZT—+F+=-F=+—H At 31 December 2017 36,156 23,524 7,099 66,779
R-_Z—tF+_-_H=+—H At31 December 2017
B AR Cost 175,868 23,5624 11,407 210,799
ZETEERRE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (139,712) - (4,308)  (144,020)
R FE Net carrying amount 36,156 23,524 7,099 66,779

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSO

16. it B EE (&)

(i)

HEFSRECASER -"TTNFRA-T—H
WeigE B G2) (KRR RIS A ZMBRR]) K&
MEBARNERRER  BERBAGERHERGE
) EEREE S EAR QR (DEREE ) AL
HMEREMILZBEHR T RFAA=TH
ZEBERRZMMMHERZ - EXERRHHAERD
B ([FEZRRME ) = —RKEH B2 5
SUER - mERME 2R AR ERRA30%M L
#m o BBELAAEAR RRMEEAREMHE
WEREFTER R EKE - 4R 5 RS
R B ZRER G S8 B R+ D F RN E
BEERAEFRERENKE -

BEEREAEGRZGFRAERERBA
AR A+ A 2 S o

of

R-Z—tF+A=+—0 HEREAREE
HEEMEKEMEELE  AEEER=_F—=
FrARZZE-RF T AKEHRERRT (K
REE) REREREREHBRELE HEREL
DB ERMEIR B PR R B E—HHBER
AR A B 1% R MY RE40(a) ©

g

HRREHERZHERR  ASEEEEESEN
EHERSREREERDS BN ITRE M - R
T +tH+-A=1+—8  BEHERSRER
BENRSELABN((REELSM] TKE S
BMIORBREREENELEE - R REEA
TABEREMEC2EERNEEIRE (RER
R 0 875 B IEOK B MY k) KT T AR L 2R
ERFHz2ROMBEERAER - EANTATAE
KE27.84%  c AFHRBE 2 RERERBETER
R TECREECEEREBVEBARRE
BRIRER « BEME KEEUARMRIEFOERR
BRAEREYE  ZAEBRERBREEEHEEEZE
RS TEUARBESEEEN ZBEERR

RZE—AE-A=-+=H - 5B GEM) ENEE
EENEEFERREAERTHRRARERELA
HA—T-—NE-_A+-_AzREFBNE  Eitt -
EREE (EARS N R=ZTE—N\FAAERE
ik - ARBREZRBAUS  WHERES EH
FERIEAIFACHESRE - ARGEHBR=ZZ—H
FNAZ+F BRARE#EITR « RIER BEEZRERM
ZERER  ARAREERA AR IRE
REETHPEERTEEES T st o Bt
AEBRAHNRREMBEEEETHTE - &
ERARERTEKREHERENEFEEREE
WAl EETHRE AERZETHBEX -
AEBRE RBE-Z—\F+-A=+—81
FEEREBHRARHEREGNENEERRS
HUR (B 428,245,000/ LB E 1B 2 2R -
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BB MEME (&)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHEZZE-N\FE+-_BA=1+—HIEFEE (LABTHE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(U]

The supplier contract represents the materials supply agreement embedded
in the joint venture agreement dated 30 June 2006 regarding the
establishment of Hunan Taiji entered into between the joint venturers, namely
Junefield Building Material, an indirectly held subsidiary of the Company, and
RIS EEBR AR (Lianyuan Steel Group Limited) (“Lianyuan Steel”),
upon the acquisition of Junefield Building Material and its subsidiary, Hunan
Taiji, by the Group on 22 May 2009. EZ#ERMEHR AR (Hualing Steel
Company Limited) (“Hualing Steel”), a company established in the PRC, is a
steel products manufacturer and is effectively owned as to more than 30%
by the holding company of Lianyuan Steel. Pursuant to the joint venture
agreement mentioned above, Lianyuan Steel is responsible to guarantee the
supply of raw materials of granulated steel slag required by Hunan Taiji and
to procure Hualing Steel to supply granulated steel slag to Hunan Taiji at the
prescribed unit price for a period of 15 years from the date of commencement
of operation of Hunan Taiji.

The intangible asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of approximately 14 years in accordance with the terms of the joint
venture agreement.

As at 31 December 2017, Hunan Taiji was in suspension of production due
to suspension in the supply of raw materials of granulated steel slag and
the Group has filed applications in October 2013 and December 2015 for
arbitration proceedings regarding the shortage of supply of granulated steel
slag against Lianyuan Steel, which is also the minority shareholder of Hunan
Taiji, for, inter alia, failing to procure the requested amount of steel slag
supply, further details of which are included in note 40(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Due to the shortage of supply from the supplier, the management of the
Group reassessed the recoverability of the carrying amount of the supplier
contract intangible asset. As at 31 December 2017, the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) containing the supplier contract intangible
asset has been determined based on value in use calculation. These cash
flow projections were based on most recent financial budgets approved by
management, taking into account the operating environment, including the
dispute with Lianyuan Steel concerning the supply of steel slag, and market
conditions at that point of time, and covered a five-year period. A pre-tax
discount rate of 27.84% was applied. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
were extrapolated using zero growth rate. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth in unit
price, purchase volume during the forecast period and expected timing and
outcome of the arbitration proceedings. The discount rate reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU.

On 22 February 2019, Junefield Building Material was informed by Hunan
Taiji that a notice of response to action (fEFFiEAIE) dated 12 February
2019 from the Intermediate People’s Court of Loudi City, Hunan Province,
the PRC, was received, pursuant to which Lianyuan Steel, as plaintiff, had in
September 2018 requested a court judgement to dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to
the termination of Hunan Taiji’s joint venture agreement due to the prolonged
shareholders’ disputes. The court hearing of this case has been scheduled
to be held on 25 September 2019. Based on the legal opinion of the legal
advisors in the PRC, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
outcome of the ruling of this litigation proceeding is uncertain and cannot be
estimated with reasonable certainty. As a result, the Group determined the
production resumption of Hunan Taiji has been adversely affected. In view of
these uncertainties, which also adversely affected the likelihood of recovering
the carrying value of the supplier contract intangible asset, the Group
has determined it prudent to recognise full impairment of approximately
HK$28,245,000 in relation to the supplier contract intangible asset in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2018.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oEBR A AR R DA
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CABMBREMS (&)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLFE UGB TINE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16. it B EE (&)

(i)

(iil

(%)

HERFEEEFTZRAESEAMAMEBEER
EYTES 2 FreTiE - 3r o] B AR BN IR AT T1E
A - HBRE{E 49/48,907,000/8 T (Z 2 —+F :
23,524,000 7w) - R=ZZE—NF+=-A=+—H
MR R R EREER - ZFEER P4 E AR H
TREITH -

RBE-Z-N\F+-_A=+—HLFEAR " W&
Heh—AEBR=_T - N\FNAAEXRE - 5
REFLEEECKEBRERERE - ARBEESE
B HX A ERMGEME 8RR TG EER SR
& B AT U ] & BB AT HETT RO (R (EET TR ERT - M A
el e B ERTRRESREBEAETHER
BENTERER - BETHE  MERENBRR
AEEEERARTREELEN RS
TEEEGELSS  E8 SEREERAK
AR ERBIEN STV BEEEMET - BTG
MEFRRE - FTAMBATITREB17.1%  RIF
HRHEHIA - RRANFEN R BELETIALEE
MR ERET B AR - ZAFHRNARHNRERER
BEBRE29%FEA - RIFFFE AKER/E
BRI GEEN G IR E S RERERE
S8 YREBERESQESRAERRERRD
3,347,000/ 7T, ©

ARAEEZ2EBURXSARMMEMELHHTRK
AEEER T A\F+-_A=+—HHNAKEE
ATV EE TR ERE - A4 & 58RI IA
ERTREREREBBRAETNERBENGE AR
o RETRHE  DREFAGEEECKDOETHR
MRS REELEM - HAIRESEIEER
At Ss  E8 SERKERES  URERE
BHEN R M EREMET - AR EREF
B FTARBATITIR R B17.0%  ROFRIEFEH
A RN F R BN TRE T AR R B A R R B
KA BIRER  ZANFHEANRNRESREREF
BRR2 9%TRA © RIFFFE  ARERAE T YR
LA EEMGF T RESBENERESHE I
VR K AT & EERERR R (EES 1R 493,196,000 7T °

AEEEEHER - ZE-N\F+_A=+—8H
R EAGEEEETRENS  LARS &R
RRAZAAH - A5 TURWENORDESE TR
B-Hiit  ERBE_ZT-N\F+-A=+—HL
FRAEFRABERAM SR KRG EEERBER
492,322,000 It °

RIBEERER BN ERETHREE 2R -
ZERBEDRBES 2 G B REREESENT
LS - BE-T—\E+-_A=+—RALFEZ
B R L R1.12% ©

HE-T—)\F+-A=1+—HLEFE  2EBL
BXEAERGEMTETHMEE  NAREFLHIEK
ERREITREE HEED B DI ZE KKK
B2 IRSELBN - LEREFE - RIEB T
b AAREZRREBERZAF I MBS ERE
REEAR  WREBE_Z—/\F+=-A=+—8
LHEEYEREBEERREBR (T 45
) ©
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ATEMENTS (continued)

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(il

The exploration and evaluation assets mainly represent the cost of
concessions, permits and exploration and evaluation works related to
various coal and mineral mines in Peru, which are under the exploration
and evaluation stage as at 31 December 2018 with a carrying value of
approximately HK$8,907,000 (2017: HK$23,524,000). These assets are not
subject to amortisation until they are placed in use.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, one of the coal mines in Peru
has commenced formal production in August 2018 and the respective
exploration and evaluation assets were to be transferred to mining rights.
The directors of the Company performed an impairment assessment with
reference to valuation performed by an independent professional qualified
valuer on the recoverable amount of the exploration and evaluation assets
upon the transfer, based on value-in-use calculations using discounted
cash flow projections. For the purpose of assessment, the exploration and
evaluation assets being transferred have been allocated to a CGU, of which
the recoverable amount is determined by taking into account the estimated
mine life, production volume, selling price and operating costs, and the latest
financial budgets approved by the management. The assessment covers a
9-year period using pre-tax discount rate of 17.1%. During the assessment
period of 9 years, the latest financial budgets for the next 6 years were
based on the mining plans of the Group and cash flows beyond this 6-year
period were projected using a growth rate of 2.9% per annum. Based on the
assessment, the Group determined that the estimated recoverable amount of
the respective exploration and evaluation assets was lower than its carrying
amount and recognised impairment loss of approximately HK$3,347,000 in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss upon the transfer.

The directors of the Company performed impairment assessments with
reference to valuations performed by an independent professional qualified
valuer on its exploration and evaluation assets as at 31 December 2018,
based on value-in-use calculations using discounted cash flow projections.
For the purpose of assessment, the exploration and evaluation assets have
been allocated to exploration and evaluation activities’ CGUs, of which the
recoverable amount is determined by taking into account the estimated mine
life, production volume, selling price and operating costs, and the latest
financial budgets approved by the management. The assessment covers a
9-year period using pre-tax discount rate of 17.0%. During the assessment
period of 9 years, the latest financial budgets for the next 6 years were based
on the assumed mining plans of the Group and cash flows beyond this 6-year
period were projected using a growth rate of 2.9% per annum. Based on the
assessment, the Group determined that the estimated recoverable amount
of certain exploration and evaluation assets were lower than its carrying
amount and recognised impairment loss of approximately HK$3,196,000 on
its exploration and evaluation assets.

The Group has made impairment assessments on its exploration and
evaluation assets as at 31 December 2018 and determined that certain of its
mineral mines in Peru shall be impaired in view of their unfavourable future
prospects. As a result, impairment loss of approximately HK$2,322,000
in relation to the exploration and evaluation assets was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit of loss for the year ended 31 December
2018.

The mining rights represent the rights to conduct mining activities pertaining
to coal mines in Peru. The mining rights are amortised on a unit of production
basis over the estimated economic reserve of the mine. Effective amortisation
rate for the year ended 31 December 2018 approximate to 1.12% per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the directors of the Company
performed impairment assessments of the mining rights with reference to
valuations performed by an independent professional qualified valuer. The
mining rights have been allocated to the coal mining activities’ CGU for
impairment assessment. Based on the assessment, the directors of the
Company were of the opinion that the estimated recoverable amount of
the mining rights was higher than its carrying amount and therefore, no
impairment loss was recognised on the mining rights for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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17. JHEERE

U HEAMEBREME (F)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BREZZE—\E+-A=+—HILEE UABTTIME)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
FET TAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EHRAERE IR AFE—-HEMi[® Listed equity investment, at fair value — Elsewhere
(K1i£18) (Note 18) N/A 2,064

18. BAFEFAHEMZEREZR
rERE

18. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
F#& T FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EHRAERE IR AFE—-EMi[& Listed equity investment, at fair value — Elsewhere
() (Note) 508 N/A
Hitat - Note:

(i)

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—H KTEEFHLatin
Resources Limited ([LRS] » —FEIRBRMBHKZ 5
FAERAR (TRMNEHRSA]) EmZAR) K
30,699,0000% (== —+ 4 : 30,699,0000%) & &
LB EEREEBITRANI% (ZE—t4F
1%) °

RZF—N\F—A—B (BBVBKEREENESRE
KERABEY)  AEEEEREECTAEARAER
FFEemEENEBERER  UKEmIT Ay HE
BBV HHREERFEORMEBEER - R¥BER
BREVHRELAFORAH  AEEBLRSE R
RGBT AR A FEF AL MEE R - Bt -
ANFEA 2,064,000 TR REEEBAIHEE
BEEFHHBEEEAFET AR M EEREZRA
BE - ARETBECREZ RABU B RE ERIF
SR BN - ERE BRI T2.2#HEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held approximately 30,699,000 (2017:
30,699,000) fully paid ordinary shares of Latin Resources Limited (“LRS”), a company
listed on the Australian Securities Exchange Limited (“ASX Limited”), representing
approximately 1% (2017: 1%) of its issued share capital.

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application of HKFRS 9), the Group’s
management has assessed which business models apply to the financial assets
held by the Group and has classified its financial instruments into the appropriate
HKFRS 9 categories. As at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, the Group has
designated the investment in ordinary shares of LRS as FVTOCI and accordingly the
financial assets with a fair value of approximately HK$2,064,000 were reclassified
from available-for-sale investment to equity investments at FVTOCI. Details of the
changes in accounting policies and impacts of HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 2.2 to
the consolidated financial statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

HE-_ZT-N\F+_A=+—AIFE CUETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ATEMENTS (continued)

10. WEEFE 19. STOCK OF PROPERTIES
—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
FTERT FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRI YE Completed properties for sale 3,411 5,768
REBUHBEECE T ITYENE—PFE Further particulars of the Group’s completed properties for sale
R AFHFE207H o are included on page 207 of this annual report.
20. & 20. INVENTORIES
—E-N\F e
2018 2017
FERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
R #4 BB FE Raw materials and consumables 5,771 2,425
2UPK oh Finished goods 10,023 10,404
15,794 12,829
21. EREXK 21. LOAN RECEIVABLE
—E-N\F e
2018 2017
FERT FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BPHA Current
FEULRSE 3K — I 17 - Loan receivable from LRS — unsecured, repayable
R—FRNEE within one year = 397
Pt FILRS B R E T LR T ([R The above unsecured loan to LRS was denominated in Australian
TDEHE BEMNRI2%TET R T —+ dollars (“AUD”) with maturity in February 2017 which was further
F_AHH EERE—"FLERE-_T—N extended to January 2018 and bore interest at a rate of 12% per
F—H REHRDPRR-_E—N\E—AFH annum. The balance has been fully settled in January 2018.
B e

162 MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BEZT—\F+-A=1+—BLEFEE ABTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

NOTES TO THE CONSO

22, FE Uy BE % 22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

—E-N\E —ZET—tF

2018 2017

FERT TETT

HK$’000 HK$’000

& I BR X Accounts receivable 2,524 2,105
VEREL Impairment (1,224) (1,000)

1,300 1,105
FEWEZ—MNEEZE HAEERE - —8m Accounts receivable are usually due immediately from the date of
EEBAEENT HEEEH—KAE—E billing. Payment in advance is normally required except the credit
A mMEEAEERERFERESZ2ETFRRE period is generally 1 month extending up to 2 months for certain
BZAEREEREAR AEFEFZEHEFE WY customers from coal mining business of the Group. The Group
KIWEN 7 FEBE 2 B HR A e RR sE BE 1 - F seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
HEfdEBEETHYEEL B URIEE and overdue balances which are reviewed regularly by senior
ERK c EWERAETTERTEUARK management to minimise credit risk. Accounts receivable are
(TARE DN R EZME - non-interest-bearing and mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)

and Soles.
RIPEHAR IR EQHESN IR E G2 An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable as at the
REBEWERZERSTOT : end of the reporting period, based on invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

—E-NE —F—+F

2018 2017

FERT TETT

HK$’000 HK$’000

— & A LAA Within 1 month 541 647

—Z=1aA 1 to 3 months 759 355

it 18 = i A Over 3 months - 103

1,300 1,105

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED -5
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RAMBRRKME (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

BE-ZT-\F+_A=+—HLFE CIBTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22. EWRRR ()
PR SR E R 2 BB T

are as follows:

ATEMENTS (continued)

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts receivable

—B-NE T iF

2018 2017

FExT TAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

RE ) At the beginning of year 1,000 =
KABEAVBMEERNFESRHFE Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 267 -
NEF (&) At the beginning of year (restated) 1,267 =
R (E 5 18 Impairment loss recognised 275 1,000
=0 2R R EEE Reversal of impairment loss recognised (262) -
FE A2 Exchange realignment (56) =
NER At the end of year 1,224 1,000

REE_F-—N\F+_A=+—HIL
FEFBUHREERFESE T WRE
7N 22 [ 7 PR B B B 3 5 2 B 0 A
HARFERBEEEE - Ho A YR
REREVIEERERETERNRABRA
BiE - Rt BEMEEER BREXER
BAREERREERANRESE - 5H
AAERBBEMEAR  KENEREE
ARRBERHAIBERBESEM - E AR
BRI ERR A0S B KA LR
B o —RME - BKREROEHBBIOXH
B R 2 BURME -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B E XA R DA

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31
December 2018

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses by recognising a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all accounts receivable from initial recognition. To
measure the expected credit losses, accounts receivable has
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, accounts receivable are fully
impaired if past due for more than 90 days.
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BEZT—\F+-A=1+—BLEFEE ABTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSO

22, R AR (8)

RBE_ZF-N\F+-_A=+—H1L
FEFBMBREERFN T HIRE
(%)
PATT 8051 7K £ [ 8 i R 5 P 7 B 12 B LB 0
CEEE

R=ZZE—N\NE+=-HA=+—H

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31
December 2018 (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s accounts receivable:

As at 31 December 2018

B H Past due
LPR—MEA —Z=@EA HBB=M@AH &5t
Less than 1to3 Over 3
1 month months months Total
BEmaAaE(TH8mT) Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) 545 944 1,035 2,524
FEHIEEEEX Expected credit loss rate 0.73% 19.60% 100% 48.49%
EEEE (THET) Loss allowance (HK$'000) (4) (185) (1,035) (1,224)

RBE-_Z—tHF+-A=+—H1L
FEEBETERE395 THRE
JFE Uit B SRRk 18 185 4 7= ot 1) 1) 2 R 1L B L B 3K
=T 52 5 1% 491,000,000 70 e R =T — + &
T-A=+—BZERERERKERER
HERBH—FALCEPEH - EEER
4 0 5% 5 B WO IR 17 58 © AN 5% B30 M L %
EREBBETAERRIEMERETR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31
December 2017

The provision for impairment of accounts receivable represented
provision for individually impaired accounts receivable of
approximately HK$1,000,000. The individually impaired accounts
receivable as at 31 December 2017 mainly related to customers
with balances that were past due over 1 year. The management
assessed that the collection of these receivables was in
doubt. The Group did not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
HE-T—N\F+-_A=+—BIFEUSETIE)

-

ATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22, FEWBRTX (18) 22, ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)
RBZ-2—+H&+=-A=+—H1 Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31
FTEEBSFERE39% T HWRE December 2017 (continued)

(#&)
R—ZZE—+FE+-—_A=+—H0 BREFLS The aged analysis of the accounts receivable as at 31 December
ST 2 Al 32395 AR #5 4% A Rl (B 2 FE U BR 5k 2 BR 2017 that are not considered to be impaired under HKAS 39 is as
BT follows:
—E—tF
2017
FHET
HK$’000

37 £ 260 HA 78 R (E Neither past due nor impaired -

‘E—E A A Less than 1 month past due 647

i —==@A 1 to 3 months past due 355

%) HA A 38 = (& A Over 3 months past due 103

1,105

HAREEECERE CETBIEF AR
ZREWERE BEEY ERE - REBERL
B ARAREERL BREBFESAENF
39%% - BAMZEEMRELRERE DA
EEERYEBEAEY  MAERDERIERT
2HHE - AEEYERAZFRERFTEETM
EHmAEMEEAR -

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to certain
independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment under HKAS
39 is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

23. At FE - e N EMMEWRIE 23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
—B-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5B Prepayments 2,275 6,049
biracia Deposits 29,228 32,278
H {8 U 5118 Other receivables 21,953 26,697
H fth fE I E X Other loan receivable 3,421 3,606
56,877 68,630
VERIE] Impairment (33,948) (10,157)
22,929 58,473
MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSO

B AU BB ERE (&)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
HEZZ— ) \E+-A=+—BLEE GAETIME)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23. EMAZE - S4B HEMAEWEZIE 23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

(88) RECEIVABLES (continued)
B EIE - HS R EMEINEIE Z BiERE The movements in provision for impairment of prepayments,
BEWT : deposits and other receivables are as follows:
—B-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
TET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
R ) At the beginning of year 10,157 3,499
HHAEBUSREEREIFRNTE Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 213 -
REY) (LEF) At the beginning of year (restated) 10,370 3,499
B R REEE Impairment loss recognised 24,166 6,391
BRI EEEEMD Reversal of impairment loss recognised (213) -
45 55 Uiy (3] 777 360 3 Write-off as uncollectible (161) -
PE 5 S Exchange realignment (214) 267
RER At the end of year 33,948 10,157

ERFBEMNFIR - BE REMERFIR ZRE
BBELENEREBRNRE R kEM
EURFBEH BB - R_E—\FER_F
—tFt+-A=1+—B®EARERERMNK
H ReRHEMEYGKEETEESNTES
ERRGHEFNBH —FUENRSAM -
BERENEZDREREBHAG AT KRE K
RRRE - AEBEYERZFRERTE TN
IR R E A IR S -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %

The above provision for impairment of prepayments, deposits and
other receivables represents provision for individually impaired
prepayments, deposits and other receivables. The individually
impaired prepayments, deposits and other receivables as at
31 December 2018 and 2017 mainly relate to deposits paid to
vendors and service providers that were past due over 1 year.
The management assessed that the impaired deposits are neither
expected to be recovered nor utilised as purchases. The Group
did not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oEBR A AR R DA
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GAR WA (E)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

HE_ZT-N\F+-_A=t—HLEFEUBTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
23. AN EIE - e N EMEWRIE 23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

ATEMENTS (continued)

(#&)

BWERAFERE - AtERERZEES
BIORBHHAEESE 2 EHEMEL
BRI BB MEE - NREBEY EH B RS
HEAEEMERRIEMEEERE - R-F
—NEFER-E-—tF+-A=+—HZEHAM
EMERTIAAREE  HEA1%HE
HEAEFREEARAR _ZT—=F1_A
BE LHEBERERER-_FT—-—N\FR
—EtFt+ A=t BEXRERE R
HARZEERER-_T—=F+ AR
Y m a2 & R IR &R o

FREREREMBRRENEREE MEA
RUEEFNBEREEBRRENEFHOT

RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment loss was made on other loan receivable based
on a review of the outstanding amount on regular basis when
collection of the amount is in doubt. Bad debts are written
off when identified. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over this balance. The other loan
receivable as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 was denominated
in RMB, bore interest at 1% per month, was secured by personal
guarantee and was repayable in December 2013. The above
other loan receivable as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 was fully
impaired as the loan was past due in December 2013 and the
collection of the amount was in doubt.

The movements in the ECL allowance related to financial assets
included in other receivables and other loan receivable are as

follows:

BEEHBERSENSREE
Financial assets included
in other receivables Other loan receivable

BEGAY RAEFAY EAGRD RARAY

BlERE BARE BHRERE RARH

12EARE BR-AF BE-FR 12BARE BE-AE BE-£R
FEBR RRE WE REFR FRE wE @

Rt EREN

Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime

ECL not ECL ECL not ECL

12 months credit- credit- 12 months credit- credit-
ECL  impaired  impaired ECL  impaired  impaired Total

TER TR TER FTER TR FTER FTER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

R-Z-\$-A—-H At 1 January 2018 - - 161 - - 3,606 3,767
RABBMBREER Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9

RORMTE - - 213 - - - 213
RZZE-\$—A—H At 1 January 2018 (restated)

C:27)) - - 374 - - 3,606 3,980
REERED Reversal upon settlement = = (213) = = - (213)
EEWE e Write-off as uncollectible - - (161) - - - (161)
fE 1 Exchange realignment - - - - - (185) (185)
BW=ZE-NE+ZB=1—H At 31 December 2018 - - - - - 3,421 3,421

168 MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSO

e A RBERE (&)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
HEZZ— ) \E+-A=+—BLEE GAETIME)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24, EWWBEEE R B FIE

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES

TFEEANES
REEBEER =EB-N\F —E—+F

Highest

balance

outstanding

during
the year 2018 2017
H st THERT THERT T
NGRS Name of company Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Junefield Group S.A. Junefield Group S.A. (i) 11 11 11
(&8 BRAA Junefield (Holdings) Limited (i 6 6 -
Ecuamining Mineral S.A. Ecuamining Mineral S.A. (i) 132 132 =
Total Genius Iron Mining S.A.C.Total Genius Iron Mining S.A.C. (i) 185 185 183
2 E R 8 Hualing Steel (i) 13,002 12,322 13,002
12,656 13,196

ZIEWGRIBREER - 2B RERETEERY -

Hiat -

[0) RARATEETARBARTENRABEM
%4 (THA % 4£]) - WJunefield Group S.A. -
T (5E) B8R 2AAF - Ecuamining Mineral
S.A. ([Ecuamining Mineral|) &Total Genius Iron
Mining S.A.C. ([Total Genius|) A & & i © &
EENMBARBAERERNBTESE (RN
ENAZTZHEE -

EREZ BRI A R AR - REE
RRMEEEEDERD - BRXATIEEBEMNRK
BREMIE °

(i)

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Notes:

(U]

(i)

Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He (“Mr. Zhou”), a close family member of Mr. Zhou
Jianren (an executive director of the Company), has beneficial interests in
Junefield Group S.A., Junefield (Holdings) Limited, Ecuamining Mineral S.A.
(“Ecuamining Mineral”) and Total Genius Iron Mining S.A.C. (“Total Genius”).
Mr. Zhou is also the former chairman and former executive director of the
Company (resigned on 22 August 2018).

Lianyuan Steel, being the holding company of the non-controlling interest
of Hunan Taiji, has beneficial interests in Hualing Steel. The amount mainly
comprises of prepayments and deposits paid.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RAMBRRKME (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

BE_Z-N\F+-A=1+—BLEEUBTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ATEMENTS (continued)

25. BN B&AERARBEQRNRE

ZENFRIAREER - 2B REETERY -

25. AMOUNTS DUE TO THE ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY/RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

26. EREZEANFEEE 2SR TITE 26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
—E-N\E —E—+tF
2018 2017
FET AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHRAKE  BmHE Listed equity investments, at market value:

BB Hong Kong - 1,047

bt ETRARER-_F—LtF+=-A
St HEDBEAREEERERBREA
FEREZEBTE-

The above listed equity investments at 31 December 2017
were classified as held for trading and recognised as financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

27. BE KB ITEER 27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
—E-N\F —T—t4F
2018 2017
FHT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
R MRITHEER Cash and bank balances 100,901 34,290

RFEHEERE  AEBUARBHEZ
Re RIBTHESBL A16,520,0008 T (==
— 4 1 4,269,000 7T) K 1F R FE 2R
T BEARBTIERABRAEME
SAT - AR AR R B AL O BE B R R B R A BE
EERFESERTE A5EBBEREE
TTHNEZETS R IRITIEA R S IEE i & -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B E XA R DA

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$16,520,000 (2017: HK$4,269,000) and placed with banks in
the PRC. The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 &



 eanBmENE (E)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HEZZT— \F+-A=+—BItFE CUETIIME)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

NOTES TO THE CONSO

27. HE REB1TEHER (8) 27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)
RZE—NF+_A=+—8 ReKET As at 31 December 2018, included in the cash and bank
A B IR A M B SR 1T 2 4 #4 4933,000 balances, there was a balance of approximately Soles 33,000
2B (HER 79,0008 7T) (ZE—tF - (equivalent to approximately HK$79,000) (2017: Soles 37,000
37,0002/ (&R 489,000/57T)) * EER (equivalent to approximately HK$89,000)) placed in bank in Peru
BEEEWNEMEEEFAEZRES - which is restricted for use as guarantee fund over renewal of Air

Operator Certificate in Peru.

RITHESBIBEET B RITERINEZZLEF = Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
TR CBITEMRTREERIT BV ETEE deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
R 2 IRITA © banks with no recent history of default.
28. E{+ERA 28. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
RIM|EBR  REZHHFEAEEER An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payable as at the end
IR ZREDTOT ¢ of the reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:
—E-N\E —E—+F
2018 2017
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
—fE A AR Within 1 month 1,340 1,086
—Z=={@A 1 to 3 months 679 85
BiE=1E A Over 3 months 5,009 3,998
7,028 5,169
ENERBTTEREEUNARE - ETR Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are mainly
REETE - denominated in RMB, USD and Soles.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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GAR WA (E)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
HE—_Z—-N\EFE+-_A=1+—HILEE (LABTIE)

ATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20 HitENSERESSARE 29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
—E-N\E T —tF
2018 2017
FERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
et RE Accruals 19,176 15,028
FERT T Business tax payable 2,030 2,282
BliRE Deposits received 1,239 8,804
XA E Contract liabilities 2,090 -
H & 5 50R Other payables 21,434 21,498
45,969 47,612
A EABEITERREESNE - ZELEES The accruals mainly comprise of accrued interest, legal
AAEHE®  EfhENZE AT E RE and professional fees and salaries. Other payables are
BHUARBEEBIE - non-interest-bearing and are mainly denominated in RMB and
Soles.
30. IRBES 30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS
R-F—NE+H—-+B KABBEITA On 26 July 2018, the Company issued convertible bonds in
% %8 /100,000,000 7T 2 Al # R &5 ([ 7] principal amount of HK$100,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”) to
IR ES ) T AR B R B B2 IR A7) 5 S B Macrolink Group (as subscriber), the immediate holding company
EEB (EARHEA) - BTOBRBRELEHE S of the Company. The issue of the Convertible Bonds is deemed
A FEUAS TERNBEER S - BiEE to be a connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
SREN G A BRRESIZSENERN RTE Listing Rules. Pursuant to the bond subscription agreement,
e  BEE—KIRBRZM  WHETH the Convertible Bonds bear interest at a rate of 5% per annum
HifE MM EZ BRI H o E55H ABERE payable half yearly in arrears with maturity on two years from
AR EAEEBERGABRKES 22 the date of issue. The bond holder has the right, at any time on
K E D REB A E IR 5NN T D BT any business day before the maturity date, to convert the whole
REREEIOE T ZE®EK EESHM or part of the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
AP 3R PR o {F o] 853 fE LA~ 2> 723,000,000 Bonds into ordinary shares in the issued share capital of the
B RBEH T SEEL  BIEREET Company of HK$0.10 par value each, subject to other conditions.
KRR (&5 1) AR & 273,000,000 7T+ RIS Any conversion shall be made in amounts of not less than a
U BEE R Al IR S A5 02 26 (M IESE ) whole multiple of HK$3,000,000 on each conversion unless the
REEKRS - BEYHSEREBO.62175 T at principal amount of the outstanding convertible bond is less than
& ARE 4 £ A100,000,00058 7T 2 7] # & HK$3,000,000 in which case the whole (but not part only) of such
BEAHERYERE - 8 23217160,849,284% outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Bonds shall be
IR o WA EMISEGTER « NA A] converted. 160,849,284 conversion shares will be issued upon
BN H R AE ST RIRESNASE L full conversion of the Convertible Bonds in an aggregate principal
FEELQEPRESTRBRES - IRIEDE amount of HK$100,000,000 based on the initial conversion price
Wi AABWEIZEFBLORE - AAFIAES of HK$0.6217, subject to other conditions. The Company will
MREREER 2R 2 - redeem all the outstanding Convertible Bonds at an amount of
the principal amount of such outstanding Convertible Bonds
with interest on the maturity date. The Company has no early
redemption right under the subscription agreement. Interest
accrued prior to the conversion date shall be paid by the
Company.
172 MAEROLINK CAPITAL HOLBINGS LIMITED
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CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BHEZZ-N\F+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSO

30. AT REZ (&)

RBETEY AIMBESAESRONAFE
T2E B BEAERMEEMIETH/RE
AR REREEFENE17. 41 ERFEHIARRE
ERENRNT MG BEANXTD2EBR
HTRPERFRLIH A BUNEUES
MBI KRS RETE - BER D ABEHEK AR
ENAE HEERERYIBLOBRESL -H
BASFIR (RRAIRBREFRETAHNA
FE)IESEEAARESHNEDID - X5
RATRENRETAMASHRESKEZAE
KREDBONLA#ES ZERREESNAR
KiEDSED °

RAFEABETH R RRESNREEDH
BEIT :

On the issuance date, the fair value of the liability component of
the Convertible Bonds is estimated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using the applicable borrowing rate of 17.41%
per annum, which was determined with reference to the yield
to maturity of comparable bonds with similar credit ratings and
maturities as at the issuance date with reference to a valuation
performed by an independent professional qualified valuer. The
liability component is measured on amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the
proceeds, which represented the fair value of the Convertible
Bonds at issuance date, are allocated to the equity component of
the Convertible Bonds. Transaction cost are apportioned between
liability and equity components of the Convertible Bonds based on
the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components
on the issuance date.

The movement of the liability component of the Convertible Bonds
issued during the year is as follows:

R & 5

WEBERS

Liability

component

of convertible

bonds

FET

HK$°000

R=ZZFE—NFtA=-+/~HET Issuance on 26 July 2018 80,734
R P A Transaction cost (1,009)
ERF ERX Effective interest expense 5,354
2 B Interest paid (1,945)
R-ZE—N\F+ -5 t+PWBE¥&EHR  Conversion on 14 December 2018 (83,134)

R-ZZE—NEFE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2018 =

R-ZE-—NF+-_A+—8  ARFWKREH
FREBEARRETRRESNGERITRE
R DA 2 B M T R R (B SR e B R R A
R-ZF-N\F+-_A+tHMAE  AJRKREFR
VL EREO.C21ITHE T EBRERIL AR
A B AL 3% & 3897160,849,284 0% 3 % T ¥
BreRE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %

On 11 December 2018, the Company received a conversion
notice from Macrolink Group in relation to the exercise of the
conversion rights to wholly convert the Convertible Bonds
pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Bonds. On 14 December
2018, 160,849,284 ordinary shares were allotted and issued
by the Company to Macrolink Group upon full conversion of
the Convertible Bonds based on the initial conversion price of
HK$0.6217.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

BE-ZT-\F+-A=+—RALFECHETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ATEMENTS (continued)

1. stE8 R TR EMEE 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS
—B-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
bt aE FERT FATT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B HA Current
RITER—FEA Bank loan — secured (i) 3,768 3,718
EMER-—FEHE Other loan — secured (ii) 25,000 -
H fth B 30— 4 3L 3 Other loan — unsecured (iii) 5,701 6,010
34,469 9,728
JEENER Non-current
RITER—FHKH Bank loan — secured (i) 2,512 6,196
EMER-—FEHE Other loan — secured (ii) - 25,000
2,512 31,196
CE Total 36,981 40,924
PHH Analysed into:
AEEZRITREMEE : Bank and other borrowings repayable:
——FARBRERER — Within one year or on demand 34,469 9,728
—E - F - In the second year 2,512 28,718
—F=FF2FRF(BHEEREME) - Inthe third to fifth years, inclusive = 2,478
36,981 40,924

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSO

3. SFERMITREMEER (&)

Bt -

(i)

()

(il

R=ZF—NF+ZA=+—H FAEEEWEE
i8R 17 BU 15 4R 17 & F 49798,0003 7T 8k #H F R 4
6,280,000/ 7t (= Z — 4 : 1,276,0003% 7T 5k 48
£ 499,914,0008 7T) A BWEFRIER BE - %
BRAETHE - B—FHHZRTRERE ([H
HETRERE ) MEF6AE(ZT—+F: —4F
HRBRTREREMNTF6AE) 2FFRFE R
BR-ZZE_ZTFN\AER

BITERUAEBVRBEZETNE  BER
RBEER ER=_FT—-N\F+=_HA=+—8
2 R BB H44,178,0008 T (ZF —+F ¢
46,973,000 7T) °

REBEFE—FRE ARAE 25,000,000/ 7T
B —FHERFT L AR AEEz —REE
BeFmE R - AEER_T—tF— AMBEHRR
BRER - FEMEMEFABITFHE - RFF X
SEHEBWER=ZT—N\F—AHEE-

REZZ—tF+=f AEEEZREATLHFT
W% HERHEE - SEHE—T-hF—-A=
B o

ZERTUNAEBR =T —NFE+=_A=1+—
H B8R 1 48 {8 49 /389,065,000 7t (=T —H & :
39,199,000/ 7T) 2 I EME AR A AR RHEZ A
AR (EHE I ©

RPEMRL  RoF-AF—A  AEBAZNR
EASSBERGRAT LA BE  ERE WA
T-2F-A=A-

H s IR E R AA R EL G F9.5F5
BRIRERER

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %

A M m A M (&)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHECZT—\E+-A=+—HIFE GABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a bank loan of approximately
USD798,000 or equivalent to approximately HK$6,280,000 (2017:
USD1,276,000 or equivalent to approximately HK$9,914,000) from a local
bank in Peru for financing its mining projects in Peru. The loan is denominated
in USD, interest-bearing at annual rate of London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) plus 6.4% per annum (2017: LIBOR plus 6.4% per annum) and will
be expired in August 2020.

The bank loan is secured by certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment situated in Peru with aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$44,178,000 (2017: HK$46,973,000) as at 31 December 2018.

The Group entered into an agreement with a money lender in Hong Kong for
one year term loan with principal amount of HK$25,000,000 for facilitating
the general working capital needs of the Group. The Group withdrew the loan
in full on 4 January 2017. The secured other loan is denominated in HKS,
interest-bearing at 8% per annum and was repayable in January 2018.

In December 2017, the Group entered into a supplementary agreement with
the money lender and the repayment date was further extended to 3 January
2019.

The loan is secured by certain of the Group’s investment properties
with aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$39,065,000 (2017:
HK$39,199,000) as at 31 December 2018 and corporate guarantee given by
the Company.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period in January 2019, the Group
entered into a new agreement with the money lender for the same amount of
facility with a repayment date on 3 January 2020.

The unsecured other loan is denominated in RMB, bears interest at a rate of
9.5% per annum and repayable on demand.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
HE—_Z—-N\EFE+-_A=1+—HILEE (LABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32. IEAEBIR

AEEEERREENBERFAZEFHN

T -

EEBHEEE

32. DEFERRED TAX

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

ATEMENTS (continued)

The movements in the Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities

] 3 85 R SR
RBURR Z &8

Losses

available for
offsetting

against future
taxable profits

FHET
HK$°000
R=ZE—+tF—H—H At 1 January 2017 504
RE= R 2 IEERIE Deferred tax charged to profit or loss (168)
N ZER Exchange differences 21
R—ZE—+F+-_A=+—HEK As at 31 December 2017 and
—E—-NF—H—H 1 January 2018 357
fE H 2= Exchange differences (8)
R-ZE—-NF+=-HB=+—H At 31 December 2018 349
ELEHREEE Deferred tax liabilities
BIEE EfYE ATBRRES #Et
Intangible Revaluation Convertible
asset of properties bonds Total
TERT TERT FTERT FERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-—ZE—tF—HA—H At 1 January 2017 13,868 28,005 - 41,873
W GEA) /%2 Deferred tax (credited)/charged to
EEFIIA profit or loss (5,721) 2,366 - (3,355)
REMEEmEEINRZ Deferred tax charged to other
IR I comprehensive income - 1,612 - 1,612
fE N =5 Exchange differences 891 646 - 1,537
RZZE—+F+=-HF=+—H At31 December 2017 and
k=ZFE—-—N\E—H—H 1 January 2018 9,038 32,629 - 41,667
W GEA) /%2 Deferred tax (credited)/charged to
ELFIE profit or loss (8,886) 1,062 = (7,824)
B BRESSN S Initial deferred tax on issuance of
B F I8 convertible bonds - - 3,179 3,179
R 5 B R ET A B Deferred tax credited to
EIERIIA profit or loss on payment of interest - - (563) (563)
RATRIRESE 2 EE BB Reversal on full conversion of
2 o] convertible bonds - - (2,616) (2,616)
fEH =28 Exchange differences (152) (484) - (636)
R=ZZ—NF+=H=+—H At31December 2018 - 33,207 - 33,207

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

OE B E X B R D
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NOTES TO THE CONSO

32. IELERIE (&)

AEBMBEREES 2 HIBEREL1,062,000%
T (ZZ—+t4 : 1,062,000 7T ) AJ £ R Hi B
RIEEE HIREIE 2 R A 2 R RERTEF o
7 5 B 7R A Hh B 2= A i TE B5 8 4973,671,000
Bt (ZZ— & : 57,900,000/ 7T) I #%
R—ZE=RFREm AR RERB =
FleAEBEAENZRELE ZRIEBEBIELY
1,527,000 7t (== — t 4 : 1,360,000/%8
TL) c IR AFALEE  EEATRSHRNEE
BREL 2 5 A 2 25% F A K 84 o

AEEBENEREBMBEZREEBRELY
72,623,000/ 70 (ZF — -+ : 52,796,000/
To) c MASEEELENFT Y ELEE
BRE A ERALEEE HRZEATA
MBEARSEBFE ZERTEWRA Z50% -
MABEELEAIZEE R_E—\F+=
A=+—H BEXB@HIEEEL1,245,000
BT (T —+4%F : 1,275,000/ 7T ) RIRL
HEEE BHRISHEBERAEBEEA
—BEREZHBAR  TAAUEETSHAM
EE%W%%ZE%&%M A 4 T T
HBEEEERAREHRIBEEE -

BEBEFBECEMESHENRTE NP RKZ
ZINERLERRINEEEST IR 2R EER
W10%EHNH - REEEE T NF— A
—HRBREW TEAR-_ZEZELtF+=A
T —HURBREEZAF o MR HEFBER
INEEEMBRIZERER 2 M BB H
AR ERE BB A AT - EASE
lﬁm AN ER5%10% AL - A

EARRFEKLZHBATAE -TZN
E A—BRELE 2B IR KSR
EHR - RZE—N\ERZE—tF+=H
=t H wENBERARTERELZT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
32. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$1,062,000 (2017: HK$1,062,000) and that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group has tax losses
arising in the PRC of approximately HK$73,671,000 (2017:
HK$57,900,000) that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits. The Group has tax losses arising in
Ecuador of approximately HK$1,527,000 (2017: HK$1,360,000)
that may be carried forward for five years, but may only be offset
against 25% of the profits earned in each tax year.

The Group also has tax losses arising in Peru of approximately
HK$72,623,000 (2017: HK$52,796,000) which the Group has
the option to carry forward all net operating losses for four years
or carry the losses forward indefinitely, but only up to 50% of
the taxpayer’s taxable income of each subsequent year. Loss
carryback is not permitted. Deferred tax assets have been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$1,245,000 (2017:
HK$1,275,000) of such tax losses at 31 December 2018.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
remaining tax losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
the PRC in respect of earnings generated since 1 January 2008.
There was no unremitted earnings for the PRC subsidiaries as at
31 December 2018 and 2017.
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ATEMENTS (continued)

33. & 33. SHARE CAPITAL
Number of shares Share capital
i ! A&
—B-N\F =S = —F—tF
2018 2017 2018 2017
TER FTAEL
HK$’000 HK$'000
EIE Authorised:

FREE010B T2 E®E  Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 25,000,000,000 25,000,000,000 2,500,000 2,500,000

BEERTRER Issued and fully paid:
Rn—A—H At 1 January 1,045,399,967 1,045,399,967 104,540 104,540
RREFEER Conversion of Convertible Bonds 160,849,284 = 16,085 _
R+=-B=+—H At 31 December 1,206,249,251 1,045,399,967 120,625 104,540

RZZE—N\F+ZA+HEA - JEREHFZ
) EH(E0.6217 5 L EBHEH 4 1% - AR
A2 B 3 K 3£17160,849,284 0% @ A% T &5
BEA BEITBRBESNFES  BEREE
B 75 R = MO £ 30 ©

ARAREENAFENZHEBRE - A2
BB RER 8 AR BT B BHITEREZ
FRENEE M B RKRM T4 -

. BRESE
—EBREFIERBARABRRN _-ZZ
NERNAZTNBEBEBZEERBERMERM
(THEEETE )  BEREFER-_FTNF
NAZThARRER  IRZBEFEEX
T (BRIERTTREHHIERT) ©

BREAIEERARERE RENED
BT 2EELRAEERKRERLARN
BLBN - BREAESESBHLEERS
RENERAKEZBRE  UWRBRENZF
ARBEBBEEZZ N RERPEGZK
B

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

B E A AR 2 H

On 14 December 2018, 160,849,284 ordinary shares were
allotted and issued to the bond holder upon full conversion of
the Convertible Bonds based on the initial conversion price of
HK$0.6217. Details of the Convertible Bonds are included in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s share options were cancelled during the year.
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted pursuant to the written
resolutions passed by the shareholders of the Company on
29 June 2009 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option
Scheme became effective on 29 June 2009 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is for the Group
to attract, retain and motivate talented participants to strive
for future development and expansion of the Group. The
Share Option Scheme shall be an incentive to encourage the
participants to perform their best in achieving the goals of the
Group and allow the participants to enjoy the results of the
Company attained through their efforts and contributions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 &



NOTES TO THE CONSO

34. BRAERTE (&)

BREAEZAERZEERRBNINAEREZ
ENEREELRES (BRATES  JFAT
EERBUFRTES) (I AEEZERE
M @A Bmk/ IREEEERAR
REFEERETHASERMERZEM
H AL RiNZXEAREREE LiER
FEBEHZEFAETRFTA -

RIBEEER S IR BRERITERSE
TZEEBRNEBE - HERERETSIEL]
EEAARRABEEITHD Z210% » REM12
& A MR IR e A m] 31T TRE At &R
TBEREERSREZESENHAE - 7157
HBARR RMEM K E D TR Z21% ©
E-HROBBLRBBREBERRA
SLEERRIE  TAER -

FMARAES ETBTHRABREEZRRN
REEMBBEARLBREBRSE LI
MITEFHUE - BEoN - RER21E A HIME
MERARREIERRKBILIFRTEEK
MEEMBEARLD ZEMBRES R Z K
MBAE BEARREFNKHEEETRNDZ
0.1%RBAR RN NREF L AR EFE
2 #(B{E#8385,000,000/8 7T * BIZAEBIRK
SLEBERRIE . TAEE -

RERTEREINIZEZAHEF28BA
EEARAXNABTZRBARERE
Mo TRBREZTENHESEE - I
REBRRARENBRERSE A REFR
BEtFEME RS

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %

AR WA (E)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
2 E ) N\FT+_A=1+—"HIEFE (ABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include (i) any
full-time employees and directors (including executive directors,
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors)
of the Group; (ii) any advisor or consultant to the Group, providers
of goods and/or services to the Group, and any other person
who, at the sole determination of the board of directors of the
Company, has contributed to the Group; and (i) the trustee of
any trust whose beneficiaries or objects include any aforesaid
employee or business associate.

The maximum number of share options permitted to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a vesting period and ends on a date which is
not later than ten years from the date of offer of the share options.
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34. ERAERTE (&)

BREZTEEHESRETE LSRRI
T=F2Z285%E  ((ANARRMNBRER L
BHEIRBXMEBRMERAIIZKTE : (i)
ARABRMREERE AR AARS AR
B RRERMAI 2 FHRTE - K
AR BB Z E1E

BREYEETRHEABRKREINBIRA
GRRZIEM -

BE T \FrR-_ZET—+Ft+-_A=+—
HIEFE - BRETZIET W RITEZEBR
REIR

ATEMENTS (continued)

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant of the share options;
(i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017:

—E-N\#F —E—tF
2018 2017
SR mE TR hntE
FITEE BREHA FHITEE BERESE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
per share options per share options
BT S P TT T15
HK$ ’000 HK$ 000
®n—A—H At 1 January 0.229 13,280 0.229 13,280
FANFEH Cancelled during the year 0.229 (13,280) N/A =
RNt+=-—A=+—H At 31 December

HE_ZT—+tFER-_FT—\GF+_A=+—
HIEFE  SIEEREASET ZBERED
Bl f1fEskkm - akE=ZE—N\FENA
o HERARREERER AR ER S
Ept:IHmEREREAFTENRITEER
BERZEBHERESEZHN At A2FE
KEHERMAB R RITERBRE -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

B E A AR 2 H

N/A - 0.229 13,280

No share option under the Share Option Scheme was granted,
exercised or expired during the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2018. All outstanding share options were cancelled as a
result of the acceptance on 22 August 2018 of the mandatory
cash offer made by Macrolink Group, the immediate holding
company of the Company, for cancellation of the outstanding
share options held by the option holders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSO

34. BIREFE (8) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
RZE—+F+_A=1+—H " ERTHEE The exercise price and exercise periods of the share options
feiE 2 TEERITHERINT outstanding as at 31 December 2017 were as follows:

FH ®H A BREHE BRITEE TEH

Number of Exercise price* Exercise

Year Date of grant options per share period

BT
HK$
—ETNFELARBE
—tF —EENFLANH —E—-hFtAAH
2017 6 July 2009 13,280,000 0.229 6 July 2009 to 5 July 2019
HE AR A 2 AT E AR AR SR AT AR SR AR R A AR AR * The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of
hEEMBEUESREA] FRAEK - rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.
A EIREDIRE BB ISR EERF 258 A All share options have been accounted for under HKFRS 2.
R -R_BE—+FE+_A=+—"HREKRITE The share options outstanding as at 31 December 2017 had a
EREZINETLHHBRTELHFEHR1.5F - weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.5 years.
RZEEEVEHRRENEER @ BIEEK At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements,
MESTE| - AN AT A B AR HE R AT {E o the Company had no share options outstanding under the Share

Option Scheme.
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ATEMENTS (continued)

35. #& 35. RESERVES
REBAFER F—FEZHEESBREE The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
R ARFRFTCEEFBI7TEREERE K for the current and prior year are presented in the consolidated
E5 o statement of changes in equity on pages 76 to 77 of this annual
report.

REFBZEANEEAN _EZE—F—H—H The Group’s capital reserve represents negative goodwill arisen
FRAKEmMEE B EE - on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001.

BREBERRRIFENB AR ARAA - ZHt According to the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiary
BAAEBHEBRBGET Z10%E| B E %5 F of the Company which require the appropriation of 10% of its
BHEE BEEEBESEIESRELR Y profit after tax to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance
50% 5 IF - FEEBERAEEES AKER of the reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital. The transfer
BERIEE EFERBEEN AN EmERE of the reserve must be made before distributions of dividends to
WrRRIEEHAE AEZ A Dt 2 e E & A5 owners of the Group. Statutory surplus reserve can be used for
R BB TRZEHTE VRN EGM making up losses and may be converted into capital in proportion
ERZ225% o to existing owners’ equity percentage, provided that the balance

after such issuance is not less than 25% of its registered capital.

36. EEXRFIEREZ 2L ERMK 36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL

RN NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TRIWRAER A EAFFIEREZS 2 IE The table below shows details of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
2EMB AR ZFHIE of the Group that has material non-controlling interests:
B 3 3 B R FERERRE 2 AEZE
MEAREB TEEX M P 75 g Lo FERER 2B Rt RS
Place of establishment Proportion of ownership
and principal place of interests held by the Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
ZB-N\Nf —T—+F ZB-N§F —T—+F5 ZB-N\F —T+F
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

TER TET TER TEx
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000

M %% Hunan Taiji # B PRC 40% 40% (20,116) (17,967) 30,183 52,812
REBEHEEREERERZCMBRARZH Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
BERBESHINAT - L THBERBESR subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out
SENEHEAIA DR o below. The summarised financial information below represents

amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
36. EEXRFEEREZ 2O ERHK 36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL

B AR (&) NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)
HERE Hunan Taiji
R+=A=+—H
At 31 December

—E-N\F —E—tF

2018 2017

TER FHET

HK$’000 HK$’'000

mEEE Current assets 14,968 18,628

IERBEE Non-current assets 82,231 140,110

mENE R Current liabilities (19,727) (15,653)

e UN=K Non-current liabilities - (9,038)

BE+-A=+—-BHLEE
Year ended 31 December

—E-N\F —E—+tF

2018 2017

THERT FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

A Revenue - _

E U A R Wz Other income and gains 4 243

s Expense (50,293) (45,161)

FEBRE Loss for the year (50,289) (44,918
FEHEMEZE(FAX) A Other comprehensive (expense)/income

for the year (6,283) 12,246

FEEMRAZBHE Total comprehensive expense for the year (56,572) (32,672)

BT IR R AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests = =

KEEBRERER L FHE Net cash outflow from operating activities (2,670) (7,036)

ReRAEBMRLFE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2,670) (7,036)
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ATEMENTS (continued)

37. AAE T ELE B EYHE 37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
TRHFULAEBREETHELAZEEBESE The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
PIERERIFREEE - rﬂﬁé@b?iZE from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
BEARERECHARAKRERE TR AEER changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
REHERERDEAMELTHRESRE ° which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in

the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

EfHE&
FERTEE  GEHMEE  ERAFANE TRRES L H

Amount due

Interest- Interest-  to the ultimate

bearing bank  bearing other holding Convertible

borrowings borrowings company bonds Total
Thn TET TER TER Thn
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000

“Z—+%-A-H At 1 January 2017 11,091 5,663 26 - 16,680
BEBSREELMNEEH .  Changes from financing cash flows:

MEEER New other loan - 25,000 - - 25,000
BEHTER Repayment of bank loan (1,241) - - - (1,241)
REBERAF 2 BR Advance from the ultimate holding company - - 3 - 3
Hth#5 Other changes:
fEH Exchange realignment 64 447 - - 511
WZZ—+F+-A=+—H At31December 2017 and 1 January 2018

“Z-\§—H—-H 9,914 31,010 29 - 40,953
BERSHREELMNEE .  Changes from financing cash flows:
BERTEN Repayment of bank loan (3,724) - - - (3,724)
ERETREABRRAA Repayment to the ultimate holding company = = (29) - (29)
REFAREBESNFEZIE  Proceeds from convertible bonds,

NKBETER net of issuance cost - - - 98,750 98,750
BAHE Interest paid - - - (1,945) (1,945)
Hip28: Other changes:

TRREFNERTH Equity component of convertible bonds - - - (19,025) (19,025)
RREFNERHNE Effective interest on convertible bonds - - - 5,354 5,354
ARRESEES Conversion of convertible bonds - - - (83,134) (83,134)
B3 BB Exchange realignment 90 (309) - - (219)
R=B-N\$+=B=+—H At31December 2018 6,280 30,701 - - 36,981
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CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

38.

39.

CHARGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s bank and other borrowings, which are
secured by certain pledged assets of the Group, are included in
notes 13, 14 and 31 respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS AND
COMMITMENT

(a) As lessor

The Group leases certain of its investment properties under
operating lease arrangements, which leases negotiated for
terms ranging from one to three years (2017: one to three
years).

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants falling due as follows:

—E-N\F —T—tF

2018 2017

THER T T

HK$’000 HK$'000

—F R Within one year 4,118 3,361
F_EFERF (REEREWTE) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 4,650 1,602
8,768 4,963

(b) EHRHEBEA

AEERBELEHOLHERBAE
X-DEHEZERENA—F(=F
—tFE=F) -

RZZF-NE+-A=1t—H0 £A&KH
RIF AT B SR AR AT FHI 2 H)
BNz RARREHRSEBET

(b) As lessee

The Group leases office property under operating lease
arrangements. Lease for property is negotiated for a term of
one year (2017: one to three years).

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

—E-N\F e

2018 2017

FET T T

HK$’000 HK$’000

—F RN Within one year 156 279
F_EFERF(BEEEMSE) In the second to fifth years, inclusive = 30
156 309
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ATEMENTS (continued)

40. FKRRFFER 40. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS

@ HBEMSIR-_ZE—=F+AK (@) Junefield Building Material filed two applications for
—E—AFtT AT EBEREEEZ S arbitration proceedings at the China International
MEEER ([PREEG]) BRMXM Economics and Trade Arbitration Commission (“Arbitration
HEHE NERE Y D EIRE R Commission”) against the minority shareholder of Hunan
HEPRE)AEBER_ZE—F— A4 Taiji, Lianyuan Steel in October 2013 and December 2015
—HE_Z—=Ff N \A=+—HHHEK respectively for compensations on, inter alia, failing to
RZE—=FNLA—BE=_ZF—AFN procure the requested amount of supply of the granulated
A=+tHHRBBREREREZE S steel slag for production (“Steel Slag Supply”) for the
B MeEEEERRAEE Z /KB ([KEH periods from 1 January 2011 to 31 August 2013 and from
FE]) ZREEE REMERER (DRl A 1 September 2013 to 30 September 2015 under Hunan
[BE— R EAEMBBEBIRE ZRFEHE Taiji’s joint venture agreement (the “First Taiji Arbitration
mEEFE]D - Application” and the “Second Taiji Arbitration Application”

respectively).
RZZE—RF—H - ik (EM) EEM In January 2015, Junefield Building Material was awarded
HEESEEAERBRE — NEEMEBD the First Taiji Arbitration Application by the Arbitration
ZEOR - HB (BM) BN - —+F Commission. Junefield Building Material ultimately received
NA - HEGERMEEE (MEs5) - the compensation from Lianyuan Steel on 2 August 2017
(note 5).

RZZE—tFRA HEBEMN RS In May 2017, Junefield Building Material further filed an
TR EMRBERFELE - FEIZH application to extend the claiming period ended from 30
OB REHEBRIER=-_ZTE—RAFAN September 2015 to 31 August 2016 with a revised claim
A=+HEREIR=ZZ—X~"FNA amount of approximately RMB71,485,000 in respect of the
=t+—H ZEBFIEESHEHNARE Second Taiji Arbitration Application and it was successfully
71,485,0007T * WK EMHHEZE SR accepted by the Arbitration Commission. Up to the date
2o HESAMBMRIMMELL - FoL of approval of these consolidated financial statements, the
i ARVEL © ruling has not been given yet.
NEEAERHE-—_T—+tFEE_-_Z In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
—N\E+-_A=1+—BHIFENLEEEH of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
FEHERE  BEAREBEDEEEER Y 2018, based on the legal opinion of the Group’s PRC legal
SFREE AATEEYE - KEEMH advisors, the directors of the Company were of the opinion
HEE T H AR o that the ruling on the Second Taiji Arbitration Application

was cautiously optimistic.
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CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
2 E ) N\FT+_A=1+—"HIEFE (ABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
40. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(b)

On 27 August 2018, the Company received a notice of
response to action (FEFFEBAIE) issued by the Intermediate
People’s Court of Beijing of the PRC, pursuant to which the
plaintiff, being a 49%-equity owned shareholder of 1t FUH
EEEHMTIRER AR (Beijing Urban Construction Hudson
Decoration Engineering Company Limited “BJUC”), inter alia,
claimed an economic loss of approximately RMB4,400,000
and the related costs arising from repayments to certain
creditors during the process of mandatory dissolution of
BJUC in the PRC in 2015 (“Mandatory Dissolution”). BJUC
is a former indirectly 51%-owned subsidiary of the Company
which engaged in the provision of decoration services,
electrical and mechanical work in the PRC. The Company
disposed the entire equity interests in Huaxia Construction
Limited (“HCL”) together with its 51% equity interest in
BJUC in year 2009.

In this case, the plaintiff claimed against () HCL as the first
defendant; (i) Mr. Liu Zhongsheng as the second defendant,
being the legal representative of BJUC and a former director
of the Company who resigned in March 2015; and (iii) the
Company as the third defendant with joint and several
liabilities.

Based on the advice from the legal advisors in the PRC,
both the Company and Mr. Liu Zhongsheng, being the
then ultimate beneficial owner of HCL and one of the
former directors of BJUC respectively, should not be liable
to the adverse consequences caused by the Mandatory
Dissolution. Subject to the aforesaid legal advice, the
Company will proceed to oppose the case and the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the claim could be
successfully declined. As a result, no provision has been
made in the consolidated financial statements.

On 22 February 2019, Junefield Building Material was
informed by Hunan Taiji that a notice of response to action
(FEEFEANE) dated 12 February 2019 from the Intermediate
People’s Court of Loudi City, Hunan Province, the PRC,
was received, pursuant to which Lianyuan Steel, as plaintiff,
had in September 2018 requested a court judgement to
dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to the termination of Hunan Taiji’s
joint venture agreement due to the prolonged shareholders’
disputes.

The court hearing of this case has been scheduled to be
held on 25 September 2019. Based on the legal opinion
of the legal advisors in the PRC, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the outcome of the ruling
of this litigation is uncertain and cannot be estimated with
reasonable certainty.
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REMBRRME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLFE UGB TINE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41. BEHFXRS 41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

B th F4R A BTSSR R MIFES « 30M405FH 2 R In addition to the transactions detailed in notes 8, 30 and 40 to

ATEMENTS (continued)

S8 REBRFANEBERTETUTER the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following
R material transactions with related parties during the year:

(@) BELZEARXRS

(@) Significant transactions with related parties

—E-N\E —E—tF

2018 2017

Bt TET FHT

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

Ecuamining Mineral 2 { EU{f & Commission charged by Ecuamining Mineral (i) 159 437
Mk (E8) AR A ANz Rental expenses paid to Junefield (Holdings)

e Limited (ii) = 187
Bk (£E) AR AR T2 Management fees paid to Junefield (Holdings)

EEE Limited (ii) 1,080 856
MABERR YNz HER Sub-leasing fee paid to related companies (i) = 106
BEl—HEBEEQAZ Sub-leasing service fee income received

RS E from a related company (iv) = 218
MBAERA R X NNEREE Management fees paid to a related company (v) 593 -
[m) B8 3 1~ 5] I B A Management fees income from a related

EEEBERA company (vi) 554 =
BEIED =R Convertible bonds interest paid to Macrolink

AR & 5 T 8 Group (vii) 1,945 =

HaE - Notes:

188

(i)

(i

EH(ARRzHEEZENBAR) &
Ecuamining Minerals] 37 £ 5 (X 12 17 3% -
&It - 3E# R E Z FimEcuamining Mineral
FAEETEARELNZBRERBERH
BHERMEZRBRIERN  AHMFE-
Ecuamining Mineral&— &7 Je I % @& 7 i
R Z AR HARLEERKEERE -

AEELSFGF =T —ttF—F—RHE=Z
—+tFE=A+RBR-_ZT—+F=H+/H
E-E-N\EFE+-_A=+—BHBE R
(EE)ERARAXNHEEAIRERE -
R-ZE—NELA=-+/ B8 5 (EEH)
BRARARDBNRELZERRE =T
— N\ —A—BE-FT—N\FtA=-+H
HEAM AT X T80 E 2B R 8 49613,000/8
L HZE—N\FELA=+ B HE
(EE)ERARKAREENBERR -
R_TE—NFLtA-Z+NAE-ZT—N\F
T A=+ BHEAIANEERAEL
467,000 - B A AT REEE I H
A5 KRB E °

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

A

P

B

X AR 2 A

(i)

Like Top, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the sourcing agent agreement with Ecuamining Mineral,
pursuant to which Like Top agreed to appoint and Ecuamining Mineral
agreed to act as sourcing agent of Like Top to procure the supply of
mineral concentrates or its related products in Ecuador for a term of
two years. Ecuamining Mineral is a company incorporated in Ecuador
and is ultimately wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou.

The Group paid rental expenses and management fees to Junefield
(Holdings) Limited for the periods from 1 January 2017 to 15 March
2017 and 16 March 2017 to 31 December 2018 respectively. Prior to
26 July 2018, Junefield (Holdings) Limited was the ultimate holding
company of the Company and management fees paid for the period
from 1 January 2018 to 25 July 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$613,000. Since 26 July 2018, Junefield (Holdings) Limited
became a related company to the Group and management fees paid
for the period from 26 July 2018 to 31 December 2018 amounted
to approximately HK$467,000. The monthly rental expenses and
management fees were mutually agreed between the contracting
parties.
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M BEFRS (E)

(a)

Bzt

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

B R £ XE)

BELSZEARS (&)

(%)

RNRAE 2z EER2ENE R FLima Airlines£
Total Geniusk & JKIEEBR AR ([BIK])
] RS T % o Total GeniusB— IR
WMEBEMAZOAR - MEKE—ERES
MR 2 AR o ZMEA R HKRBEEL
E2EHA -

HE-ZE—+t&+=-BA=+—HItEE"
Lima Airlines B Junefield Group S.A.MEUR
5 AR B U » Junefield Group S.A. &
— A WE A AR RN &AL H AL E
2EHE -

SR (7] & R R AR B SR B R A Rl A
ERE  AQREFERATEEBELLER
ZABTHEAEmED c BEBIAAINT
HRBE -

7~ £ [ B Macrolink International Investment
Co. Ltd. WM ERE - MEFELENZAA
FHEEEm R o

NEBEEHR T \FLtA=-+"ARAE
ARG EEERAR - (RRESFST)
R N\FELAZ+RNAE=_ZT—\F
+=A+HBHEXA -

(i) > MEWNV)EZBER

RHBRLETRUFVAAEREZFHE
BERS - ERN EWMRRAFE14A760E
REXRHERLETERRR  AER
B R AR IR E -
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A BREWT (E)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BREZT - \F+-_A=+—HBILFE CABETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Significant transactions with related parties
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(il

(vi)

(vii)

Lima Airlines, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sub-leasing of aircraft agreement with Total Genius
and Mega Choice Investment Limited (“Mega Choice”). Total
Genius is a company incorporated in Peru and Mega Choice is a
company incorporated in Hong Kong. Both companies are ultimately
wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou.

Lima Airlines received sub-leasing service fee income of aircraft from
Junefield Group S.A. during the year ended 31 December 2017.
Junefield Group S.A. is a company incorporated in Peru and is
ultimately wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou.

The Group paid management fees to a related company, New Silkroad
Culturaltainment Limited, in which Mr. Fu Kwan, the chairman and
an executive director of the Company, has beneficial interest. The
management fees were mutually agreed between the contracting
parties.

The Group received management fee from Macrolink International
Investment Co. Ltd., in which Mr. Fu Kwan has beneficial interest.

Macrolink Group has been the immediate holding company of the
Company since 26 July 2018. Convertible bonds interest was paid for
the period from 26 July 2018 to 14 December 2018.

The related party transactions in respect of item (i),

(i),

(v) and (vi) above constitute continuing connected

transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
These transactions are exempted from all the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements by virtue of rule 14A.76 of the Listing rules.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SAMBEERME (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

BE_Z-N\F+-A=1+—BLEEUBTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ATEMENTS (continued)

1. BEHFRX S (&) 41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) HFEEBzETEEEAEZH (b) Compensation of key management personnel
& of the Group
—E-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
FTERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RHEERT Short term employee benefits 3,275 2,740
R B 4 A Post-employment benefits 31 18
BENEEERBAB2HELE Total compensation paid to key
management personnel 3,306 2,758
FiiEE R S EBERK R A FE14AF The above related party transactions do not constitute
EEZHAEIFIHFEMERS - connected transactions or continuing connected

transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

42. BRERB S ZEWMITE 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
NEHABAERE KBS TEZER The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
BT : instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
LREE Financial assets

A FE

LA #8 $5 BY AN A HA
FFEHN 2EWKEMN

SREE SREE et
Financial
assets at Financial
amortised assets
cost at FVTOCI Total
FET FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E-N\EF 2018
BAFEFAEMEERZEZ Equity investments at FVTOCI

IR & - 508 508
JRE W B 3R Accounts receivable 1,300 - 1,300
BREEEMNRIE ke k Financial assets included in prepayments,

HMERHRIB 2/ EE deposits and other receivables 1,124 - 1,124
JE s B 3 R R FRIB Amounts due from related companies 334 - 334
R MIRITAEER Cash and bank balances 100,901 - 100,901

103,659 508 104,167

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BRECZ— \F+=A=+—BILFECUBTIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSO

42. ZEREs 2B T A (&)

tRMEE (&) Financial assets (continued)
FEiRiB s
EAYE
BRI
CREE— Bk Al EEE
BIEEE FE W SR IE TREE et
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or for-sale
loss — held Loans and financial
for trading  receivables assets Total
FABT FABT FABT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—T—+F 2017
Al EHEIRE Available-for-sale investment = - 2,064 2 064
e U B = Loan receivable - 397 - 397
JE U BR 3R Accounts receivable - 1,105 - 1,105
BREEBEMNRIE - EZE K Financial assets included in
HthEWGIBz 2B E prepayments, deposits and
other receivables = 4,752 = 4,752
g RN @ Amounts due from related
companies - 194 - 194
FREREATEREZ Financial instruments at fair value
TRITE through profit or loss
—EmBRAREE (FE) — Listed equity investments
(Hong Kong) 1,047 - - 1,047
B4 LIB1TEH Cash and bank balances - 34,290 - 34,290
1,047 40,738 2,064 43,849
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SAMBEERME (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

BE-ZT-\F+_A=+—HLFE CIBTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

ATEMENTS (continued)

42. ZBHE D 2T A (&)

(continued)

LHERE Financial liabilities
REBEREIREZERMEE

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost
—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
FTERT FATT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERTRR SR Accounts payable 7,028 5,169

BREEHMEMNRIERE A& Financial liabilities included in other payables and

SR aE accruals 33,161 36,526
FFRRITREMEER Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 36,981 40,924

e B AR A IR R R IR

Amount due to the ultimate holding company - 29

N R NG B ] Amounts due to related companies 3,780 3,818
80,950 86,466
43. SMTE>AFERAFESHE 43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
EEENG O REeLBRESEED EKRE Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
o EUWERR BIEEAEENZE e EHE cash equivalents, loan receivable, accounts receivable, financial
MEWRBENSHEE  FEWEED T assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
IH - ENED BREEHMENSKIBE R EST amounts due from related companies, accounts payable, financial
BEZEHMAEE FEETREMES  E liabilities included in other payables and accruals, interest-bearing
R AT RIBRENBEEARRIEZ bank and other borrowings, amount due to the ultimate holding
AP EEREEmMERS  TEARZEIT A company and amounts due to related companies approximate to
ZEHBARE - their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.
SCRHEENBBEZATFTERENRXSPES The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
AEETRXBREBA T A 2B ARE @ Gdsk at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
ERHERIIN ARG ATEEZ AELER current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
B NE or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:
192 MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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A BREWT (E)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BHEZZ-N\F+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
43. ST E 2 RPN ENAFEES 4 43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

NOTES TO THE CONSO

(88) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

TR AREZ AFEIATSHRE SE The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
o RNBIZCESRAABMERERSG 2G5t market prices. The directors believe that the estimated fair values
AFE(RAGZETBRREK) RAEEAFE resulting from the valuation technique, which are recorded in
B (B BREZREZAFEREUARIZ AT the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
Bt AEt 2B EzBAKREMS © 55! changes in fair values, which are recorded in the consolidated
SFAGEERRRGEEMKER) BAE statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
TREEBEBEARSEHASEEEZEE - comprehensive income for equity investments at FVTPL and at

FVTOCI respectively, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

AEEDR Fair value hierarchy
TRINRAEE T AEZ AFEFTFEDR © The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy

of the Group’s financial instruments.

BAFRBEFEZEE Assets measured at fair value
£ E-& E= F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

FTERT FTERT FTERT FTERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

R-ZZE—N\F As at 31 December 2018:
+t=-A=t+—8:
AT EFAEMEEYE Equity investments at FVTOCI
ZRAEE
— EmlRAKRE - Listed equity investments 508 - - 508
RZZE—+tF As at 31 December 2017:
+t-A=+—8:
Al E IR E Available-for-sale investment
— EHRAKRE — Listed equity investment 2,064 - - 2,064
FERBHIREATERE 2  Financial instruments at fair value
SRTE through profit or loss
— EMRAREE (FE) — Listed equity investment
(Hong Kong) 1,047 — — 1,047
3,111 - - 3,111

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BEMBHRME (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

HE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HLFE UGB TINE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
43. ST E 2 RPN ENAFEES 4 43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

ATEMENTS (continued)

(88) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

RAFE TEFE-—REF_HHEZAFEE During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

FTEEE TEEASELE =R (ZFT—+ measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into

Fm) o or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil).

44. B EREEBNREE 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

AREBKEEHEMEIEHGER - TiHE The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

o (BN RE R - IR B R AR AN E S E market risk (including interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and

%) EERRBREREESRER AEBZE equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall

ERkEBtEEITRNESTISTER 2 risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of

B BB EE RSB BRRT R E financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects

FEmEEZ- on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) F== B (a) Interest rate risk
R-ZE—N\F+_HA=+—H K&EEH At 31 December 2018, the Group’s exposure to the risk of
2SN REFEKREEH MZHF R changes in market interest rates relates primarily to bank
RITIEE  ZEBEZE—TFHBIR borrowings with floating interest rates, further details of
SR BIRSRRMIEEST - ANEE B AT these borrowings are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
HHmEFERER - A BEERYE financial statements. The Group currently does not hedge its
RHNEER  TEEEEHEZEEHRE exposure to interest rate risks. However, the management
RZHER o monitors the interest rate risk exposure closely and will

consider hedging significant interest rate risk exposure
should the need arise.

BBE T Sensitivity analysis

A TSRRE D IIRE BIRITEER The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
WMEHKRITERTHNFRRARETE - A& on the exposure to interest rates for interest-bearing bank
ERAAKIOOEES  EREXEEE borrowings at the end of the reporting period. A 100 basis
HAEGE ] g BRI T - points increase and decrease are used and represents

management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

st SRITHE EF X _EA100MEE B - If the interest rate on interest-bearing bank borrowings had
MmATA Ml EEZEFTE  BIARE been 100 basis points higher and all other variables were
BEEz_ZTE—N\F+-_A=+—HIt held constant, the Group’s loss before tax for the year
FE M BR TR AT & 18 5 35 11 4962,000/5 7T ended 31 December 2018 would increase by approximately
ZZE—+F 110,000 7T) * ThER HK$62,000 (2017: HK$110,000) as a result of the Group’s
AEBEZZEFRFITEERNF ER exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
i o fini 5T B ER1T 18 B A & T FE1001E & borrowings. If the interest rate on interest-bearing bank
2 MAABEEM A EREZEETE - borrowings had been 100 basis points lower and all other
BEHBRHAEEEEHSERERZY variables were held constant, there would be an equal and
2o opposite impact on the loss before tax.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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44. B EBEEBENREE (&)

(a)

(b)

A =mE b (&)
HBE D W (&)

AAREERA - ARNERBR TR
ERRB - REBEH LR EES
FIEER -

S L B

AEEEHIZERER - ZFRRK
BEEBEMERAEMNEEEAINGR
BT ZHERRE - ARBEZTELE
REBHURPERWE  MEZEFED
ZRABIRZYUAARE - REME
TETT - RERB LB EERAREY
AAR®E - RERETINE - RBSH
R AEERAFEFAREGBEZEKES
ZRARRENRITEE o

A5 B B SN DR ER © AT -
ERETDESNEAR LEARE
B B AR E A2 SMERR -

BB LB T 4 - B BRSNS LR
BT @AM RUBE 2 U8R 5
AR (BB R 2 ) 3
o B HEB T A REE S T
B TREFERA LB HRERTE
ZHRT - AREBHAEE (B R
EERABATEEDHI) RAEHE
2 SRR 25 HRD S B A R R
TEEZ ABTMBH 7 R -
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B AU BB ERE (&)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHEZZE-N\FE+-_BA=1+—HIEFEE (LABTHE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

In the opinion of directors of the Company, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of inherent interest rate risk
as the year ended exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
The Group’s major operations and businesses are located
in the PRC and Peru and substantially all transactions are
conducted in RMB, Soles and USD. All the assets and
liabilities of these businesses are denominated in RMB,
Soles and USD. At the end of the reporting period, equity
investments at FVTOCI of the Group are denominated in
AUD.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Since HK$ is pegged to USD, relevant foreign currency
risk is minimal, and substantially all of the revenue and
cost of sales in Peru are denominated in Soles which is the
functional currency of the operating units. Accordingly, their
fluctuation are excluded from the sensitivity analysis. The
following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB and AUD exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s loss before tax (due to changes
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) and the
Group’s equity.
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CAMBBENT (&)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
BHE-_Z—N\E+-_A=+—AH1EFE (ABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

44, B EBREEBENREE (&)

(b) &5 B ()

AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Foreign currency risk (continued)

ATEMENTS (continued)

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

BEiEgm, BRBE AT 18 =M,
CR2) WD (&) O 4 )*
Decrease/
Increase/ (increase) Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
% TET FHET
% HK$’000 HK$’000
—E-N\F 2018
WS THARBEE If HK$ weakens against RMB 5 (265) -
s 78 T A R EEFHE If HK$ strengthens against RMB (5) 265 -
(BN i A=) If HK$ weakens against AUD 5 - 25
i 7 7T H R T FHE If HK$ strengthens against AUD (5) - (25)
BE =38 0, BRI & B =g,
CR ) w8 m) ORt )
Decrease/
Increase/ (increase) Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
% FHT FET
% HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt 2017
B ITHE ARKEE If HK$ weakens against RMB 5 (291) =
ST ARBAE If HK$ strengthens against RMB (5) 291 =
fid & T H OB T B If HK$ weakens against AUD 5 31 103
fisi 7 T 5 R T FHE If HK$ strengthens against AUD (5) (31) (103)

TN EFER R i F

EEERS  HRFRAORRL TR
FANER - BBEREDT LT KRE

BRSMNER K ©

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

A

-

B E A AR 2 F

Excluding retained profits

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent exchange risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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44. B EBEEBENREE (&)

(c)

TO THE CONSO

e A RBERE (&)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
HEZZ— ) \E+-A=+—BLEE GAETIME)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

R B 4% R B

(c) Equity price risk

P AE(EAE E R 18 I A RE 75 2 A FE R
SRBUKTERERNESEELRZESM
WA Z B RAREHR - AREE
# 2 B ER AR E I RIE A FER
AR 2 ERE 2 RARE Z 85 A
BRE - ARERBEMNESFZZALEMZ
EHRE TR E MR AERE P Rm(E
18 -

RAFESEOBERR IR HALE
By [ 4 SR B - Bt X2 P SO RE 52 X 5 P
ZTEBRREBRERAZFARSH
KRBT

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as equity investments at
FVTOCI as at the end of the reporting period. The Group’s
listed investments are listed on the ASX Limited and are
valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period.

The market equity indices for the Stock Exchange and the
ASX Limited, at the close of business of the nearest trading
day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and their
respective highest and lowest points during the year were as
follows:

—E-N\F &/ & —E—tF =/ &
+=A=t+-—8 High/low +—H=+—H High/low
31 December —=Z—N\fF 31 December —E
2018 2018 2017 2017

B

I\

BIMNE SRS
—REERRMES

-~ B8

BAERH

Stock Exchange
— Hang Seng Index

ASX Limited

X 5 F20048 21

— S&P/ASX 200 Index

25,846 33,154/24,586 29,919 30,003/22,134

5,646 6,352/5,468 6,065 6,088/5,611
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RAMBRRKME (H)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

BE_Z-N\F+-A=1+—BLEEUBTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

44, B EBREEBENREE (&)

(c) BEE®SRER (&)

TREREMBEMESESTEAR
ABMEREZBERAT  RAREZRF
ESEE% 2 BEE - HREARKRE
RS RREARE ZFREEFE -

AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Equity price risk (continued)

ATEMENTS (continued)

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting

period.
BRBE AT 18 R
BREE AL (Em) O )
Decrease/
(increase) Increase/
Carrying in loss (decrease)
amounts before tax in equity*
FET THER TERT
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—2-N\F 2018
wEETR : Investments listed in:
Efbih[E — = A FEFTA Elsewhere — equity investments
HEih2E W 2 RARE at FVTOCI 508 - 25/(25)
Br T Al B 18 g,
BRmEE b (gm) OB A )
Decrease/
(increase) Increase/
Carrying in loss (decrease)
amounts before tax in equity*
FHET FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E—tF 2017
TE LR : Investments listed in:
EAE—FEER Hong Kong — Held-for-trading 1,047 52/(52) -
H b [m —r] L HE Elsewhere — Available-for-sale 2,064 - 103/(103)

T EFER R i A
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R EUHBRMKE (&)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BHEZZ-N\F+_A=+—HLEFEGBETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Credit risk

NOTES TO THE CONSO

44. B EBEEBENREE (&)

(d) EERB

AEEESMRTESREEZ ATKE S
B UERRFHRSGHTNEERER
RBRELETE - X HEE RRIET B B
1 o s - AN SR E HR (B R KRR
RO AW El S RIELEZ - AEERT
AR Bl R IR R SR E R 18

AEEEMbEREE(BRAESRAS
FEY  BREEMNFIEA R REA
FEMCER IR B & B B B K FE MR B & X B
RB)NEERRERXZHEOMESL
R ERESENZETANEREE -

HRAEERERIREGEEZFE=FH
ETEE  WESERS - RREHHE
ERE AEEAETEFEERR -
AXREBGZARFRAREFE D BIEA
EEB0% (ZZ—tF 1 49%) %30% (=
T—+F :86%) ZEUBRFK -

AN 22 P I BR - AN SR B PR KRR
RERB AL ERRAEERE -

ERRBUREFUINNEREE ~5H
EEEVRERRZRENNA L
TREEREHFEEREERRES
EREELZN  RABEERARELD
REERN AEBKREEEESRE
3B 480 [ B2 1) 2 FE BR B OB 4 L
THE - AEEEERAERAIXIFN
AIEMEE B - NS B Bt MR FUA SN
CREERABUESBARREEER
g MRS ED BB REE -
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The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial assets
periodically to ensure that potential credit risk of the
counterparty is managed at an early stage and sufficient
provision is made for possible defaults. In addition, the
Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each
individual accounts receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
and amounts due from related companies, arises from
default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
certain concentrations of credit risk as nil (2017: 49%) and
30% (2017: 86%) of the Group’s accounts receivable were
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively.

The Group applies simplified approach to measure expected
credit losses for accounts receivable as disclosed in note
22.

For financial assets other than accounts receivable,
the Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. The Group uses
four categories for financial assets other than accounts
receivable which reflect their credit risk and how the loss
provision is determined for each of those categories.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
BE-T—\F+-A=+—BILtFE ABTHE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

44, B EBREEBENREE (&)

(d) SE=RE (&)

ATEMENTS (continued)

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) Credit risk (continued)

28 AEEERIENESR BRAHFEFRENER
Category Group definition of category Basis for recognition of ECL
BHIH RGEFTHELQRR DK - BB 12 AFEHEEEE
8 8K IA
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default 12-month ECL
and does not have any past due amounts
7 & B AR EEE AR S KCBREIE M ERFEHEREEBE - RMERRE
Doubtful There has been a significant increase in Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired
credit risk since initial recognition
EH ERBERTEECEAREA BREGEPERAEEEE - ERRE
Default There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL - credit impaired
credit impaired
s ERBRTESAZERENMBREE - HSEME
2N &R B Y Bl FRIA H) 7 BB SE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is  Amount is written off

in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery

200 MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSO

e A RBERE (&)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
HEZZ— ) \E+-A=+—BLEE GAETIME)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

44, B EBREEBENREE (&)

(d) SE=RE (&)

R-FE-N\F+-A=1+—HWEK
SEBURREFEERNBESE
TRERN -_ZE—N\F+=-A=+—H
BEAEENGEERRETNEREE
MamEERR  EXEZaEEHA
AR BRIEEMEREAMNETEKA
% N BN A LS - RIVERIGR © PTYI3REY
CHEACHEENERERE -

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at
31 December 2018

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, as at 31
December 2018. The amounts presented are gross carrying
amounts for financial assets.

128 AR H
FEEE EEFEANRAGERE
12 month ECL Lifetime ECL
K& Efd 12 FoER KPS @t
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
Thr TER TER TER Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EYET Accounts receivable* = = 5 1,300 1,300
ARERMNTE Kek Financial assets included in prepayments,
EthERFEz e BEE deposits and other receivables
-E®" - Normal* 1,124 - - = 1,124
= UNSE ] Amounts due from related companies
—EF" - Normal*™ 334 - - - 334
Be RRTES Cash and bank balances
-RBE - Net yet past due 100,901 - - - 100,901
102,359 - - 1,300 103,659

* BRAAEEERREBRCENERER -
EHTEREEERTENEREREMBR
KU FE22AWE -

h BREEBMNFEA R REGRKKALZS
BB EA R EKEE R R FURE M ARG H A
TEREHKAEBEENFERERRA VA

REREEBEELA  HEREESIRER
[EF]-RAl SREENEREESHRE
RITEsE] o

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information on the ECL calculation is
disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables and amounts due from related
companies is considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the
credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 5.,
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AN KBENT (&)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
HE—_Z—-N\EFE+-_A=1+—HILEE (LABTIE)

ATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
44. AR EE B R BUER (F)

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(e) ABELREMR (e) Liquidity risk
AREB ZHERIITHERETHESE The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
Ko EIRERE SRR GEAENSE requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
B BRI RBE ST K - R1T of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short,
E—REEBETEBETEERE - medium and longer term. Banking and general facilities have
been put in place for contingency purposes.
REEBRHESREME  AEBEERK In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
wIEE KRS RIREEEBY M and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
ZKFEERERBRHAREEAEFS adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
BVEASZEENRALESRE RS 2 operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
2 o flows.
AEBZ @B ERREBEERER The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
BEAORTBENRZEBHANAT : the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
—E-N\F 2018
RERY =E+=
=@AUR @A A —Z8F gt
On demand 3 to
or less than less than 1to5
3 months 12 months years Total
FExT FET FExT FExT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FESBRERX Accounts payable 7,028 - - 7,028
BEEHEMEMIZIER  Financial liabilities included in
ExtaEzcsmtaE other payables and accruals 33,161 - - 33,161
SFERTREREMESE Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 31,763 3,076 2,589 37,428
FEARAE A A RIE Amounts due to related
companies 3,780 - - 3,780
75,732 3,076 2,589 81,397

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

HOE B

X AR 2 A
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A BREWT (E)
CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BEZT—\F+-A=1+—BLEFEE ABTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSO

44. B EBEEBENREE (&)

(e) RBELRM (&) (e) Liquidity risk (continued)
—E—L+F 2017
&SRk EET=
=@A A & A AR —EAF et
On demand 3 to
or less than less than
3 months 12 months 1 to 5 years Total
FABT FAT FAT FABT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AR 3R Accounts payable 5,169 = = 5,169
BEEEMEMIUIEK  Financial liabilities included in
ErtEAEzERBE other payables and accruals 36,526 - - 36,526
FFRRITREMEER Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 7,543 4,784 31,627 43,954
FENRKIERATIZIE  Amount due to the ultimate
holding company 29 - - 29
FES B8 E R R FIA Amounts due to related
companies 3,818 - - 3,818
53,085 4,784 31,627 89,496

(f)

EXxER
AEEEAER 2 TEARRREAE
BREECERERBEZE R NME
FREZEALLE  AXFKEEBLE
ERSBREE-

REFHFABREREE  AKEREH
BRARREKNREZSBEHETHR
BoBE_E—NER-_E—+E+=
AS+—BLEE SERERER
B1iZ - BURSKBRIEL &8 -

AEBNES S @St X (ERF
BB BEDS) EREER - B FE
REBE (BREBNRAER AR
1B~ ENEELRRRE MG BRITRE
iEE) RRE MRS EEWTE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 %

(f)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

The Group monitors capital using the debt-to-total equity
ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt
is calculated as total borrowings (including amount due
to the ultimate holding company, amounts due to related
companies and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings)
less cash and cash equivalents.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oEBR A AR R DA



mEMBERERME (&
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

BE-T—\F+-A=+—B1L5E NBTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

44. BIEREEB N R BE (&)

AND POLICIES (continued)

ATEMENTS (continued)

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

EXREE (F) (f) Capital management (continued)
R_E—NFEFR_ZT—+tF+=A4 The debt-to-total equity ratios at 31 December 2018
=T —BAEBREHEEREENT and 2017 were as follows:
—E2-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
THEx T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Total borrowings 40,761 44,771
W BRERBREEED Less: Cash and cash equivalents (100,822) (34,201)
Net debt (60,061) 10,570
= Total equity 259,867 294,648
B @R X Debt-to-total equity ratio N/A 4%

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE B EXE R 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSO

45. N1 7] Z B B AR R &

5

BE-T—

MBEHmRRME (&)

CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NEFE+—A=+—"8BIEFECABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
BEAKRRAR R HREBB L RE Z TGN R Information about the statement of financial position of the
ZERIT Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERBEE Non-current assets
W - WERE Property, plant and equipment 19 444
RHBRAIZIEE Investments in subsidiaries 41,654 2,405
FERBEERE Total non-current assets 41,673 2,849
REEE Current assets
B IE E‘f&ﬁi\{mﬁ’guﬂz%’\lﬁ Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 329 843
FE WL B BB A Rl FIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 119,912 285,957
#EiRa m?ﬁ@i@&%@Zﬁ%ﬂIﬂ Financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss - 1,047
He MIRTTHEH Cash and bank balances 79,325 14,081
mE & E LA Total current assets 199,566 301,928
RBEE Current liabilities
HihEMNRENESEE Other payables and accruals 14,782 11,957
FFEHEMEER Interest-bearing other borrowing 5,701 6,010
FEHB—“% INGIE- @5 Amount due to the ultimate holding company = 29
FET FRIE Amounts due to related companies - 456
nEBEEE Total current liabilities 20,483 18,452
REBEEFE Net current assets 179,083 283,476
EERERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 220,756 286,325
BEEFE Net assets 220,756 286,325
R Equity
AAREEAEGLESR Equity attributable to owners of the Company
% 2 Share capital 120,625 104,540
k] Reserves 100,131 181,785
mED Total equity 220,756 286,325
B RE
Fu Kwan Zhang Jian
Ea EBF
Director Director
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GAMBERME (H)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
BE-_T— \F+-_A=+—HI-FE (B THE)

ATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

45. AT 2 BB RE () 45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
Hita - Note:
KATIBERENT : A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
CIE-3::31- HREEF,
R HEER SRE BREMRE (REHE#8) st
Retained
Share Convertible Share profits/
premium bonds option (accumulated
account reserve reserve loss) Total
FER FER FER FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R=ZFE—+F—A—H At 1 January 2017 78,399 - 1,673 159,802 239,874
FEXEMASER Total comprehensive expense
for the year - - - (568,089) (58,089)
R-ZE—+F+_-_HA=+—H At31 December 2017 and
rE=F—-NF—A—H 1 January 2018 78,399 - 1,673 101,713 181,785
FEXERASER Total comprehensive expense
for the year - - - (167,165) (167,165)
TPy EE AR RE Cancellation of share options - - (1,673) 1,673 -
1T B IR E 5 Issuance of convertible bonds - 19,266 - - 19,266
HRBEESFETER Convertible bonds issuance expenses - (241) - - (241)
A R & A5 e R Conversion of convertible bonds 85,511 (18,462) - = 67,049
AR 5 BB E T TH Deferred tax on convertible bonds - (563) - - (563)
R=-Z—NF+=-HA=+—H At31December 2018 163,910 - - (63,779) 100,131

46. EFE S M BH K 46.

HAEMBHRENR_FT-NEF=A-_+tAE
E=oi el RETE-

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B E XA R DA

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2019.
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PARTICULARS OF INV

REEBR-_Z—N\F+-_A=+—HB2&&EW% Detais of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 December 2018

SHEWT are as follows:
BREERE
1t B (EHXK) HEER A&
Approximate
gross floor area Category of
Location (square meter) the lease term Use
Office units 708, 728, 731, 732, Rl R A E 851 TifEmE [GE
734,735, 1132, BERMIRERE EHR - TmmE Commercial
1510 and 1516 of Tower 1 HEEGE & =A-t—HEMm
Junefield Plaza 708 ~ 728~ 731732 Land use rights
No. 6 Xuan Wu Men Wai Dajie 734735 1132 for a term expired on
Xi Cheng District, Beijing 1510 %1516 E R Efr 21 March 2044
the PRC
Office units 725-729 on Level 7 REIERTERE 744 T bR G
and 917 on Level 9 of Tower 2 ERMAMRETH FHR-_TMEE Commercial
Junefield Plaza HBESE & ZAZt+—HER®
No. 10 Xuan Wu Men Wai Dajie 7252 729E K Land use rights
Xi Cheng District, Beijing NENTERDEN for a term expired on
the PRC 21 March 2044

FECEEIMEZHE
PARTICULARS OF COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE

REBR-ZE—N\F+_A=+—HB2Z2FEE2 5% Details of the Group’s completed properties for sale as at 31 December

TYHEFFIBAT 2018 are as follows:
B
AIHEEE
MELBR M JiiR=S EIFE (7 K) AEEZER
Approximate
saleable
Name of property Year of floor area Group’s
and location Use completion (square meter) interest
Units 702 and 703 702K 703F x= —E—ARF 762 100%
Calle Los Calle Los
Cisnes 361-365 Cisnes 361-365 Residential 2015
Urb. Limatambo, Urb. Limatambo,
San Isidro, San lIsidro,
Lima, M,
Peru WaE

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AERBBE -
FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMA

»
E RESULTS
BE+-—B=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December
—B-N\F —F—+tF —T-AF —FT-HF —FTNOF
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
FHET FAT FAT FAT FH T
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FEEEER Continuing Operations
WA Revenue 184,704 36,275 154,401 298,688 335,774
BELEER L Loss before tax from
Br T B S 18 continuing operations (139,665) (63,891) (51,881) (73,764) (87,645)
FEREe, (%) Income tax credit/(expense) 7,765 1,029 2,195 (201) (9,332)
BELEERK Loss for the year from
FE J’Eﬂa continuing operations (131,900) (62,862) (49,686) (73,965) (96,977)
BRIMEEER 2 Loss for the year from
FREER discontinued operations - - (1,953) (1,897) (5,014)
FEEHAE Loss for the year (131,900) (62,862) (51,639) (75,862)  (101,991)
FE4h - Attributable to:
KARHEE A Owners of the Company (111,784) (44,895) (36,495) (69,434)  (104,923)
FEPE IR Non-controlling interests (20,116) (17,967) (15,144) (6,428) 2,932
(131,900) (62,862) (51,639) (75,862)  (101,991)
EERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R+=-—A=+—8H
At 31 December
—E-N\FE —T—+F —T—RF —T—FHF —T—NHE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
FHET FAT FAT FAT FABT
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
BEERE Total assets 393,394 440,295 483,730 798,749 922,807
RIRAE Total liabilities (183,527) (145,647)  (139,012)  (206,670)  (235,255)
259,867 294,648 344,718 592,079 687,552
FE(h = Equity attributable to:
AREIHERA Owners of the Company 229,684 241836 278,838 509,358 592,989
SRR IR M A Non-controlling interests 30,183 52,812 65,880 82,721 94,563
259,867 294,648 344,718 592,079 687,552

208 MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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